Public Document Pack

Tuesday, 7 July 2015
at 6.00 pm
Town Hall, Eastbourne

Planning Committee
Members of the public are welcome to attend and listen to the discussion of
items in the “open” part of the meeting. Please see notes at end of agenda
concerning public rights to speak and ask questions.
The Planning Committee meets in the Court Room of the Town Hall
which is located on the ground floor. Entrance is via the main door or
access ramp at the front of the Town Hall. Parking bays for blue
badge holders are available in front of the Town Hall and in the car
park at the rear of the Town Hall.
An induction loop operates to enhance sound for deaf people who use
a hearing aid or loop listener.
If you require further information or assistance please contact the
Local Democracy team – contact details at end of this agenda.
This agenda and accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in
PDF format which means you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe
Acrobat Reader.
Please ask if you would like this agenda and/or any of the reports in an
alternative format.

MEMBERS:

Councillor Murray (Chairman); Councillor Sabri (DeputyChairman); Councillors Jenkins, Miah, Murdoch, Salsbury,
Taylor and Ungar

Agenda
1

Minutes of the meeting held on 2 June 2015. (Pages 1 - 16)

2

Apologies for absence.

3

Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and
of other interests as required by the Code of Conduct.

4

Urgent items of business.
The Chairman to notify the Committee of any items of urgent business
to be added to the agenda.

2

5

Right to address the meeting/order of business.
The Chairman to report any requests received to address the
Committee from a member of the public or from a Councillor in respect
of planning applications/items listed and that these applications/items
are taken at the commencement of the meeting.

6

34 Marlow Avenue. Application ID: 150496 (HHH). (Pages 17 22)

7

48 St Leonards Road. Application ID: 150141 (PPP). (Pages 23 32)

8

153 Victoria Drive. Application ID: 150092. (Pages 33 - 40)

9

280 Kings Drive. Application ID: 150369. (Pages 41 - 46)

10

BMX Track, The Old Rifle Range, Hampden Park. Application ID:
150484 (PPP). (Pages 47 - 52)

11

Langney CP School. Application ID: 150471. (Pages 53 - 56)

12

Seaside Garage, 10-16 Fairlight Road. Application ID: 150457
(PPP). (Pages 57 - 64)

13

Shortdean Place. Application ID: 150322 (PPP). (Pages 65 - 68)

14

Site 5, Sovereign Harbour. Application ID: 150352 (RMT).
(Pages 69 - 76)

15

Water Treatment Works, Waterworks Road. Application ID
150589. (Pages 77 - 82)

16

Conservation Guidance documents. (Pages 83 - 162)

17

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015. (Pages 163 - 202)

18

Seafront Local Plan - Issues and Options. (Pages 203 - 210)

19

South Downs National Park Authority Planning Applications.

Inspection of Background Papers – Please see contact details listed in each report.
Councillor Right of Address - Councillors wishing to address the meeting who are
not members of the Committee must notify the Chairman in advance.
Disclosure of interests - Members should declare their interest in a matter at the
beginning of the meeting, and again, at the point at which that agenda item is
introduced.
Members must declare the existence and nature of any interest.

3

In the case of a DPI, if the interest is not registered (nor the subject of a pending
notification) details of the nature of the interest must be reported to the meeting by
the member and subsequently notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 28
days.
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when
the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation).
Public Right of Address – Requests by members of the public to speak on a matter
which is listed in this agenda must be received in writing by no later than 12 Noon, 2
working days before the meeting e.g. if the meeting is on a Tuesday, received by 12
Noon on the preceding Friday). The request should be made to Local Democracy at
the address listed below. The request may be made by letter, fax or electronic mail.
For further details on the rules about speaking at meetings please contact Local
Democracy.
Registering to speak – Planning Applications - If you wish to address the
committee regarding a planning application you need to register your interest with the
Development Control Section of the Planning Division or Local Democracy within 21
days of the date of the site notice or neighbour notification letters (detail of dates
available on the Council’s website at www.eastbourne.gov.uk/planningapplications).
Requests made beyond this date cannot normally be accepted. This can be done by
telephone, letter, fax, e-mail or by completing the local democracy or planning
contact forms on the Council's website.
Please note: Objectors will only be allowed to speak where they have already
submitted objections in writing, new objections must not be introduced when
speaking.

Further Information
Councillor contact details, committee membership lists and other related information
is also available from Local Democracy.
Local Democracy, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW
Tel: (01323) 415023/415021 Text Relay: 18001 01323 410000,
410322
E Mail: localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk
Website at www.eastbourne.gov.uk

Fax: (01323)

For general Council enquiries, please telephone (01323) 410000 or E-mail:
enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

1

Agenda Item 1

Tuesday, 2 June 2015
at 6.00 pm

Planning Committee
Present:Members:

1

Councillor Murray (Chairman) Councillor Sabri (Deputy-Chairman)
Councillors Jenkins, Miah, Murdoch, Salsbury, Taylor and Ungar

Minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2015.
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2015 were submitted and
approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as an accurate
record.

2
3

Apologies for absence.
There were none.
Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by
members as required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of
other interests as required by the Code of Conduct.
Councillor Ungar declared a personal and prejudicial interest in minute 20,
Cavendish School, having objected to the original application. Councillor
Ungar addressed the committee from the floor and then withdrew from the
room whilst the item was considered.
Councillor Taylor declared a personal interest in minute 20, Cavendish
School as a member of East Sussex County Council Planning committee.
Councillor Taylor remained in the room whilst the application was
considered but did not take part in the discussion or vote thereon.
Councillor Murdoch declared a personal interest in minute 5, 21-22 and 25
Edison Road as the application site was adjacent to his place of worship,
however, he did not consider this would affect his deliberation of the
application.
Councillor Taylor also declared a personal interest in minute 4, 7-9 Neville
Avenue as the owner of a residential care home, however, he did not
consider this would affect his deliberation of the application.

4

Continuation of the Meeting.
In accordance with Part 4, Rules of Procedure of the Council’s Constitution
the committee agreed to extend the meeting to 11.00pm. The motion was
proposed by Councillor Ungar and seconded by Councillor Murdoch.

Page 1

2
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

5

RESOLVED: (Unanimously) That the hours of business for the Planning
committee on 2 June 2015 be extended to 11.00pm.
7-9 Neville Avenue. Application ID: 150357 (PPP).
Two storey extension at side and rear to provide nine additional en-suite
bedrooms, and internal alterations to provide improved circulation, an
additional lounge and en-suite facilities - HAMPDEN PARK. Four letters of
objection had been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Specialist Advisor (Arboriculture), the Environment
Agency and East Sussex County Council Highways Department were
summarised within the report.
An additional statement supplied by the applicant, was reported to the
committee, providing further justification for their proposal and summarised
as follows:
• It is one of the top care homes in Eastbourne
• The ambition is to provide more in depth and wider care provision for
existing and prospective residents
• Improved care (specialist bedrooms)
• En-suite facilities provide improved respect and personal dignity
• Larger rooms were capable of providing ever-increasing demand for
specialist equipment and aids
• Improved access - full bed lift would allow bed bound residents access
throughout the home
• Improved quality of life (full access to all existing specialist care and
recreational areas and equipment
• The proposal would help to support the viability of the business and
thereby give job security and security to residents
• Once fully established 3 additional jobs would be created
Mr Talbot addressed the committee in objection stating that there would be
no garden or open space left at the site, the development would be an
overdevelopment and would dominate the street scene.
Mr Franks, Agent, addressed the committee in response stating that the
design had been remodelled to blend with the surrounding properties and
had taken residents’ concerns into consideration. The Care home provided
much needed specialist services to Eastbourne residents and the expansion
was required to continue to provide the best care possible.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the
following conditions: 1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun
before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission 2) The
use hereby permitted shall not commence until the existing access has
been stopped up and the kerb and footway reinstated in accordance with
details submitted to and approved in writing by the Director of Economy
Transport and Environment 3) The new access shall be in the position
shown on the submitted plan [number: SK11 rev:F and laid out and
constructed in accordance with the attached HT407 form/diagram and all
works undertaken shall be executed and completed by the applicant to the

Page 2

3
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of
development 4) The development shall not be occupied until parking areas
have been provided in accordance with the approved plans and the areas
shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other than for
the parking of motor vehicles 5) The development shall not be occupied
until cycle parking areas have been provided in accordance with details
which have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority and the areas shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall
not be used other than for the parking of cycles 6) All existing trees shall be
retained, unless shown on the approved drawings as being removed. All
trees on and immediately adjoining the site shall be protected from damage
as a result of works on the site, to the satisfaction of the Local Planning
Authority. This should be in accordance with its Supplementary Planning
Guidance and relevant British Standards (BS 5837: 2012) for the duration
of the works on site. In the event that trees become damaged or otherwise
defective within five years following the contractual practical completion of
the development, the Local Planning Authority shall be notified as soon as
reasonably practicable and remedial action agreed and implemented 7)
Tree Protection: fencing. A design of the tree protection to be approved by
the Borough council’s specialist Advisor in Arboriculture 8) Prior to the
demolition of the bin store details shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include:A. A method statement on the demolition of the existing bin store to
prevent damage to the existing trees on site.
B. Agree the location of site office, method statement for
construction access routes and material storage areas before
commencement of construction and demolition.
9) At no time shall there be any burning/bonfires anywhere at the site 10)
The detailed landscaping plans to be submitted pursuant shall include a
plan at not less than 1:200 scale, showing the position of any trees
proposed to be retained with root protection areas plotted, and the
positions and routes of all proposed and existing pipes, drains, sewers, and
public services, including gas, electricity, telephone and water.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order, 1995 (or of any Order revoking and reenacting or amending that Order with or without modification), no services
shall be dug or laid into the ground other than in accordance with the
approved details 11) No retained tree shall be cut down, uprooted or
destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be topped or lopped other than in
accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. Any topping or lopping
approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard
3998:2010. No equipment, machinery or materials shall be brought on to
the site for the purpose of the development, until a scheme showing the
exact position of protective fencing to enclose all retained trees at the edge
of the required root protection area in accordance with British Standard
5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, demolition and construction, has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
and; the protective fencing has been erected in accordance with the
approved details. This fencing shall be maintained until all equipment,
machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Nothing
shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this
condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor
shall any excavation be made, without the prior written consent of the Local

Page 3

4
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

Planning Authority. In this condition retained tree means an existing tree
which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and
particulars; and paragraphs (a) and (b) above shall have effect until the
expiration of five years from the first occupation or the completion of the
development, whichever is the later 12) The development hereby permitted
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings no 13) No
additional windows, doors or other means of opening shall be inserted into
any first floor elevation without the writing consent of the Local Planning
Department.
6

21-22 and 25 Edison Road. Application ID: 150072 (PPP).
Demolition of existing unit and replacement with new high bay warehouse,
loading bay area, plant room and associated offices – HAMPDEN PARK.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Specialist Advisors for Economic Development,
Planning Policy, Arboriculture, the East Sussex County Council Archaeologist
and Highways Department were summarised within the report.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to a S106
agreement covering local employment initiatives and travel plan monitoring
fee and the following conditions: 1) Time 2) Approved Plans 3) External
matrials 4) Hard and soft landscaping 5) Changing and welfare facilities for
Cyclists 6) Refuse Facilities 7) Exterior lighting details 8) Limitation to hours
of Loading or Unloading 9) Demolition and construction times 10)
Construction method statement 11) Construction plant and machiner shall
be parked/stored clear of the public highway 12) Trafic management
scheme 13) Archaeological programme 14) Results of Investigation 15)
Foundation design 16) Inaccordance with BREEAM.
Informative:
The applicant is advised to contact the local gas provider due to the close
proximity to the site of a gas governor.
It is expected that the written scheme of investigation would confirm the
action to be taken and accord with the relevant portions of the East Sussex
County Council document Recommended Standard Conditions for
Archaeological Fieldwork, Recording and Post – Excavation in East Sussex
(Development Control) (2008) including Annexe B.

7

29 Filder Close. Application ID: 150365 (HHH).
Erection of 2 storey side extension (Amended description) – ST
ANTHONYS. Five objections had been received. A further objection had
been received, commenting on the external design, appearance and layout,
highways safety and parking, impact on the environment and parking
problems.

Page 4

5
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the East Sussex County Council Highway Department,
and Councillor Tutt, Leader of the Council, were summarised within the
report.
Mrs Shadbolt-Smith addressed the committee in objection stating that the
site enjoyed an open aspect and any development at this site would alter
the current view, the proposal was also of an inappropriate design. Further
concerns were expressed regarding the flooding and soak-away at the
application site.
Councillor Tutt, Leader of the Council, addressed the committee in objection
stating that the previous reasons for refusal were still relevant and
expressed concern about the drainage and flood table.
An additional condition had been recommended regarding the finished floor
level.
RESOLVED: (By 5 votes to 3) That permission be refused on the grounds
that by reason of the setting and layout of the development, the proposal
fails to respect the character and appearance of the surrounding residential
area, and conflicts with the pattern of existing development within Filder
Close, affecting the open plan character of the existing neighbourhood not
in accordance with Policy D10a of the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan
and Policies UHT1 and UHT4 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan (Saved
Policies) 2007.
Appeal
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to
be followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning
Inspectorate, is considered to be written representations.
8

52 Upper Kings Drive. Application ID: 150280.
Demolition of part of existing garage and erection of a two storey extension
at the side – RATTON. One letter of objection and one letter of support
had been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
Mr Clapperton addressed the committee in objection stating that no
consideration had been given to the maintenance of his property in the
positioning of the proposed extension, the distance from the boundary of
his property and the impact of the build process.
Mr Rakliff, Applicant, addressed the committee in response stating that he
was making use of the available space, with a steel frame construction
removing the impact of the build process on the neighbouring property and
minimising disruption to his neighbour.
RESOLVED: (By 6 votes to 1 with 1 abstention) That permission be
granted subject to the following conditions: 1) The development hereby
permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date

Page 5

6
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

of permission 2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved drawings submitted on 11th March 2015:
- DWG 1, Pro. G/F Plan
- DWG 2, Pro. F/F Plan
- DWG 3, Pro. Front Elev.
- DWG 4, Pro. Rear Elev.
- DWG 5, Pro. Section A:A
- DWG 6, Pro. Side Elev.
- DWG 9, Site Location and Block Plans
3) The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in
material, colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building 4)
The first floor rear window of the addition shall not be glazed otherwise
than with obscured glass and thereafter permanently retained as such 5)
Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans hereby approved and for
the avoidance of doubt no part of the extension shall encroach onto the
plot/property/airspace of the adjacent plot/property No 54 Upper Kings
Drive.
9

93 Royal Parade. Application ID: 150208 (PPP).
Retrospective application for Change of Use from Guesthouse (Class C1) to
HMO (Sui Generis Class) with 6 bedrooms (with en-suite bathrooms) to
accommodate up to 12 people – DEVONSHIRE. 23 letters of objection had
been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of Councillor Wallis, the Tourism Manager, Specialist
Advisors for Planning Policy and Conservation, the Eastbourne Hotels'
Association and East Sussex County Council Highways Department were
summarised within the report. The County Archaeologist and Eastbourne
Society made no comment.
The applicant had supplied a further statement within which they outlined
that their previous business tenant vacated the property at very short
notice resulting in an alternative use being sought by the owners in order to
maintain their income and finance the debt on the property.
Mr Godfrey addressed the committee in objection stating that the proposal
didn’t comply with the Council’s policies and that it would exacerbate the
existing parking issues and expressed concern for the size of the bedrooms.
Councillor Wallis, Ward Councillor, addressed the committee in objection
stating that the development was inappropriate in a key tourist
accommodation area. Councillor Wallis also expressed concerns regarding
the economic case provided to support the change of use.
Mr Vander, Agent, addressed the committee in response stating that
objections were based on perception and that the property had run as an
HMO without complaint for the last seven months. The tenants were
thoroughly vetted to minimise concern and impact for neighbours, and the
property was being appropriately maintained.

Page 6

7
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

The committee expressed their concerns regarding the change of use, and
stated that Eastbourne needed to retain guesthouse accommodation for
visitors. Members also expressed concern regarding the size of the
accommodation offered.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be refused and enforcement
action be authorised to secure cessation of the unlawful use on the grounds
that 1) The proposal seeks approval for the retention of an House in
Multiple Occupation with the defined Tourist Accommodation Zone and as
such is considered to be contrary to Policy HO14 of the Eastbourne Borough
Plan (saved policies) 2007 2) The proposal seeks to create living
accommodation for up to 12 residents and it is considered that the property
is inappropriate for this intensity of conversion, and as such would have an
adverse effect on the amenity of the area generally, and the amenities
enjoyed by the occupiers of the neighbouring properties in particular, by
reason of increased in activity, noise and general disturbance and would
conflict with policies B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2013,
Policies HO9 and HO14 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan (Saved Policies)
2007 and paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy Framework 3) The
proposal does not provide for adequate parking facilities within the site
which would result in additional congestion on the public highway causing
interference with the free flow and safety of traffic on the B2106 Royal
Parade and surrounding streets 4) The proposal, given the poor
standard/quality of accommodation, is likely to create an unacceptable
living environment for the future tenants/occupiers of this building/use, and
would therefore conflict with policies B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy
Local Plan 2013 and Policies HO9 and HO14 of the Eastbourne Borough
Plan (Saved Policies) 2007 and paragraph 17 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.
Appeal
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to
be followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning
Inspectorate, is considered to be written representations.
10

153 Victoria Drive. Application ID: 150092.
Conversion of first floor residential accommodation to form 1 one-bedroom
flat and 2 two-bedroom flats with access from the rear – OLD TOWN. Two
general comments had been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the East Sussex County Council Highway Department
were summarised within the report. The Specialist Advisor (Environmental
Health) made no comment.
The committee expressed concern regarding the extraction units / plant and
their proximity to the proposed flats.
NB: Councillor Taylor was not available for the officer’s presentation on this
application and therefore did not take part in the discussion on this item.

Page 7

8
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

11

RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That the application be deferred pending
further information and clarification regarding the proximity of extraction
units / plant to the proposed flats.
153 Victoria Drive. Application ID: 150342.
Demolition of existing garage and erection of one four-bedroom dwelling
with one parking space – OLD TOWN. Two further letters of support were
reported at the meeting. A further two letters of objection were also
reported raising concerns regarding the external design, appearance and
layout, residential amenity and highway and parking safety.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Specialist Advisor (Planning Policy) and East Sussex
County Council Highway Department were summarised within the report.
The Specialist Advisor (Arboriculture) made no comment.
RESOLVED: (By 5 votes to 4 (on the Chairman’s casting vote)) That
permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 1) The
development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission 2) The development hereby
permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved drawings
no:
• 14E3A.LO.002 Rev 01
• 14EA3.LO.100 Rev 01
• 14EA3.LO.101 Rev 00
• 14EA3.LO.102 Rev 01
• 14EA3.LO.200 Rev 01
• 14EA3.LO.201 Rev 01
• 14EA3.LO.300 Rev 01 submitted on 24th April 2015.
3) The hard surface within the front garden of the property hereby
approved shall be made of porous materials and retained thereafter or
provision shall be made and retained thereafter to direct run-off water from
the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the
curtilage of the property so that surface water does not run off the site onto
and across the public footpath/highway 4) The dwelling house hereby
approved shall not be occupied until full details of the means of
enclosure/boundary treatments to be constructed on all boundaries of the
plot/site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority 5) No development shall commence until fences for the
protection of trees to be retained to the front of the site have been erected
in accordance with British Standard 5837 (2005). The fences shall be
retained until the completion of the development and no vehicles, plant or
materials shall be driven or placed within the areas enclosed by such fences
6) The external materials (facing brick and roof tiles) to the property herby
approved shall match those used in the adjacent property No 1 Beechy
Avenue 7) That no demolition, site clearance or building operations shall
take place except between the hours of 8.00 a.m. and 6.00 p.m. on
Mondays to Fridays and 8.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. on Saturdays and that no
works in connection with the development shall take place unless previously
been agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

12

183a Langney Road. Application ID: 141346 (PPP).

Page 8

9
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

Demolition of 3 vacant retail units and construction of 9 no. one and two
bed apartments – DEVONSHIRE. One objection had been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of Councillor Steve Wallis, the Specialist Advisor
(Economic Development), the Environment Agency, East Sussex County
Council Highway Department and the Eastbourne Design Review Panel
(DRP) were summarised within the report.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the
following conditions: 1) Time Limits 2) Approved Plans 3) Materials 4)
Construction method Statement to include demotion and construction times
5) Privacy screens to the upper level terrace 6) provision of bike & bin store
before first occupation of units 7) Hard and soft landscaping 8) In
accordance with the submitted FRA
13

199 Seaside. Application ID: 150424.
Erection of first floor rear extension and single storey rear extension to side
of rear projection. (Amended description) – DEVONSHIRE. A number of
objections had been received.
Ms Maddison addressed the committee in objection stating that there would
be a loss of light to habitable rooms, noise pollution, overlooking and a loss
of privacy. The proposal would potentially undermine the footings to
neighbouring properties and would be out of keeping with the surrounding
area.
Ms Elliott, Applicant, addressed the committee in response stating that
there would be no further loss of light as the properties were already
closely situated. The Planning Department had not raised the same
concerns as objectors. Ms Elliott also stated that the rear of the properties
were not identical and that therefore the extension would not be out of
keeping.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be refused on the grounds that
1) the National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (7 – Good Design) states
that development should be ‘visually attractive as a result of good
architecture and appropriate landscaping’. This is echoed by Eastbourne
Borough Council Core Strategy Local Plan Policies B2 (Creating Sustainable
Neighbourhoods) and B10A (Design) which state that development should
be “attractive, well-designed contributing to a high quality local
environment that makes a positive contribution to the appearance of the
townscape; in doing this all developments should deliver a ‘sense of place’
that is distinctive”. 2) The size, design and appearance of the two storey
extension would be incongruous to the terrace of which the site is a part,
and unbalance it as a whole as viewed by surrounding properties with a
view of the rear of the site 3) Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policy HO20
(Residential Amenity) states that “proposals will be refused unless they can
demonstrate that they do not cause unacceptable … overshadowing and/or
loss of light.” The two storey extension will block the currently available
direct sunlight to the dining room and kitchen of no.201 Seaside.
Appeal

Page 9

10
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to
be followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning
Inspectorate, is considered to be written representations.
14

Beach adjacent to 3 and 4 Lower Parade, Grand Parade.
Application ID: 150276 (PPP).
Extension of timber decked area to beach to be used in conjunction with
existing Cafe Express and Belissimo Express cafes – DEVONSHIRE. Three
representations had been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Tourism Manager, Specialist Advisors for
Environmental Health, Conservation and Engineering and the Eastbourne
Hospitality Association were summarised within the report. The Estate
Manager made no comment.
Members were advised that the revised scheme reported to Planning
committee increased the extent of separation between the two areas of
decking.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the
following conditions: 1) Commencement within three years 2) Development
in accordance with the approved plans 3) Submission of details of
foundations 4) No mains electrical/gas/water connection through
promenade

15

Beach Huts, Royal Parade. Application ID: 150265 (PPP).
Erection of two terraces of 10 standard beach huts along the seafront
adjacent to Fort Fun car park – DEVONSHIRE. A representation regarding
parking spaces and waste disposal was reported at the meeting.
The committee was advised that the hardstanding area had been removed
from the application.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Specialist Advisor (Engineering), the Environment
Agency and County Ecologist were summarised within the report. The
committee was advised that the Specialist Advisor (Economic Development)
supported the application.
RESOLVED: (By 7 votes to 1) That permission be granted subject to the
following conditions: 1) Commencement within 3 years 2) Development in
accordance with the approved plans.

16

Eastbourne Pier. Application ID: 150285.
Installation of rides and stalls upon the decking at the location of the former
Blue Room at Eastbourne Pier for a temporary period of at least 18 months
prior to redevelopment. (Amended description) – DEVONSHIRE. One
objection had been received. Five further objections and two general

Page 10

11
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

observations were reported at the meeting and were summarised as
follows:
• Noise, disturbance, fumes, anti-social behaviour from the rides. If
approved would encourage other similar operators to use the seafront.
• No details of opening hours.
• Additional traffic and parking along seafront which was already
congested.
• Why delay in reinstating blue room. The Pier must be reinstated to its
original state at the end of 18 months.
• Reinstatement of Pier not just for the benefit of local residents but for
Eastbourne, Eastbourne's tourist industry as a whole and as a legacy to
future generations.
• Out of keeping with the character and appearance of the conservation
area and listed buildings, detrimental to the character, integrity and
historic interest of the Eastbourne Seafront.
• Would be an eyesore similar to Brighton Pier.
• Eastbourne is unique in not having such fairground rides on the pier and
were totally inappropriate.
• Can foresee a situation where proposal could be of a permanent nature.
• Proposal requires flexibility as to change of rides etc. and there was
therefore no guarantee as to what would be retained.
• The rides were not consistent either with the aesthetic and architectural
style of the pier.
• Will have adverse economic impact on other similar businesses in the
area such as Fort Fun.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Specialist Advisors for Planning Policy and
Conservation were summarised within the report.
At their meeting on 2 June 2015 the Conservation Area Advisory Group
considered that the proposal’s impact on the character of the pier was not
acceptable in principle, however would not object to a temporary period of
six months. The Group raised serious concerns regarding the lack of detail
in the applicant’s proposal and their long term plans. If permission was
granted, the Group recommended that a planning condition be imposed
that required the prior approval of each ride.
The committee was advised that Historic England raised no objection
subject to the proposed conditions in the short term, whilst the
reinstatement of the Blue Room was progressed.
Mrs Scoufarides addressed the committee in objection stating that the
proposal was detrimental to the character and appearance of Eastbourne
seafront. There would be increased noise pollution, rubbish and traffic
congestion. Mrs Scoufarides also highlighted that the hours of operation
had not been included in the application.
The committee raised concerns about the temporary nature of the
application, the hours of operation, the type of amusements, the lack of
control of the use of available space and the potential resulting restrictions
for pedestrians.

Page 11

12
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

The Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning) advised that a S.106 agreement
could be sought to restrict operational hours and length of permission.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be refused on the grounds that
the proposal fails to preserve or enhance the special historic interest,
integrity and architectural merit of the Grade II* listed pier and its
immediate setting within the historic seafront together with an adverse
impact on the setting of surrounding listed buildings, to the detriment of
this site in particular and surrounding area in general. As such, the proposal
would be contrary to Policies UHT17 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan 2007,
Policy D10 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2013 and paragraphs
131 to 136 of the National Planning Policy Framework.
Informative:
In the light of this decision and in accordance with paragraph 136 of the
NPPF, the applicant is encouraged to take all reasonable steps to progress
the reinstatement of the Blue Room building with a replacement building
and should contact the Council without undue delay to facilitate the
development.
Appeal
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to
be followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning
Inspectorate, is considered to be written representations.
17

Flat 1 Castle Mount, 40 Carlisle Road. Application ID: 150344
(PPP).
Replacement of ground floor window on rear elevation with a door and
window set – MEADS. Six objections had been received.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The Specialist Advisor (Conservation) had no objections to this proposal and
their comments were summarised within the report.

18

RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the
following conditions: 1) Time Limit 2) The development hereby permitted
shall be carried out in accordance with the following drawings received on
29 March 2015:
916-01 A - Change window ar rear for door - Elevation Proposed
Site Location Plan, Block Plan
3) The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match
in material, colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing
building, as outlined under section 10. Materials of the submitted
application form.
Heatherleigh Hotel 63-66 Royal Parade. Application ID: 141521
(PPP).
Proposed change of use from redundant hotel into 12no. holiday flats and
16no. residential flats including demolition of 4no. garages at rear,
alterations to remaining three garages to form secure cycle storage and

Page 12

13
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

refuse storage, together with the formation of parking spaces. Removal of
front sun lounge – DEVONSHIRE. Five letters of objection and one letter
of support had been receieved.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
The observations of the Estate Manager, the Tourism Manager, Southern
Water, the Environment Agency, Eastbourne Hotels’ Association, the County
Archaeologist and East Sussex County Council Highways Department were
summarised within the report.
The committee was advised that an independent report had been
commissioned by the Council in order to determine and evaluate the
content of the applicants’ evidence that had accompanied their application.
The main points from this report were summarised as follows:
• That it was uneconomic for the building to remain fully in hotel use.
• The cost of the refurbishment outweighed the likely capital value of the
building once it had been refurbished. This had been evidenced by
comparisons with a number of trading hotels in differing areas of the
town which also provided a range of offers (sea view/spa facilities etc.)
• Given the room layout and the costs of the refurbishment it was unlikely
post refurbishment to achieve rating greater than 2/3 star and thereby
would not deliver a satisfactory rate of return on the investment.
• The poor performance of the hotel prior to its closure and the recent
failure to achieve a sale of the building were both symptomatic of the
buildings inadequacies in the continued hotel use
RESOLVED: (By 6 votes to 2) That permission be granted subject to a
S106 covering local employment initiatives, the delivery of affordable
housing and controls over the timing of the delivery of the refurbishment of
the hotel/guest house, the S106 should express that no more than 5 of the
residential units hereby approved shall be sold/occupied until such time as
the retained hotel/guest house had been fully refurbished in accordance
with the following conditions: 1) Time Limit 2) In accordance with the
approved drawings 3) Details, including Samples, of a Good Quality of
Materials to be used on external elements of the proposed development,
where required, to be submitted to the satisfaction of the Council 4)
Controls over Construction and Demolition Times 5) Making good after
demolition of conservatory and garages 6) Tree Planting and Landscaping
7) Boundary Treatment 8) Refuse enclosure 9) Vehicle and bicycle parking
to be provided and retained, in accordance with the approved plans 10)
Surface and Foul Water Drainage Arrangements 11) Hard Surfacing Details
12) Details of any external lighting required 13) Controls to ensure
retention of tourist let uses 14) Control to limit the occupancy of the open
residential units instil such time as the holiday accommodation has been
refurbished and is trading.
19

Perrywinkles, 1b Lower Parade, Grand Parade. Application ID:
150195.
Provision of decking area on the beach for Periwinkles seafood outlet
adjacent to the lower promenade together with the removal of 2sections of
railings to facilitate access to the deck. (Amended description) –
DEVONSHIRE. One objection had been received.

Page 13

14
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

The observations of the Specialist Advisors for Conservation and
Engineering, the Environment Agency and County Ecologist were
summarised within the report.
The Estate Manager and Specialist Advisor (Economic Development) made
no comment.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the
following conditions: 1) Commencement within 3 years 2) Development in
accordance with the approved plans 3) Submission of details of foundations
4) Submission of details of balustrading.
20

Site 8, Sovereign Harbour. Application ID: 141469 (RMT).
Reserved matters (Access, Appearance, Landscaping, Layout and
Scale)application relating to condition 1 of outline application
Reference:131002 for the development of site 8 at Sovereign Harbour for
up to 8 dwellings, open space and berth holder facilities and related
discharge in respect of site 8 of the following conditions: condition 1
(reserved matters), condition 4 (within 2 years), condition 172 (harbour
wall maintenance) conditions 9 & 192 (restriction of residential units,
condition 177 (estate road layout), condition 191 (public spaces) –
SOVEREIGN.
The committee was advised that this application had been deferred from
the Planning committee in February 2015 in order to seek revisions
(amended drawings) to the design of the ‘public open space’ element within
the scheme.
The agents for the application had submitted revised details for the area of
‘public open space’ and had also provided commentary on a number of
other issues discussed at the February 2015 Planning committee which
were summarised within the report.
The representations that had been receieved in each round of consultation
were detailed within the report.
East Sussex County Council Highways Department had commented that
vehicle and cycle parking had been considered and access to the site was
sufficient. The observations of the Sovereign Harbour Residents Association
were summarised within the report.
RESOLVED: (Unanimous) That permission be granted subject to the
following reserved matters conditions: 1) Time limit 2) In accordance with
the approved plans 3) No development shall commence before details of
the boundary treatment (including privacy screens) for the building plots
hereby approved are submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority 4) Prior to its installation at the site details of the
location, design and appearance of any external plant and machinery
associated with the dwellings shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The details as approved shall be
implemented at the site be retained as such thereafter.

Page 14

15
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

21

Cavendish School, Eldon Road. Application ID: 150534 (CCC).
East Sussex County Council Re-Consultation to Cavendish School – OLD
TOWN.
The committee was advised that since the application was last considered
by the Planning Committee in November 2014 the applicant had carried out
further traffic analysis including survey work in Eldon Road, Willingdon Road
and Cobbold Avenue. The amendments to the scheme were detailed within
the report.
It was accepted and acknowledged that there was an identified need for
this accommodation within Eastbourne and it was accepted that East
Sussex County Council had undertaken a thorough audit of
available/potential sites to meet/mitigate this need. In was considered that
this site was the only one available and deliverable within the time frames
required.
The relevant planning history for the site was detailed within the report.
An additional response to officers’ questions was provided by the applicants
and reported at the meeting. The questions related to:
• The internal roadway, it’s potential to cause loss of amenity to the
houses that abut the site, and how this impact would be mitigated.
• Further clarity over on the location and extent of the proposed cycle
storage was sought.
• During pick up and drop off times how one-way access would be
retained.
• Further detailed drawings for a pedestrian controlled crossing outside
of the school in Eldon Road were requested.
• The controls that were being imposed over the non-school use of the
MUGA
• Clarification regarding the use of floodlights.
Mr Askew, Chairman of the Board of Governors, addressed the committee
in support stating that there had already been an uptake for the reception
class with over 800 Facebook followers in support of the proposals. The
new school would provide better facilities for all students. The traffic issues
had been resolved by relocating the entrance.
Mr Hambrook, East Sussex County Council, addressed the committee
stating that there was a need for additional school places, with an increase
in school age children in the vicinity of the school. The previous highways
concerns had been addressed with the ‘kiss and drop’ being relocated onsite and the travel plan indicated that less than 50% of school children
would arrive by car. Screening would be provided for properties adjoining
the site.
Councillor Ungar, Ward Councillor, addressed the committee in objection
stating that the proposal was an overdevelopment which was of poor
architectural merit. Councillor Ungar felt that the site was already fully
utilised, with additional school places required in other areas of the town.
Concern was also expressed regarding the potential for flood lighting at the

Page 15

16
Planning
Tuesday, 2 June 2015

MUGA, access from Cobbold Avenue, the increase in traffic in the vicinity of
the school and access to the disabled parking provided on-site.
The committee expressed concern regarding the loss of open space, current
traffic issues and the impact of additional traffic in the surrounding area and
safety issues for the pupils with increased traffic at the site. The committee
felt that whilst the new scheme was an improvement the traffic issues were
just being transferred from Eldon Road to Cobbold Avenue.
The committee requested that consideration be given to the addition of a
pelican crossing and reduction in the speed limit in Eldon Road. The
Chairman requested that the frontage of the school fabric be softened by
using a mixture of building materials. The Senior Specialist Advisor
(Planning) agreed to report the committee’s comments to East Sussex
County Council and agreed to update the Chairman on the outcome of the
application following its consideration by the East Sussex County Council’s
Planning committee.
NB: Councillor Taylor withdrew from the room whilst this application was
considered. Councillor Ungar addressed the committee from the floor and
withdrew from the room whilst the item was considered.
RESOLVED: That East Sussex County Council be advised that Eastbourne
Borough Council did not object in principle to the provision of additional
school places at the site but retained areas of concern in relation to
highway capacity, highway safety and design and appearance of the
building and requested that East Sussex County Council use their best
endeavours to provide a Pelican Crossing (or similar) in Eldon Road and
also introduce of a 20MPH speed limit on the roads in and around the
school.
22

23

Summary of the Performance of the Planning Service - Qtr 4 (Jan Mar) 2014/15.
This item was deferred until the next meeting of the Planning Committee on
7 July 2015.
South Downs National Park Authority Planning Applications.
None reported.

The meeting closed at 10.56 pm

Councillor Murray (Chairman)

Page 16

Agenda Item 6
App.No:
150496 (HHH)

Decision Due Date:
27 June 2015

Ward:
St Anthonys

Officer:
Toby Balcikonis

Site visit date:
15 May 2015

Type:
Householder

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 7 June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry: 7 June 2015
Press Notice(s): N/A
Over 8/13 week reason: The application is within date
Location: 34 Marlow Avenue, Eastbourne
Proposal: Erection of garden store at rear
Applicant: Mr A Miah
Recommendation: Approve with conditions
Executive Summary:This application has been referred to Planning Committee given the level of
neighbour concerns.
Planning permission is sought for the erection of an outbuilding at the bottom of
the garden at No 34 Marlow Avenue. The applicant states that this building will be
used for purposes incidental to the enjoyment of the main dwelling house. The
applicaqtion has outlined that half the buliding will be used as a garden store and
the other half is to be used as a general utility room.
The focus of concern from the neighbours relates to the assumption that the use
of the outbuilding would not be incidental; there is no evidence within the
application to suggest an independent use of the space created by the proposal.
The design, size and appearance of the strcuture is considered to be common
with many in the area and is acceptable.
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan Policies 2013
B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
C6: Roselands & Bridgemere Neighbourhood Policy

Page 17

C13: St Anthony's & Langney Point Neighbourhood Policy
D10A: Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT4: Visual Amenity
HO20: Residential Amenity
Site Description:
The application property is a two storey semi-detached single private dwelling,
adjoined to 36 Marlow Avenue. Other shared boundaries include the South
Western flank boundary shared with 32 Marlow Avenue, and nos. 26 & 28
Kinfauns Avenue to the rear.
Toward the rear boundary of the neighbouring property at number 32, the
neighbour has recently constructed a brick built summer house, given permission
under application reference 140764.
At the time of visiting, the applicant was mid-way through construction of the
proposed garden store and had reached up to eaves height of the brick built
structure.
Relevant Planning History:
EB/1986/0142 ERECTION OF FRONT PORCH Approved Unconditional 1986-04-29
100650 Erection of a single storey extension at rear. HouseholderApproved
conditionally 10/12/2010
140062 Lawful development certificate (proposed) for the erection of a garden
shed to the rear. LD Certificate (proposed) – Approved 26/03/2014
140764 – 32 Marlow Avenue Erection of summerhouse incorporating shed in the
rear garden. Householder - Approved conditionally - 28/07/2014
Proposed development:
The applicant seeks permission for the erection of a brick built structure stated to
be for use as a garden store.
The resulting development would be located at a distance of a metre from the
rear and side property boundaries and would measure approximately 5.45 metres
in width, and be approximately 6 metres in depth.
The new structure would have pitched roof sloping from front to back with a ridge
height of approximately 3.65 metres and an eaves height of approximately 2.32
metres.

Page 18

The external facing materials red brick for the walls, tiles for the roof and UPVC
windows and doors located in the front elevation only.
Consultations:
Neighbour Representations:
4 letters of consultation have been sent to the surrounding neighbouring
properties sharing a boundary with the application property to the rear and sides.
2 no. general observations have been received and 1 no. letter of support
covering the following points:
OBSERVATIONS:
• The submitted drawings do not show a plan layout of the interior
construction.
o Agent confirmed single room layout
• Would appreciate confirmation that the structure is not for habitable use.
o Proposed Garden Store
• Looks more of a detached bungalow than garden store due to nature of
construction.
o Appearance will be appraised later in the report
• Boundary fence removed, and is requested to be replaced.
o Not a planning concern, but agent confirms that the rear boundary
fence and adjoining side fence shared with number 32 will be replaced
and erected to a height of no more than 2 metres.
SUPPORT:
• Happy with the proposal.
• Would be happy to plant hedge to encourage wildlife.
Appraisal:
Principle of development:
The erection of a brick built structure with pitched roof located at the end of the
back garden has already been established in principal by the construction of a
similarly sized and positioned development at the neighbouring property (32
Marlow Avenue) under application reference 140764.
Therefore, the proposed structure would be acceptable in principal so long as it
did not have an unacceptable impact on the amenities of the surrounding
residential properties.
Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and
surrounding area:
Policy HO20 of the Eastbourne Local Plan requires new development proposals
and extensions to existing buildings to respect residential amenity.

Page 19

Policy B2 of the Core Strategy seeks to protect the residential and environmental
amenity of existing and future residents.
It is considered that there would be no significant detrimental impact by way of
loss of light, overshadowing or loss of outlook as a result of the construction of
the outbuilding, and therefore it is considered to accord with the afforementioned
planning policies.
A condition is imposed controlling the the use of the new building would be
incidental and ancillary to the main property.
Design issues:
Policy UHT1 of the Eastbourne Local Plan states that proposals will be required to
harmonise with the appearance and character of the local area and use
appropriate materials (preferably locally sourced). Policy UHT4 states that
proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental impact on visual amenity will
be refused.
Policy D10a of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and Policy UHT1 of the Eastbourne
Local Plan state that proposals will be required to harmonise with the appearance
and character of the local area and be appropriate in scale, form, materials
(preferably locally sourced), setting, alignment and layout.
It is considered that the size, scale and form of the proposed outbuilding would
be appropriate for the area and would be comparable to the neighbouring
summerhouse and storage shed permitted at the adjoining neighbouring
property(s).
The location of the proposed development is not readily visible from the public
realm and would not have an unacceptable detrimental impact on visual amenity
and would therefore accord with Policy UHT4 of the Eastbourne Borough Plan
(2007) Saved Policies.
The proposed external finishes including red brick for the walls, tile for the roof
and UPVC windows and doors is considered appropriate for its setting.
Impacts on trees:
There are no trees located within the application site itself, although there are
some conifer type trees located along the rear boundary of 28 Kinfauns Road.
There is no concern as to long-term retention and health of the aforementioned
trees and are not worthy of a tree preservation order .
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact

Page 20

on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations have been
taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the
proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act 2010.
Conclusion:
The resulting development would be of a size, scale, design and be constructed
with facing materials in-keeping with the location. Furthermore there would be no
unacceptable impact to the amenities of the surrounding residential properties as
a result of the proposed structure which accords to planning policy.
Recommendation:
It is recommended that the application be approved subject to the following
conditions:
Conditions:
1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration
of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains the right to review
unimplemented permissions and to comply with Section 51 of
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved drawings:
DWG. NO.: 1 - Proposed Ground Floor Plan (Rec'd 01/05/2015)
DWG. NO.: 2 Rev. A - Proposed Front & Side Elevations (Rec'd 14/05/2015)
DWG. NO.: 3 Rev. A - Proposed Rear Elevation (Rec'd 14/05/2015)
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied at any time other than for
purposes ancillary and incidental to the residential use of the dwelling known as 34
Marlow Avenue, and shall not be let or sold separately.
Reason: To ensure that the use of the premises remains that of an incidental outbuilding

Appeal:
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to be
followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is
considered to be written representations.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Agenda Item 7
App No:
150141 (PPP)

Decision Due Date:
17 June 2015

Ward:
Upperton

Officer:
Richard Elder

Site visit date:
2 June 2015

Type: Planning
Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 11 April 2015 & 3 June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry: 11 April 2015 & 3 June 2015
Press Notice(s): n/a
Over 8/13 week reason: Referred to Planning Committee
Location: Land to rear of 48 St Leonards Road, Eastbourne
Proposal: New build 3 Storey residential accommodation consisting of 12
dwellings and 7 car parking spaces. Reduction of proposed building to 2
storeys consisting of 7 dwellings and 7 car parking spaces. (Amended
description).
Applicant: Mr Simon Khalil
Recommendation: Approved subject to conditions and the satisfactory
completion of a legal agreement covering highway related matters.
Executive Summary:
The principle of the proposed development is considered to be acceptable given the office
block has now been converted to residential and the site is not located within a
designated industrial estate and as such, there is now no requirement for the applicants
to demonstrate that the site is still viable for a commercial use.
The proposal would provide a good mix of different dwelling sizes of flats and reasonable
sized accommodation. The design of the building is considered acceptable in this area
and the amended height, scale and bulk of the proposal would be appropriate on this site
and reflects the changing surrounding environment, particularly the change of use of
Esher House to residential flats.
With regards amenity impact, due to the first floor of the proposed building at the same
height as the ground floor flats within Esher House, it is considered that the separating
distance is acceptable and would not result in any significant overlooking, loss of
sunlight, daylight or cause any overshadowing to surrounding residential properties.
The provision of 7 off street parking spaces would comply with the ESCC Parking
Standards in an area of high public transport availability close to the mainline train
station and bus routes, services and local amenities. Subject to conditions and a S106
legal agreement to secure the new highway alterations, the proposal is acceptable on
Highway grounds.

Page 23

The proposed development is therefore considered acceptable and would constitute
sustainable development in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan Policies 2013
B1 Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution Sustainable Centre
B2 Sustainable Neighbourhood
C1 Town Centre Neighbourhood Policy
D5 Housing Low Value Neighbourhoods
D10 Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT2: Height of Buildings
UHT4: Visual Amenity
HO20: Residential Amenity
TC11 St Leonards Road Area
TR11 Transport & Parking
Site Description:
The application site is located within the Town Centre neighbourhood area on the north
west side of Commercial Road where vehicular access is gained. The site is used as a car
park previously serving Esher House which was a 4 storey building used as offices. Esher
House has since been converted to flats through the ‘prior approval’ process.
The site is therefore surrounded by residential to the south east on the opposite side of
Commercial Road, Esher House to the north west and Gables Court adjecent to the south
west. St Mary’s House adjacent to the north east is used as County Council offices.
Relevant Planning History:
100463 Construction of three storey residential accommodation consisting of 12
dwellings and 7 car parking spaces. Planning Permission Refused 06/12/2010
Subsequent appeal dismissed 13 April 2011 based on the lack of marketing information
to demonstrate that the site could not be used for continued commercial use.
130542 Conversion of Office Space (B1a) to 23 self-contained flats (C3). Change of use
as permitted development under Class J. Prior Notification (building)
Approved conditionally 09/08/2013
130679 Installation of new windows, entrance doors, French windows and Juliet
balconies to flats, along with new canopy to main entrance. Planning Permission
Approved conditionally 30/10/2013
140011 Construction of additional floor to the existing building. Planning Permission
Approved conditionally 20/02/2014

Page 24

Proposed development:
The original proposal involved the construction of a 3 storey residential building
consisting of 12 dwellings and 7 car parking spaces, however this has been amended and
now proposes a scheme reduced in height to 2 storeys consisting of 7 dwellings and 7 car
parking spaces incorporating a flat roof. The building would measure approximately 6
metres high, 16 metres deep and 24.3 metres wide.
The building would occupy most of the footprint of the site but set back slightly from the
pavement and from the rear boundary. Undercroft parking, bin and cycle storage would
be provided to the ground floor. The accommodation would comprise of 2 x studio flats, 2
x 2 bed flats and 3 x 1 bed flats benefiting from small gardens and balcony’s to the front
and rear.
Consultations:
Internal:
Specialist Advisor
Specialist Advisor
Highways ESCC –
Specialist Advisor

(Arboriculture) – No objection
(Economic Development) – No objection
No objection subject to conditions and S106 legal agreement
(Planning Policy) – No objection

External:
None
Neighbour Representations:
21 objections have been received in response to the initial consultation on the original
proposal and cover the following points:
-

Insufficient parking in Commercial Road where parking is very difficult.
Insufficient number of spaces proposed.
Loss of parking in the existing car park.
Highway safety concerns and increased congestion.
Loss of view, loss of light, loss of privacy, loss of sunlight.
Would cause pollution, noise, overshadowing and overlooking.
Footprint is too large and too close to Esher House.
Overdevelopment.

8 objections have been received in response to the consultation on the amended
proposal and cover the following points:
-

Too large a footprint.
Too close to Esher House would result in loss of privacy.
Loss of light and privacy.
Unsuitable site.
Insufficient parking spaces. Parking in the area is terrible.
Where will cars that park there go?
Overdevelopment
Loss of trees.
Reduce highway safety.

Page 25

Appraisal:
The main considerations in the determination of this application are the acceptability of
the proposal on the character and appearance of the street scene, surrounding
residential amenity, loss of the commercial use associated with the site and sufficient offstreet parking provision.
Principle of development
Policy C1 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy states that that the vision for the town centre
will be promoted through delivering new housing through conversions and conserving the
historic environment and protecting it from inappropriate development.
The National Planning Policy Framework is clear that sustainable residential development
should be granted planning permission to ensure greater choice of housing in the local
market and to meet local and national housing needs. The site has not been formally
identified for development within the Council’s Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment, therefore would be a windfall site. The Council relies on windfall sites
coming forward as part of its spatial development strategy (Policy B1 of the Core
Strategy Local Plan).
The site is not located within a designated industrial area and the office use associated
with the car park has now changed to residential.
Paragraph 17 of The National Planning Policy Framework 2012 states that Local Planning
Authorities should encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been
previously developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of high environmental
value.
The previous reasons for refusal and dismissed appeal were based mainly on the lack of
marketing information to demonstrate that the site could not be used for continued
commercial use. Given the site served a previous office block which has now been
converted to residential and the site is not located within a designated industrial estate,
it is considered, therefore, that there is now no requirement for the applicants to
demonstrate that the site is still viable for a commercial use.
As such, it is considered that the principle of residential development is acceptable
subject to compliance with all other relevant planning policies within the Local
Development Framework and would represent a sustainable form of development given
its town centre location close to public transport, amenities and services.
Design, Siting and Layout:
Policy UHT1 of the Eastbourne Local Plan states that proposals will be required to
harmonise with the appearance and character of the local area and be appropriate in
scale, form, materials (preferably locally sourced), setting, alignment and layout. Policy
UHT4 states that proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental impact on visual
amenity will be refused. Policy UHT15 states that the character or appearance of
conservations areas should be preserved or enhanced.
Policy D10A requires all new development to make a positive contribution to the
appearance of the our townscape and urban heritage.

Page 26

An application for a 3 storey building for 12 flats of a similar size and design to the
current proposal was refused for reasons of lack of demonstration that the commercial
use could not be continued and lack of commitment to secure financial contributions and
also dismissed at appeal for similar reasons. The modern design and associated siting
and scale were considered appropriate on this site when Esher House was still in use as
an office block.
The current proposal has been reduced in height from 3 storeys to 2 storeys and the
numbers of flats reduced from 12 to 7. The height to the to of the roof would be similar
to the ceiling height of the ground floor flats within Esher House (due to under-croft
parking located below Esher House at the rear and the rear ground level set a storey
lower on Commercial Road than St Leonards Road) and would be lower than the 2 storey
Victorian houses opposite on Commercial Road.
The building would be set back slightly from the pavement providing an element of relief
from the street and the under-croft parking at ground floor would result in a less solid
appearance within the street and provide views through the site to Esher House at
ground level.
The provision of a flat roof to the building is akin to some of the surrounding post war
office buildings in the area, some of which now converted to flats, and facilitates a lower
height to the building and consequently reduced impact on the streetscene.
As such, it is considered that the amended height, scale and bulk of the proposal
are appropriate on this site and reflects the changing surrounding environment,
particularly the change of use of Esher House to residential flats and would thus accord
with the aims of Policies UHT1, UHT4 and UHT15 of the Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy
D10A of the Eastbourne Core Strategy.
Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and surrounding
area:
Policies HO20 of the Eastbourne Local Plan requires new development proposals and
extensions to existing buildings to respect residential amenity. Policy UHT4 states that
proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental impact on visual amenity will be
refused.
Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy seeks to protect the residential and
environmental amenity of existing and future residents.
Policy TC6 of the Town Centre Local Plan requires residential proposals to protect the
amenity of surrounding residential occupiers, provide a mix of different dwelling sizes,
provide outdoor amenity space and adequate bin and recycling storage.
Objections have been received from local residents with regard to loss of light,
overshadowing, siting to close to Esher House, loss of view, overlooking.
The proposed building would provide a typically standard type of development addressing
the street frontage along Commercial Road and set back from the pavement similar to
the houses opposite. The only significant difference is the site is located on land close to

Page 27

the rear of buildings fronting St Leonards Road, mainly Esher House which is now in use
as flats.
The distance between the rear of the proposed building and Esher House is
approximately 12.4 metres. However, as the first floor of the proposed building would be
at the same height as the ground floor flats within Esher House, it is considered that this
separating distance is acceptable and would not result in any significant overlooking to
these flats, unneighbourly development or result in any dominating impact on the
outlook from the flats to the rear of Esher House.
With regard to loss of light, sunlight and overshadowing, due to the orientation of the
site south east of Esher House north west of houses along Commercial Road and the
presence of 2 storey houses with pitched roofs on the opposite site of Commercial Road,
higher than the proposed building, it is considered that the proposed development would
not result in any significant loss of sunlight, daylight or cause any overshadowing to
surrounding residential properties.
With regards to the standard of accommodation, the proposal would provide a good mix
of different dwelling sizes of flats and reasonable sized accommodation.
Bin and cycle storage would be located within the ground floor undercroft area and
reasonable amenity space would be provided for each flat in the form of small private
balconies and gardens.
As such, it is considered that the proposal would not have any significant adverse impact
on surrounding residential amenity and the proposal would accord with Policies HO20 of
the Eastbourne Local Plan, Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and TC6 of the
Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan.
Impacts on highway network or access:
Policy TR11 of the Eastbourne Local plan states that new development must comply with
approved maximum car parking standards as set out in the East Sussex County Council
Highways SPG parking standards.
Using the ESCC Parking Calculator this proposal would need to provide 6 spaces provided
they were all unallocated. In total, 7 parking spaces would be provided for the 7 flats
which is appropriate given the location of the premises within this sustainable town
centre location in an area of high public transport availability close to the train station
and bus routes. Cycle storage facilities would also be provided within the undercroft
parking area to provide 10 cycle spaces.
Concerns have been raised about the potential impact on on-street parking availability
mainly with regard to the displacement of cars that currently park in the application site
during the day. The site is not a public car park and appears to have been used as an
extension to St Mary’s House car parking availability. The site has not historically been
used as a public car park or as an extension to St Mary’s House. As such, it is assumed
that any cars parked on the site do not have any right to do so and thus displacement of
these cars do not form a material consideration in the determination of this application
and should not be considered relevant.

Page 28

In any event, the proposal may result in more commuter cars parking within the
surrounding streets during the day, however, this should not affect local residents
overnight and weekend parking availability. In addition, the surrounding streets have a
maximum capacity and if there is currently no available on-street parking availability
within the surrounding streets, then any commuter cars may be discouraged or pushed
to further afield.
ESCC Highways have been consulted and consider that the provision of the new access
from Commercial Road will require an alteration to be made to the existing parking bay
and double yellow lines and secured by a S106 legal agreement.
As such, it is considered that the proposal would not have any material adverse impact
on on-street parking capacity within the vicinity and would accord with Policy TR11 of the
Eastbourne Local Plan.
Trees:
The Specialist Advisor (Trees) has been consulted and has advised that an elm tree to
the north east boundary with no.52 St Leonards Road may need to be removed to
facilitate the construction of the development. The tree is considered to be a category C
and does not provide any significant landscape value. As the site is not located in a
conservation area and does not benefit from a Tree Preservation Order, the tree could be
removed without planning consent in any event.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application process.
Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact on local people is
set out above. The human rights considerations have been taken into account fully in
balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the proposals will not result in any
breach of the Equalities Act 2010.
Conclusion:
The principle of the proposed development is considered to be acceptable given the office
block has now been converted to residential and the site is not located within a
designated industrial estate and as such, there is now no requirement for the applicants
to demonstrate that the site is still viable for a commercial use.
The proposal would provide a good mix of different dwelling sizes of flats and reasonable
sized accommodation. The design of the building is considered acceptable in this area
and the amended height, scale and bulk of the proposal would be appropriate on this site
and reflects the changing surrounding environment, particularly the change of use of
Esher House to residential flats.
With regards amenity impact, due to the first floor of the proposed building at the same
height as the ground floor flats within Esher House, it is considered that the separating
distance is acceptable and would not result in any significant overlooking, loss of
sunlight, daylight or cause any overshadowing to surrounding residential properties.
The provision of off street parking spaces would comply with the ESCC Parking
Standards in an area of high public transport availability close to the mainline train
station and bus routes, services and local amenities. Subject to conditions and a S106

Page 29

legal agreement to secure the new highway alterations, the proposal is acceptable on
Highway grounds.
The proposed development is therefore considered acceptable and would constitute
sustainable development in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.
Recommendation:
1.Approve subject to conditions and a satisfactory completion of a legal agreement to
satisfy the highway implications of the proposal.
2 If no satisfactory legal agreement is secured (or significant progress towards one)
within 2 months from the date of this committee resolution then the Senior Specialist
Advisor (Planning) be authorised/delegated to refuse planning permission on the grounds
of the highway impacts of the proposal.
Conditions:
1. The development herby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of permission.
Reason: To comply with Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and County Planning Act 1990
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2. The proposed development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved
drawings.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the proposed development is
carried out in accordance with the plans to which the permission relates.
3. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used in the
external surfaces (including boundary treatments and hard surfacing) of the development
hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
++
Reason: To secure that the development is in harmony with the neighbourhood.
4. The development shall not be occupied until details of the landscaping of the site has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The proposals
shall include all hard and soft landscaping and species/sizes of plants. The approved
landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before the
dwellings are first occupied. ++
Reason: in the interests of the visual amenities of the area.
5. Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans hereby approved details of the car
park layout shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The details shall be supplied before the beneficial completion of the
development and shall show tracked access into/out from each space; this may warrant
the removal of the up stand column between spaces 6&7. The development shall not be
occupied until the parking spaces have been provided in accordance with the approved
plans and the areas shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other
than for the parking of motor vehicles.

Page 30

Reason: To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the access
and proceeding along the highway.
6. Notwithstanding the details of shown on the plans hereby approved details of the
secure cycle and refuse storage facility shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority The development shall not be occupied until the secure cycle
parking and refuse storage facility has been provided in accordance with the approved
plans and the facilities shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used
other than for the parking of cycles.
Reason: In order that the development site is accessible by non-car modes and to meet
the objectives of sustainable development.
7. The new access shall be in the position shown on the submitted plan [number D001]
and laid out and constructed in accordance with the attached HT407 form/diagram and
all works undertaken shall be executed and completed by the applicant to the satisfaction
of the Local Planning Authority prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted.
Reason: To ensure the safety of persons and vehicles entering and leaving the access
and proceeding along the highway
8. That no demolition, site clearance or building operations shall take place except
between the hours of 8.00 a.m. and 6.00 p.m. on Mondays to Fridays and 8.00 a.m. and
1.00 p.m. on Saturdays and that no works in connection with the development shall take
place on Sundays or Bank/Public Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality in general and adjoining
residential properties in particular.

Informatives:
- The applicant's attention is drawn to the need for a Section 184 License for the
construction of the access. The applicant should contact ESCC on 01273 482254 prior to
commencement of development to complete the agreement and pay the necessary fee.
- The applicant should note that an Elm tree on the corner boundary of the St Mary’s
House site may require removal to facilitate the development and is advised to contact
East Sussex County Council to determine whether the tree requires removal.

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32

Agenda Item 8

App.No:
150092

Decision Due Date:
1st April 2015

Ward:
Old Town

Officer:
Thea Petts

Site visit date:
26th February 2015

Type:
Planning Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 5th March 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry: 2nd May 2015
Press Notice(s): N/A
Over 8/13 week reason: Planning Committee Cycle
Location: Former The Drive Public House, 153 Victoria Drive, Eastbourne
Proposal: Conversion of first floor residential accommodation to form 1 onebedroom flat and 2 two-bedroom flats with access from the rear
Applicant: Mr Julian Konti
Recommendation: Approve conditionally

Executive Summary:
The application relates to a case which was deferred at the last Planning
Committee meeting because it was thought that details referring to the noise
impact of the plant and machinery associated with the Sainsburys retail store
at ground floor level would need to be assessed before a decision could be
reached.
AT the site the plant and machinery connected to the ground floor use has
been sited upon the flat roof rear extension and shielded from view by a
timber hit and miss fence.
The applicants have commissioned an acoustic report to identify the extent of
the noise impacts that the ground floor use would create. This report
concluded that subject to double glazed windows incorporating trickle vents
are installed then the new residential apartments to the rear would not suffer
any material impacts from the ground floor use. This view is supported by
the Specialist Advisors (Environmental Health).
A condition is recommended to control the installation of double glazed units.
The proposal remains unchanged from that previously reported and relates to
the sub-division of the existing first floor residential unit above the
Sainsburys retail store (previously the “manager’s flat” above ‘The Drive’
public house) into three self-contained flats.

Page 33

The siting, scale and design/appearance of the proposed property is
considered to be appropriate to the predominant character of the area and as
such the proposal is considered to acceptable in principle.
Previous report (June) is attached for information purposes; the
recommendation remains unchanged save for an additional condition
controlling the installation of appropriate windows to mitigate against noise
pollution from the existing plant and machinery.
Planning Status:
Residential unit above Sainsbury’s retail store (previously ‘The Drive’
public house)
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework 2012
1. Building a stong, competitive economy
2. Ensuring the vitality of town centres
3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy
4. Promoting sustainable transport
5. Supporting high quality communications infrastructure.
6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
7. Requiring good design
8. Promoting healthy communities
9. Protecting green belt land
10. Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
11. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
13. Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals
Core Strategy Local Plan 2013 Policies
B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
C4: Old Town Neighbourhood Policy
D1: Sustainable Development
D10a: Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
HO2 Predominantly Residential Areas
HO20: Residential Amenity
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT4: Visual Amenity
Site Description:
Victoria Drive is formed predominantly of residential properties of a
substantial size with street trees appearing at intervals along the pavements.

Page 34

153 Victoria Drive (former Drive Public House) occupies the corner plot
where Beechy Avenue meets Victoria Drive, on the west side of Victoria
Drive. Adjacent to the site are the junctions of Milton Road and Victoria Drive
and Green Street and Victoria Drive. South of no. 153 is a bowling club with
associated car park.
The property was most recently used as a pub with residential unit
(Managers flat) above, although it was last occupied and used as such some
time ago.
The ground floor of the property is currently under refurbishment as a
Sainsburys retail store. The building has a hip-to-pitch roof and a number of
dormer windows at first floor level to the front, rear and south side. The
principal building is set back from the road, with a substantial hard surfaced
area to the front and sides, used formerly as pub car park.
Relevant Planning History:
There is an extensive planning history for the site with majority relating to
the former Public House. The most recent applications relating to the
Sainsburys scheme are listed below:
120758
Installation of ATM to front elevation together with extension of roof
overhang
Planning Permission - Approved conditionally, 03/04/2013
130124
Ventilation and extraction units
Planning Permission - Approved conditionally, 21/05/2013
130125
Exterior alterations and modifications
Planning Permission - Approved conditionally, 30/05/2013
130128
Re-grading of existing car park and redesign of layout, remodelling of
existing ramp to front entrance, and remodelling of access steps and wall to
rear
Planning Permission - Refused, 11/06/2013
130129
Demolition of conservatory and infilling side elevation at ground floor level
Planning Permission - Approved conditionally, 29/05/2013
130225
Remove and reconstruction of boundary y wall, provision for hard
landscaping, parking and bollards

Page 35

Planning Permission - Withdrawn, 02/05/2013
130261
Conversion of first floor pub into 2.No. two bedroom self-contained flats,
1.No. one bedroom self-contained flats
Planning Permission - Withdrawn, 02/05/2013
130304
Fascia signs.
Advertisement - Advert Approved, 03/09/2013
Proposed development:
The applicant seeks permission to reconfigure the layout of the first floor of
the property to create provision for three self-contained units to replace the
existing single unit.
The scheme proposes the inclusion of one flat with one bedroom and two
flats with two bedrooms which are to be accessed from the rear of the
building via an external staircase.
•
•
•

1 x 2 bed approx. 93sqm
1 x 2 bedroom approx. 60 sqm
1 x 1 bedroom approx. 50 sqm

There are no external alterations proposed as part of the development.
Consultations:
Internal:
Specialist Advisor (Environmental Health) – no comment
External:
Highways ESCC – Report dated 8th May (excerpt):
The current residential use which could continue without any further
consent would create a demand for 1-2 parking spaces and the
proposal would create demand for 3-4 spaces based on local car
ownership levels. The increase that would be created would therefore
only be 1-2 cars.
Although the surrounding streets are well used for on street parking,
as the increase is so minor it is unlikely that there would not be at
least 2 free on street spaces within reasonable walking distance of the
site. It is also noted that the area is reasonably well served by buses
and has a number of shops, services, schools, etc. which limits the
need to travel beyond walking distance.
As with all applications the test for highway related issues is whether
a severe impact would be created by the development. In this case it
is not considered that such an impact would result and therefore I do
not wish to restrict grant of consent.
(Condition recommended with regards to cycle parking)

Page 36

Neighbour Representations:
No objections have been received. Two general comments have been made
and one comment of support have been received. These representations
cover the following points:
- Lack of parking provision could impact the surrounding area
- No objection to proposal in principal
- General support of proposal
Appraisal:
Principle of development:
There is no objection in principle to the proposed development provided it
would be designed to a high standard, respect the established character of
the area and would not have an adverse effect on the amenity, the character
of a listed building or conservation area in accordance with policies of the
Core Strategy 2013, and saved policies of the Borough Plan 2007.
Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and
surrounding area:
Policy HO20 of the Eastbourne Local Plan requires new development
proposals and extensions to existing buildings to respect residential amenity.
Policy B2 and Policy D1 of the Core Strategy seeks to protect the residential
and environmental amenity and natural and built environment of existing and
future residents.
Historically, the first floor of the property has been used as a residential unit.
Although two units are to be added as part of this development, it is not
considered that it will result in over development of the site.
The scheme submitted initially was to include provision for a fourth studio
unit. It was requested that this unit be removed and the space integrated
into the remaining three units as the quality of this proposed studio unit
(with a considerable proportion located under the skeiling) was not
considered likely to provide a good enough standard of accommodation.
Since its integration and the subsequent reconfiguration of the proposed
layout, the scheme is considered to offer a suitable standard of
accommodation.
Some concern has been raised with regards to the lack of parking provision.
Although there may be an increase of cars parked on the roads near the
property, other reasonable transport links do exist in this location. As such,
and in accordance with the recommendation from East Sussex County
Council Highways, a condition shall be placed on the permission which will
ensure that adequate cycle parking provision is made prior to the occupation
of the units. This should encourage occupiers to use alternative means of
transport.

Page 37

The access to the flats via external steps to the rear has been in situ
historically. However, under its previous use the first floor was also
accessible by way of an internal staircase. As this internal staircase will no
longer be available, and with an increase of units at first floor level, there is
likely to be an increase in use of this access. It is possible that this may have
an impact on the adjacent property to the rear of no. 153, namely 1 Beechy
Avenue. The base of the staircase is located approximately 11.8m from the
boundary shared with 1 Beechy Avenue. As such, the access in itself is not
considered to have a detrimental effect on the amenity of the occupier of the
adjacent property. However, as there is to be an area of flat roof alongside
the rear access, in addition to the platform which leads from the top of the
stairs to the two external doors, a condition will be applied to the permission
which will prevent this area from being used as an amenity area. This will
ensure that the area is used on a transitory basis for accessing and leaving
the property and will therefore avoid causing harm to the amenity of 1
Beechy Avenue.
Design issues:
Policy D10a of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and Policy UHT1 of the
Eastbourne Local Plan state that proposals will be required to harmonise with
the appearance and character of the local area and be appropriate in scale,
form, materials (preferably locally sourced), setting, alignment and layout.
Policy UHT4 states that proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental
impact on visual amenity will be refused. In relation to this, Policy B2 of the
Eastbourne Core Strategy seeks to create an attractive, safe and clean built
environment with a sense of place that is distinctive and reflects local
character.
The proposed scheme does not include any alterations to the external
appearance of the building. As such, there will not be any resultant design
implications on the street-scene.
The layout of the three proposed units is considered to offer an acceptable
quality of accommodation to prospective occupiers. Although the second
bedroom of the smaller two bedroom unit is quite small, it is considered
appropriate for a small child or as a study/office. The remaining bedrooms of
the development are considered acceptable to spacious in size. Although in
some of the rooms, the low skeiling will result in the loss of some floor space,
it is not considered that this loss of space will result in a poor standard of
accommodation.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the
impact on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations
have been taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and

Page 38

furthermore the proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act
2010.
Conclusion:
The proposed scheme is considered to work in line with the aforementioned
policies, both preserving the established character and appearance of the
area and not posing a threat to the residential amenity of the area.
Recommendation:
Approve conditionally
Conditions:
1) The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of permission.
Reason: To comply with Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and County
Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved drawings submitted on 27th January 2015 and 4th
April 2015 respectively:
• 12-0106/PL74, Site Location and Block Plan
• 12-0106/PL73, Elevations
• 12-0106/PL71, Floor Plans
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the
development is carried out in accordance with the plans to which the
permission relates
3) Access to the flat roof adjacent to the principal accesses to the units
hereby approved shall be for maintenance or emergency purposes only
and the flat roof shall not be used as a roof garden, terrace, patio or
similar amenity area. Nor shall this access and ancillary staircase be
used as a balcony, patio, roof garden or similar amenity area at any
time.
Reason: In order to protect adjoining properties from overlooking and
noise disturbance, safeguarding the amenities of the occupiers/users
of neighbouring plots/properties
4) The development shall not be occupied until cycle parking areas have
been provided in accordance with details which have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority and the areas
shall thereafter be retained for that use and shall not be used other
than for the parking of cycles.
Reason: In order that the development site is accessible by non-car
modes and to meet the objectives of sustainable development.

Page 39

5) The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until
recommendations contained within the acoustic report no.
AS8378.150616.NIA dated 16th June 2015 and submitted as part of
the application are met.
Reason: To ensure that noise levels experienced internally at the
property do not exceed recommendations made by the World Health
Organisation and complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Page 40

Agenda Item 9

App.No:
150369

Decision Due Date:
4th July 2015

Ward:
Ratton

Officer:
Thea Petts

Site visit date:
2nd June 2015

Type:
Householder

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 7th June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry: 7th June 2015
Press Notice(s): N/A
Over 8/13 week reason: N/A
Location: 280 Kings Drive, Eastbourne
Proposal: Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear
Applicant: Mr Ball
Recommendation: Approve conditionally

Executive Summary:
The proposal is to enlarge this semi-detached dwelling by way of a two
storey extension to the side and single storey extension to the rear. The
ground floor element of the side extension is to accommodate an annexe
which is to be dependent on the main dwellinghouse.
Planning Status:
Residential property located in a predominantly residential area
Constraints:
Archaeological Notification Area
Prehistoric wetlands
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework 2012
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Building a stong, competitive economy
Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Supporting a prosperous rural economy
Promoting sustainable transport
Supporting high quality communications infrastructure.
Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes
Requiring good design
Promoting healthy communities
Protecting green belt land

Page 41

10.
11.
12.
13.

Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment
Conserving and enhancing the historic environment
Facilitating the sustainable use of minerals

Core Strategy Local Plan 2013 Policies
B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
C12: Ratton & Willingdon Village Neighbourhood Policy
D1: Sustainable Development
D10: Historic Environment
D10a: Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
HO2 Predominantly Residential Areas
HO20: Residential Amenity
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT4: Visual Amenity
Site Description:
Kings Drive is a long road running from Ratton Ward southeast to form the
Ward boundary between Upperton and St. Anthony’s Ward. The section of
the road in Ratton Ward is typified by the predominance of detached
dwellings on both sides of the road.
Close to the boundary with Hampden Park Ward, Decoy Drive joins Kings
Drive. 280 Kings Drive occupies the corner plot to the southeast of this
junction. The dwellinghouse is semi-detached and benefits from a large
garden which extends from the front around the side (adjacent to Decoy
Drive) and to the rear. There is a detached double and area of hard surfacing
and a garage situated at the end of the rear garden which is accessed via a
dropped kerb on Decoy Drive. There is substantial mature vegetation and a
fence to the side Decoy Drive boundary and hedges to the front. There is a
fence (no higher than 1.5m) separating the two front gardens and another
fence (no higher than 1.8m) separating the two rear gardens.
To the front and side, the principal dwellinghouse is rendered on the first
floor and has exposed two-tone brickwork on the ground floor. Exposed
brickwork frames the first floor windows and marks the corners of the
building. There is a square bay which protrudes forward of the principal
elevation at ground level, the roof of which is hipped and tiled. 278 Kings
Drive, the adjoining property, mirrors the design features of no. 280 and the
roof which covers the two properties is hip to pitch.
The rear of the property is finished with exposed brickwork. There is a small
rendered ground floor protrusion currently to the rear; again this is mirrored
on the adjoining property. In addition, there is a small patio area to the rear

Page 42

which is slightly higher than garden level; this is also the case on the
adjoining property, no. 278.
Relevant Planning History:
EB/1977/0356 DET DBL GARAGE Approved Unconditionally, 1977-08-31
030132 Erection of fence along north-western and northern boundaries
Planning Permission - Approved unconditionally, 12/05/2003
Proposed development:
The applicant seeks permission to demolish the small rear protrusion and
extend the dwellinghouse to the rear (single storey) and side (two storeys).
The development will include: provision for an annexe (ground floor of side
extension), reconfiguration of the existing ground floor layout (to include an
open plan kitchen and dining area with an additional W.C. and utility area)
and creation of an additional bedroom with en-suite bathroom on the first
floor.
As part of the reconfiguration of the internal ground floor layout, the existing
dining room to the front of the house is to become the living room and the
existing living room and kitchen are to be extended into the single storey
rear addition (with three rooflights above and bifolding doors to the rear) to
provide a large open plan room.
The two storey side extension is to extend approximately 3.75m outwards
from the existing side wall and will match the width of the existing side
elevation (11.3m). The eaves level (5.4m) and ridge height (9.2m) of the
existing dwellinghouse are to be matched by the new addition. The render,
tiling and brickwork are also to match the existing materials. From the new
extended rear elevation, a single storey ground floor extension is to be built.
This addition is to be nearly the full width of the rear elevation (9.55m) with
the side wall to be less than 0.2m from the boundary shared with no. 278.
The structure is to extend 3m beyond the rear wall of the dwellinghouse, will
have a mono-pitch roof with an eaves height of approximately 2.45m and full
height of 3.65m.
Consultations:
Internal: None
External:
County Archaeologist – Response dated 29th May 2015:
Although this application is situated within an Archaeological
Notification Area, I do not believe that any significant archaeological
remains are likely to be affected by these proposals. For this reason I
have no further recommendations to make in this instance.
Neighbour Representations:
Two objections have been received and cover the following points:

Page 43

•
•
•
•
•

Loss of light to the living room due to the presence of rear extension
Loss of privacy – proximity of rear extension to adjoining neighbour’s
living room
Request that no windows are permitted on side wall of rear extension
(facing 278 Kings Drive), if permission is granted
Request that roof height be reduced
Planning process and development causing worry to adjoining
neighbour

Appraisal:
Principle of development:
There is no objection in principle to making alterations to the building
provided it would be designed to a high standard, respect the established
character of the area and would not have an adverse effect on the amenity,
the character of a listed building or conservation area in accordance with
policies of the Core Strategy 2013, and saved policies of the Borough Plan
2007.
Design issues:
Policy D10a of the Eastbourne Core Strategy and Policy UHT1 of the
Eastbourne Local Plan state that proposals will be required to harmonise with
the appearance and character of the local area and be appropriate in scale,
form, materials (preferably locally sourced), setting, alignment and layout.
Policy UHT4 states that proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental
impact on visual amenity will be refused. In addition, Policy B1 of the
Eastbourne Core Strategy provides the spatial vision and strategic objectives
which seek to ensure that future growth in Eastbourne is delivered at an
appropriate level and in a sustainable manner and Policy B2 seeks to create
an attractive, safe and clean built environment with a sense of place that is
distinctive and reflects local character.
The proposed development looks to maintain the established character and
appearance of the dwellinghouse and adjoining building by maintaining the
roof height, replicating design features (e.g. bay to front) and external wall
treatments using matching materials. Although the building will increase in
terms of scale, this will not be discordant to the size of the plot in which it
stands. Therefore, it is not considered that the proposed scheme will have a
negative effect on the design of the host dwelling, adjoining dwelling or wider
area.
Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and
surrounding area:
Policy HO20 of the Eastbourne Local Plan requires new development
proposals and extensions to existing buildings to respect residential amenity.
Policy B2 of the Core Strategy seeks to protect the residential and
environmental amenity of existing and future residents. Policy D10 seeks to
preserve and protect heritage assets.

Page 44

The side extension element of the proposal will not present any issues with
regards to overlooking or disruption of privacy, as this elevation is adjacent
to a road and has mature vegetation and a substantial fence to prevent this
from being a problem.
The rear extension is also not considered to present any issues with regards
to overlooking as no windows are proposed for the side elevation facing
adjoining property, 278 Kings Drive. However, a condition will be attached to
the permission to ensure that no window is ever installed in this elevation
without permission from the planning authority.
In an attempt to mitigate the impact of the proposal the extension has been
reduced in height from 4m as originally proposed to 3.65m now. It is
considered that this reduction in height and the rear extension is acceptable.
The inclusion of an annexe within the proposal is not considered to
overdevelop the site. It is dependent on the main house, and as such does
not raise concerns with regards to residential amenity.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the
impact on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations
have been taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and
furthermore the proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act
2010.
Conclusion:
By virtue of the proposed design and materials, it is considered that the
proposed development will harmonise with the existing building, adjoining
building and wider area. In addition, the development is not considered to
negatively impact the amenity of neighbours. This is further supported by the
fact that certain alterations have been made to lessen the impact the
development could have on the adjoining neighbour. As such, it is concluded
that the proposed development works in line with national guidelines and the
aforementioned local policies.
Recommendation:
Approve conditionally
Conditions:
1) The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To ensure that the Local Planning Authority retains the right
to review unimplemented permissions and to comply with Section 51
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Page 45

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved drawings no. 1514/03 Rev. A submitted on 5th June
2015 and drawings no. 1514/04 and 1514/05 submitted on 2nd April
2015.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the
development is carried out in accordance with the plans to which the
permission relates
3) The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match
in material, colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing
building.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in
the interests of the visual amenities of the area
4) Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any order
revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no
window, dormer window, rooflight or door other than those expressly
authorised by this permission shall be constructed on the east
elevation (facing 278 Kings Drive) without planning permission
obtained from the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby
properties
5) The living accommodation hereby permitted shall not be occupied at
any time other than for purposes ancillary and incidental to the
residential use of the dwelling known as 280 Kings Drive and shall not
be let or sold separately.
Reason: To ensure that the use of the premises remains that of a
single private dwelling and in the view of the fact that the provision of
a separate unit would result in an over-development of the site without
additional and separate parking and would be out of character with
adjoining development.

Page 46

Agenda Item 10

App.No:
150484 (PPP)

Decision Due Date:
23 July 2015

Ward: Hampden
Park

Officer:
Jane Sabin

Site visit date:
22 June 2015

Type: Planning
Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 22 June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry:

22 June 2015

Press Notice(s):

N/A

Over 8/13 week reason:

N/A

Location: The Old Rifle Range, Hampden Park, Hampden Park Drive
Proposal: Formation of a BMX pump track adjacent to the skate park.
Applicant:

Clark and Kent Contractors

Recommendation:

Approve

Executive summary:
The proposed provision of a BMX track is considered to be a suitable development for a
public park, and would provide enhanced facilities for young people. The development
would comply with local and national policies.
Planning Status:
Archaeological Notification Area
Willingdon Levels Catchment Area
Flood zone 3
Public amenity space
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan Policies 2013
B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
C7: Hampden Park Neighbourhood Policy
D7: Community, Sport and Health
D10A: Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
NE18: Noise
NE28: Environmental Amenity
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT4: Visual Amenity

Page 47

UHT8: Protection of Amenity Space
HO20: Residential Amenity
LCF2: Resisting Loss of Playing Fields
US4: Flood Protection and Surface Water Disposal
Site Description:
The application site is located on the disused rifle range in the centre of Hampden Park,
along the southern boundary of the public tennis courts and immediately adjacent to the
recently constructed skate park.
Relevant Planning History:
140688 Installation of a concrete plaza-style skate park including a concrete bowl
Approved conditionally 17 July 2014
Proposed development:
Planning permission is now sought to construct a BMX pump track on the remainder of
the old rifle range. It would cover an area approximately 57m by 35m and would consist
of a continuous, meandering and undulating track of gravel and tarmac contained within
grassed berms, with a maximum height of 1.5m. No artificial lighting is proposed.
As background to the application, the following information has been provided:
As part of the 2014/15 growth bid, Cabinet agreed to fund a new BMX track. The location
was originally going to be the site adjacent to St Wilfrids Hospice which already has some
dirt ramps but the location was switched to the Old Rifle Range as it would (i) create an
extreme play zone within Hampden Park as it would be next to the new concrete skate
park (ii) it would be more central for its users, as oppose to the dirt ramps which are on
the periphery of the park (iii) it would save the Council an annual rental charge from East
Sussex County Council as they own the dirt ramp land. The switch in location was also
mentioned by the Friends of Hampden Park at the Planning Committee for the concrete
skate park as there was a wider discussion on the merits of the Old Rifle Range being
used for leisure activity. There have been no complaints of noise from the skate park
which is a concrete base with hard wheels. The BMX track will predominately be gravel
and a few areas of tarmac but being a cycle track will only have rubber tyres using it.
The delivery of this was planned to be summer 2015 so that it could avoid clashes with
the long football season and be ready for the summer holiday. The company were
procured through the Council’s contract procurement rules and were the same company
that constructed the London 2012 Olympic BMX track.
Consultations:
Internal:
Specialist Advisor (Arboriculture) advises that the site is situated outside the root
protection area of all the trees surrounding the site and therefore should have no effect
on the trees adjacent to the proposed site providing conditions are attached to provide
adequate protection.
Specialist Advisor (Open Spaces) – in response to the objections raised (see Neighbour
Representations below):
• There is no evidence that the skaters, BMX’ers or general skate park users are
committing vandalism or vandalism has increased as a result of the location of the

Page 48

skate park. The incident reported to the Council was one of youths playing football
on the bowling green, not bikes on the green.
•

The Council has secured the outside of the top green with defensive, thorny shrubs
and is currently obtaining costs to improve the fencing to the lower green so it
matches the top green and tennis courts in the locality. The site is patrolled by
Neighbourhood First and also has the benefit of being a well-used park, with good
natural surveillance from other users.

•

BMX riders are currently using the concrete skate park site and this has been
observed; there is clear evidence of this from tyre marks on the concrete ramps.
The tyres will not cause damage to the compacted gravel footpaths and would only
cause damage to the grassed areas if a precise route was used every day over a
period of time. There will be significantly more damage caused to the grassed
areas by the sports of football and rugby, by the nature of these games and the
winter conditions they are played in.

•

The proposed site is located in a position adjacent to other sports and is more
central so will benefit from greater natural surveillance. There is no evidence of
significant damage or reports of conflict between other users of the park and the
BMX’ers who currently use the skate park. Motorcycles and quad bikes have not
used the existing site and if they were to, they have the risk having their vehicles
confiscated and destroyed by the police.

•

There is no current conflict as a result of BMX’ers using the skate park site. A new
bound gravel footpath is being created to gain access from Ham Shaw wood to the
area to create a pedestrian through route and improve natural surveillance of the
area. This is as a result of the recommendations from the police when the skate
park was agreed for its present site. There is already a chicane between the
outdoor bowling greens and the play area, where cyclists must dismount. This was
as a result of general cycling in the park many years ago and the risk of a collision
between a bike and children leaving the play area. A further chicane could be
installed to slow bikes where any risk was identified and/or a new footpath
installed on the field side of the Indoor Bowls Club which would also improve
accessibility, generally, to and around the sports pitches and link to the new
footpath accessing the skate park.

•

To invest Council funding heavily on land that is leased from another organisation
presents some risks. There is nothing to evidence that the building and
maintenance of the BMX track will add significant costs. The increase in costs of
reimbursements to other users implies that the users of the facility are anti-social
in their nature and will vandalise nearby facilities. The increase in facilities for
other sports groups should not have a negative effect on other park users and
some can be seen, elsewhere, to be watching the tricks and skills displayed by
BMX riders, skate boarders, scooters and skates.

External:
Neighbour Representations:
One objection has been received from the Hampden Park Bowling Association and covers
the following points:

Page 49

•

Security of the greens and clubhouse; there has already been an increase in
vandalism and intrusion since the skate-park was formed, which will inevitably
become more frequent with youngsters drawn in by the BMX track. The park is not
is not regularly or effectively patrolled/policed. The club would be unable to fund
serious damage repairs, to the detriment of the park.

•

The nature of BMX is radically different from skate-boarding, and the damage from
tyres more intensive and difficult to repair. They are used all year round in all
weathers and on all terrain; extensive damage can be expected to paths, to Ham
Shaw wood and all open areas, spoiling the enjoyment and attraction of the park
for other users. Relocating this amenity from its existing site for a relatively few
users will destroy the facilities enjoyed by the vast majority.

•

All uses in the park are based on people coming to the park to use facilities in situ;
BMX bikes will be ridden from home to the track, damaging turf indiscriminately
through the park; we suggest that this will open the way to more extreme sports
motor cycle jumping and quad biking for which the BMX track will be equally
attractive, and EBC would have no realistic means of preventing such use.

•

The track would be located in the centre of the park, close to the childrens play
area, the indoor bowls club, the tennis club and the outdoor bowls club, the paths
to which are heavily used; the uncontrolled riding of BMX’s in these areas will
make them unsafe and result in accidents and conflict.

•

The reason of cost savings from relocating the track to EBC owned land would be
dwarfed by the additional and permanent costs of installing and maintaining the
track, and the costs caused to others from damage. The success of a community
facility is the extent to which it is used; the park is extremely popular and wellused, and it would be a retrograde step to install a use which makes it less
attractive, safe and pleasant.

Three representations of support have been received and cover the following point:
• It brings young people into the heart of the park and maximises their interest in
the Hampden Park Community
Appraisal:
The principle of providing facilities for young people in a public park is welcomed and
complies with local and national policies.
The main issues to take into account in determining the application are the impacts on
visual and residential amenity, and the environment.
Visual amenity
The location of the proposed track adjacent to the skate park is considered appropriate in
terms of impact on visual amenity. Although it would cover a larger area than the skate
park, the relatively low heights and materials of gravel, tarmac and grass would have
less of an effect than the concrete ramps. Parks comprise many different facilities which
have an impact on visual amenity and Hampden Park is no exception; there are large
buildings such as the bowling and rugby clubs, hard tennis courts and their associated

Page 50

high fencing, the brightly coloured playground equipment, all of which assimilate into the
landscape and become accepted over time.
Residential amenity
The nearest residential properties are located in Rosebery Avenue, which are in excess of
200m away. There have been no complaints in respect of the skate park facility, which
would be louder in terms of noise generated by the equipment – hard wheels on concrete
- compared to the proposed BMX’s rubber tyres on tarmac and gravel. Any additional
noise would be principally generated by the users themselves, and would be subsumed in
the general noise of the park and associated facilities, playground, tennis courts and
football pitches.
Impacts on the environment:
There are no trees affected by the proposal. Any protection required for adjacent trees
during construction work will be safeguarded by condition.
Surveys have confirmed that there would be no impacts on the ecology of this part of the
park.
The impact on the wider park environment would largely derive from the additional cycle
traffic travelling to and from the proposed track. The Specialist Advisor (Open Spaces)
clearly considers the impact will be minimal, as the BMX users are already in the park,
and the skate park.
Impacts on highway network or access:
It is considered that there would not be any impact on highway safety. The track
provided for the construction of the skate park construction traffic still in situ and will be
used for this scheme.
Other matters:
As part of the skate park application, the old rifle range was assessed in respect of
archaeology, contamination and noise. As a result, the whole rifle range was cleared of
contamination, with no other works were deemed necessary, therefore no conditions
would be required to control these issues.
No lighting is proposed as part of this application. If floodlighting is proposed at a future
date, this would require planning permission, and would be assessed at that time.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application process.
Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact on local people is
set out above. The human rights considerations have been taken into account fully in
balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the proposals will not result in any
breach of the Equalities Act 2010.
Conclusion:
The proposed provision of a BMX track is considered to be a suitable development for a
public park, and would provide enhanced facilities for young people. The development
would comply with local and national policies.

Page 51

Recommendation:

Approve

Conditions:
1. Commencement within three years
2. Development in accordance with approved plans
3. Tree protection
4. No changes in soil levels within the root spread of the trees
5. Submission of details of access route, site office and materials storage
Appeal:
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to be followed,
taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is considered to be
written representations.

Page 52

Agenda Item 11

App.No:
150471 (PPP)

Decision Due Date:
17 June 2015

Ward:
St Anthonys

Officer:
Toby Balcikonis

Site visit date:
15 June 2015

Type: Planning
Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date:
Neighbour Con Expiry: N/A
Press Notice(s): N/A
Over 8/13 week reason: The application is within date
Location: Langney CP School, Chailey Close, Eastbourne
Proposal: Proposed temporary single classroom, ramp and steps.
Applicant: East Sussex County Council
Recommendation: No Objection

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The application is being made on behalf of East Sussex County Council’s Children’s
Services (ESCC CS) for the grant of a temporary 5 year permission for the addition of 1
no. temporary ‘mobile’ classroom at Langney Primary School due to an increase in pupil
enrolment resulting in the need for additional teaching accommodation.
It is recommended that no objection be granted to the siting of the proposed classroom,
as it is considered not to result in unacceptable impact to visual or residential amenity
and will satisfy the current fluctuation in enrolment numbers in the school.
Relevant Planning Policies:
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2006-2027
C8: Langney Neighbourhood Policy
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT4: Visual Amenity
HO20: Residential Amenity

Site Description:
This 1950’s primary school is located at the end of Chailey Close, and is bounded by
residential properties (Etchingham Road, Marsden Road, Keymer Close and Redford
Close) on three sides, and Bishop Bell School the East.

Page 53

Relevant Planning History:
110536 Installation of mobile classroom unit and associated works. Application is for
planning permission until August 2016. County Council - No Objection 07/10/2011
140709 Erection of three tensile canopies. Planning Permission Approved conditionally
09/07/2014
Proposed development:
Consent is required for the siting of a temporary ‘mobile’ classroom with a footprint of
approximately 66m2 to be positioned between an existing temporary building (the
subject of previous application ref: 110536) and the existing school building. The new
temporary structure would be located adjacent to the staff carpark adjacent to the
Northern Boundary shared with the residential properties of Redford Close, Marsden Road
and Keymer Close respectively.
The external textured wall finishes would be ‘Essex Green’ with timber ‘hit and miss’
boarding below floor level. Windows would be white UPVC units throughout with doors
constructed of aluminium with toughened glass with the roof being of a shallow pitch and
be covered with a single layer membrane with a grey finish.
The structure would be raised from the adjacent floor level and accessed via timber steps
and ramp with matching timber railings.
Applicant’s Points:
• Langney Primary is a small school which has seen its admission numbers grow due
to parental preferences and development in the area.
• There is a need to provide additional teaching accommodation within the site.
• Existing pupil numbers 464 and proposed pupil numbers is 490
• The additional accommodation will enable the school to arrange its year groups in
a more coherent manner.
• The chosen location is a vacant piece of land and will result in no loss of important
play space.
The proposal would enable the school to provide adequate teaching accommodation for a
rising annual intake of students, while assessing the long term need for permanent
classroom provision. The applicant recognizes the temporary nature of the proposed
building and is seeking a 5 year permission.
Consultations:
No objections to the proposal have been received.
Appraisal:
Principle of development:
There is no objection in principal to the siting of a temporary classroom in the location,
with the principal for development established with an existing adjacent unit (dealt with
under application ref: 110536) situated in a position of far greater impact to the
proposed.

Page 54

The proposed temporary unit will enable the school sufficient additional teaching
accommodation to cope with the ‘bulge’ in student applications, and allow for sufficient
opportunity to assess whether a longer term solution is required.
The proposed siting is considered to be acceptable, and will have minimal impact on
visual amenity, located between the existing school building and a previously permitted
temporay structure located approximately 2m from the boundary with 20 Keymer Close.
At just over 3.5 metres in height, the new structure is not considered to result in any
unacceptable impact to visual or residential amenity, located at a distance of just under
19.5 metres from the rear boundaries of the neighbouring properties to the North.
In addition the cumulative impacts of installing an additional temporary classroom in the
location are not considered to be unacceptable.
Human Rights Implications:
The siting of the unit will have a limited impact on the surrounding residential properties,
but not so severe as to warrant a refusal.
Conclusion:
The proposed temporary classroom should not result in any unacceptable impact to
visual or residential amenity in accordance with the Policies UHT1, UHT 4 and HO20 of
the Eastbourne Borough Plan 2007 (Saved Policies) and will satisfy the current
fluctuation in enrolment numbers in the school.
Recommendation:
It is recommended that no objection be raised to the current proposal.

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Agenda Item 12

App.No:
150457 (PPP)

Decision Due Date:
1 July 2015

Ward:
Devonshire

Officer:
Richard Elder

Site visit date:
25 June 2015

Type: Planning
Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 12 June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry: 12 June 2015
Press Notice(s): n/a
Over 8/13 week reason: Referred to planning committee
Location: Seaside Garage, 10-16 Fairlight Road, Eastbourne
Proposal: Demolition of existing garage and construction of 4 x 3
bedroom, 2 storey terraced houses. (Amended description).
Applicant: Mr Russell
Recommendation: Approved conditionally
Executive Summary:

It is considered that the design, appearance and siting of the proposed houses is
acceptable and the scale and bulk is appropriate for the area and would not have
an overbearing impact on surrounding occupiers.
The proposed layout adopts a standard terrace layout similar to the adjacent
terraces and thus would not result in any significant overlooking or loss of privacy
or loss of sunlight or daylight to surrounding properties. As such, it is considered
that the proposal would not adversely harm surrounding residential amenity.
The reinstatement of the dropped kerb and footway would result in an additional
4 on-street parking spaces along the frontage of the site. Although, this is just
under what would be required for the proposed houses, it is considered that there
is currently no significant existing on-street parking stress within the surrounding
streets.
As such, it is considered that subject to conditions, the proposed development
would enhance the character and appearance of the local area and would accord
with local and national planning policy.

Page 57

Planning Status:
Predominantly residential area
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan Policies 2013
B1 Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution Sustainable Centre
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
D1: Sustainable Development
C3: Seaside Neighbourhood Policy
D5: Housing Low Value Neighbourhood
D10: Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT2: Height of Buildings
UHT4: Visual Amenity
HO1: Residential Development within the Existing Built-up Area
HO6: Infill Development
HO20: Residential Amenity
TR11: Transport and Parking
Site Description:
A 2 storey car repair garage located on the east side of Fairlight Road within a
predominantly residential road close to Seaside. The garage building occupies
most of the site area except for a recessed area to the front forecourt at ground
level. The building abuts an access alley to the north and east sides and the side
boundary to no.8 Fairlight Road.
The local area is dominated by 2 storey terrace houses with small rear gardens.
Relevant Planning History:
EB/1993/0180 Change of use of an existing flat above the garage to office and
office store. Granted, subject to conditions. 1993-06-24
070290 Conversion of first floor offices above garage into two studio flats
Planning Permission Refused 05/02/2008
Proposed development:
Demolition of existing garage and construction of 4 x 3 bedroom, 2 storey
terraced houses. The proposed houses would incorporate pitched tiled roofs,
hipped to the end houses, and 2 storey rear projections with pitched roofs. The
houses would measure 11.2 metres deep to the end of the rear projection, 5
metres wide, 5.85 metres high to the eaves and 8.6 metres to the top of the roof
ridge.

Page 58

Private rear gardens measuring approximately 5.9 metres long and 6 metres wide
would be provided for each house. A small front garden would be provided for
each house together with a front path to the front entrance door. The end houses
would benefit from a private side path.
Consultations:
Internal:
Specialist Advisor (Planning Policy) – No objection on Policy grounds. Community
Infrastructure Levy not required due to the gross floor area of the existing garage
exceeding that of the proposed houses.
External:
Highways ESCC – No objection subject to conditions.
Neighbour Representations:
1 objection and 2 letters of observation/comment have been received and cover
the following points:
- Highway safety concerns with additional on-street parking.
- Demolition would cause dust and asbestos may be present.
- Access difficult through narrow Fairlight Road for construction or emergency
vehicles.
Appraisal:
Principle of development:
The National Planning Policy Framework is clear that sustainable residential
development should be granted planning permission to ensure greater choice of
housing in the local market and to meet local and national housing needs. The
site has not been formally identified for development within the Council’s
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment, therefore would be a windfall
site. The Council relies on windfall sites coming forward as part of its spatial
development strategy (Policy B1 of the Core Strategy Local Plan).
Paragraph 17 of The National Planning Policy Framework 2012 states that Local
Planning Authorities should encourage the effective use of land by reusing land
that has been previously developed (brownfield land), provided that it is not of
high environmental value.
The site is not located within a designated industrial area and thus demonstration
of viability is not required for the loss of the use.
Therefore, the principle of development is acceptable and the main considerations
in the determination of this application are the acceptability of the proposal on
the character and appearance of the street scene, surrounding residential
amenity, loss of the commercial use associated and highway implications.

Page 59

Design, Siting, Scale and Layout:
Policy UHT1 of the Eastbourne Local Plan states that proposals will be required to
harmonise with the appearance and character of the local area and use
appropriate materials (preferably locally sourced). Policy UHT4 states that
proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental impact on visual amenity will
be refused.
Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy seeks to create an attractive, safe and
clean built environment with a sense of place that is distinctive and reflects local
character.
The design of the houses are of a simple traditional style incorporating pitched
tiled roofs with top hung casement windows and french doors to the ground floor
rear in keeping with the appearance of the houses within the street and
constructed of materials in keeping with the character and appearance of the
surrounding area and would be conditioned as such. The houses would follow the
existing front building line to the east side of Fairlight Road providing a small
front garden similar to adjacent houses.
The overall scale of the 4 houses would be similar to that of surrounding buildings
and would be appropriate for the site and locality. The separating distance
between the houses to the rear along Latimer Road would be increased and the
area to the rear significantly opened up due to the existing buildings extending to
the back of the site. Similarly, the houses would be set in from the side
boundaries with the north alley way and the side boundary with no 8 Fairlight
Road providing an additional element of development relief and openness.
As such, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable and would
enhance the character or appearance of the local area in accordance with Policies
UHT1 and UHT4 of the Eastbourne Local Plan and B2 of the Eastbourne Core
Strategy.
Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and
surrounding area:
Policies HO20 of the Eastbourne Local Plan requires new development proposals
and extensions to existing buildings to respect residential amenity. Policy UHT4
states that proposals which have an unacceptable detrimental impact on visual
amenity will be refused.
Policy B2 of the Eastbourne Core Strategy seeks to protect the residential and
environmental amenity of existing and future residents.
The proposal involves the demolition of the existing garage building which
occupies most of the site extending to the back of the site up to the rear alley

Page 60

which contains windows which overlook the rear gardens of houses along Latimer
Road. The demolition and provision of 4 houses would open up the rear of the site
to provide rear gardens and significantly less dense and bulky development. The
separating distance between the proposed houses and those along Latimer Road
would be approximately 12 metres which is roughly similar to the existing
separating distances.
The existing garage building also extends up to the side boundary of no.8
Fairlight Road where the plans show that after demolition, a 1.5 metre wide gap
would be created between the end house and the side boundary of no.8, creating
a more open aspect and a significantly less dominating impact on this house.
Therefore, as the proposed layout adopts a standard terrace layout similar to the
adjacent and opposite terraces, constituting a standard form of development, it is
considered that subject to conditions, the proposal would not result in any
significant adverse impact on surrounding residential amenity and would accord
with Policies HO6 and HO20 of the Eastbourne Local Plan and Policy B2 of the
Eastbourne Core Strategy.
Impacts on highway network or access:
Policy TR11 of the Eastbourne Local plan states that new development must
comply with approved maximum car parking standards as set out in the East
Sussex County Council Highways SPG parking standards.
It is not possible to provide any off street parking spaces given the amount of the
site coverage proposed, thus the main consideration is whether there is available
on-street parking capacity within the surrounding streets.
ESCC Highways have been consulted and raise no objection to the proposal
subject to the existing dropped kerb and footway reinstated along the site
frontage prior to occupation of the proposed houses. This would result in 4 onstreet parking spaces being made available within the street. Although, this is
just under what would be required for the proposed houses, it is considered that
there is currently no significant existing on-street parking stress within the
surrounding streets.
Concerns have been raised concerning additional on-street parking at road
junctions causing visibility issues and blind spots. In response, this is a highway
enforcement matter which cannot be enforced through planning legislation where
double yellow lines, on street parking restrictions and the police would control any
inappropriately parked vehicles.
As such, it is considered that the proposal would not have any material adverse
impact on on-street parking capacity within the vicinity and would accord with
Policy TR11 of the Eastbourne Local Plan.

Page 61

Other Matters:
Due to the use of the premises as a car repairs garage and historical use as a
petrol station, a condition is necessary requiring details of a full contamination
assessment to be submitted for approval prior to commencement of development
and secured by a condition.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact
on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations have been
taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the
proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act 2010.
Conclusion:
It is considered that the design, appearance and siting of the proposed houses is
acceptable and the scale and bulk is appropriate for the area and would not have
an overbearing impact on surrounding occupiers.
The proposed layout adopts a standard terrace layout similar to the adjacent
terraces and thus would not result in any significant overlooking or loss of privacy
or loss of sunlight or daylight to surrounding properties. As such, it is considered
that the proposal would not adversely harm surrounding residential amenity.
The reinstatement of the dropped kerb and footway would result in an additional
4 on-street parking spaces along the frontage of the site. Although, this is just
under what would be required for the proposed houses, it is considered that there
is currently no significant existing on-street parking stress within the surrounding
streets.
As such, it is considered that subject to conditions, the proposed development
would enhance the character and appearance of the local area and would accord
with local and national planning policy.
Recommendation:
Approved conditionally
Conditions:
1. The development herby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of permission.
Reason: To comply with Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and County Planning Act
1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004).
2. The proposed development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the
approved plans and documents:
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Page 62

3. No development shall commence until details of a Phase II Soil Investigation is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If
contamination is found to be present, then details of a remediation strategy
detailing how this contamination shall be dealt with shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
excavation work.
Reason: To minimise the risks to human health, controlled waters or buildings by
ensuring that the development is suitable for the proposed use.
4. Prior to reaching damp course level, samples or precise manufacturers details
of all the materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details and shall be retained as such thereafter.
Reason: To secure a satisfactory standard of development.
5. Notwithstanding the approved details, the development shall not be occupied
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works have been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. These shall include details and
locations of trees and planting plans, species specification and samples of hard
landscaping materials.
Reason: In the interests of visual appearance and integrating the development
into its surroundings.
6. The development shall not be occupied until the existing access shown on the
approved plan has been stopped up and the kerb & footway reinstated in
accordance with details submitted to and approved in writing by the Director of
Communities, Economy and Transport.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and on-street parking provision.
7. During any form of earthworks and/or excavations that are carried out as part
of the development, suitable vehicle wheel washing equipment should be
provided within the site to prevent contamination and damage to the adjacent
roads.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and for the benefit and convenience of
the public at large.
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no extension, enlargement or other alteration
of the dwellinghouse(s) other than that expressly authorised by this permission
shall be carried out without planning permission obtained from the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: The Local Planning Authority considers that further development could
cause detriment to the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties and to the

Page 63

character of the area and for this reason would wish to control any future
development.
9. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no window, dormer window, rooflight or door
other than those expressly authorised by this permission shall be constructed
without planning permission obtained from the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.
10. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), gate, fence, walls or any other means of
enclosure than those expressly authorised by this permission shall be
constructed without planning permission obtained from the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties, and
the character of the area and for this reason would wish to control any future
development.
11. No material shall be deposited at the site other than clean, uncontaminated
naturally occurring excavated material, brick and concrete rubble.
Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment.
12. No bonfires or burning of waste materials shall take place anywhere on the
site at any time.
Reason: In the interest of maintaining the character and amenity of the area.
Informatives:
- All external materials to be used in the development shall conform with the
guidelines set out in the Eastbourne Townscape Guide.
- The applicant's attention is drawn to the need for a S184 licence for the
reinstatement of the kerb and footway. The applicant should contact ESCC on
01273 482254 prior to commencement of development to apply for the licence
and pay the necessary fee.
-The applicants be advised that given the age of the building and the commercial
nature of former use there may be materials in the building and or on the site
that require the disposal by a dedicated specialist contractor.

Page 64

Agenda Item 13
App.No:
150322 (PPP)

Decision Due Date:
6 July 2015

Ward:
Old Town

Officer:
Jane Sabin

Site visit date:
29 May 2015

Type: Planning
Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 6 June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry:

6 June 2015

Press Notice(s):

N/A

Over 8/13 week reason: Number of objections received
Location: Land to the rear of 81 Milton Road, Shortdean Place, Eastbourne
Proposal: Provision of additional garage (to double garage approved under
permission EB/1983/0388), lowering of dwarf boundary wall and relandscaping of adjacent open area.
Applicant:
Recommendation:

Mr K Wilson
Approve

Executive summary:
The provision of one additional garage in conjunction with the extant permission for a
double garage, together with minor alterations to the landscaped area to the side would
have no adverse impact on visual or residential amenity, or highway safety, and complies
with the Council’s approved policies.
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan Policies 2013
B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
C4: Old Town Neighbourhood Policy
D5: Housing
D10A: Design
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT2: Height of Buildings
UHT4: Visual Amenity
HO20: Residential Amenity
NE14: Source Protection Zones
Site Description:
The application is located immediately to the rear of 81 Milton Road on the north side of
Shortdean Place. It shares a boundary with the garage at the rear of 81 Milton Road,
and a further boundary with the bottom half of the rear garden of 83 Milton Road. It is

Page 65

principally rectangular in shape, with one corner curving to follow the turning head in the
highway, and has a maximum width and depth of approximately 14m by 8m. The
ground slopes gently from west to east, from Milton Road towards the flats in Shortdean
Place.
The site is currently partially laid to concrete (formed from the base of a previously
approved double garage which has not been completed) and an area of unmade ground
at the curved end largely covered in weeds. A dwarf boundary wall of brick
approximately 600mm high encloses part of the curved area.
Relevant Planning History:
EB/1983/0388 Erection of a detached double domestic garage. Approved, conditionally
27 September 1983
Proposed development:
It is proposed to construct a third garage attached to the two garages already approved
(although not yet built, the 1983 permission remains extant, since the foundations and
floors have been constructed, and therefore constitutes commencement). The resultant
block of three brick garages would be located to the rear of the site (to line up with the
existing garage at the rear of 81 Milton Road) and would be 8m wide and 5.75m deep,
under a flat roof with a finished height varying between 2.5m and 2.75m.
It is also proposed to reduce the height of the dwarf wall, and lay the remaining area
behind it to lawn. The submitted plan also indicates a planted screen along the boundary
with 83 Milton Road, although no details have been submitted of what this might be.
Consultations:
Neighbour Representations:
Nine objections have been received from residents of Shortdean Place and Milton Road,
and cover the following points:
• Although it will improve the entrance to Shortdean Place, it is believed it is the first
stage in trying to build more houses in the close, which the applicant has been
trying to do for some years
• The applicant already has three garages in Shortdean Place which are falling down,
and these should be rebuilt rather than let them become an eyesore
• History of leaving derelict cars and caravans in the quadrants to annoy residents
• Loss of on street parking, the road gets very busy at school times, and there is
limited parking for residents as it is
• Overdevelopment
• Use of the garages as a builders store
• Unlikely to maintain the property
• Impact on adjoining property (subsidence) and damage to party fence and nearby
shed; little attempt has been made to keep the corner free from invasive weeds
over many years, and financial assistance has provided towards the upkeep of the
party fence
• Impact on adjoining property from extent of rear wall adjacent to the boundary in
terms of overshadowing of the garden (2ft lower than the application site),
dominating impact, destruction of a rowan tree; a side exit door is wholly
unnecessary and is too close to the rear garden fence and would feel like loss of
privacy

Page 66

Appraisal:
The main issues to take into account in determining this application are the impacts of
the proposal on visual and residential amenity.
Visual amenity:
The proposed garage would be similar in appearance to those adjacent and opposite the
site, i.e. constructed of brick under flat roofs with up and over doors. The dwarf wall is in
poor condition, and the area behind it barely maintained. Overall, it is considered that
the scheme would improve the current appearance of the site, and the entrance to
Shortdean Place.
Residential amenity:
Impacts on residential amenity can be from physical impacts, or from noise and
disturbance generated by a use.
The location of the garages – two of which can be constructed without further consent –
is a sufficient distance from adjoining dwellings not to have an impact on the amenities
of residents. The development would result in limited shadowing of the end of the
adjacent garden, however it is not considered that it would be to such a degree that
would justify withholding consent.
The extant permission for two garages is conditioned to restrict the use for the garaging
of private motor vehicles only and for no other purpose. It is considered that this would
be an appropriate and necessary condition for the current proposal, as any use for
commercial purposes is likely to result in an adverse impact on residential amenity.
Impacts on trees:
One of the objectors is concerned that the development would destroy her tree, although
it appears to be sufficient distance from the boundary to maintain an adequate root
protection area. The height of the garages would have no impact on the health of the
tree in terms of lack of light, as the canopy is above the roof of the proposed garages;
the applicant has the right to cut back any overhang encroaching on his site. The tree is
not of a sufficient size or quality to warrant the protection of a tree preservation order.
Impacts on highway network or access:
The proposal would displace two on-street parking spaces. This is not considered to be a
serious impact on parking resources in the area.
Other matters:
The applicant has responded to the objections raised, and has set out a brief history,
which goes back many years, relating to the current minimal maintenance of the
application site. He considers that the current proposal offers a part solution to a longrunning situation, and addresses issues of visual amenity, parking and highways. He
adds that there is plenty of parking in Shortdean Place, as not all residents have cars,
and that the provision of garages, and specifically the dropped kerbs, will result in the
provision of a passing bay at the entrance to the close, which will aid traffic flow and
vehicle/pedestrian conflict during the school run.

Page 67

Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application process.
Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact on local people is
set out above. The human rights considerations have been taken into account fully in
balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the proposals will not result in any
breach of the Equalities Act 2010.
Conclusion:
It is considered that the provision of one additional garage in conjunction with the extant
permission for a double garage, together with minor alterations to the landscaped area to
the side would have no adverse impact on visual or residential amenity, or highway
safety, and therefore complies with local and national policies.
Recommendation:

Approve, subject to the following conditions

Conditions:
1. Commencement within 3 years
2. Development in accordance with the approved plans
3. Submission of brick samples
4. Painting of garage doors
5. Completion of landscaping before occupation of garages
6. Use by domestic vehicles only
7. Limit on hours of building work
Appeal:
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to be followed,
taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is considered to be
written representations.

Page 68

Agenda Item 14

App.No:
150352 (RMT)

Decision Due Date:
22 June 2015

Ward:
Sovereign

Officer:
Leigh Palmer

Site visit date:

Type: Reserved
Matters

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 20/05/15
Neighbour Con Expiry: 20/05/15
Press Notice(s): N/A
Over 8/13 week reason: Due to Committee Cycle
Location: Site 5, Pacific Drive, Eastbourne
Proposal: Application for approval or reserved matters following outline
approval (130002).
Applicant: Ms Tracy Reid
Recommendation: Approve
Executive Summary:
It has long been recognised that the completion of the Sovereign Harbour
development is long overdue and that the area is missing the social and economic
infrastructure that is required for it to become a sustainable location.
The community centre, funding for which will be secured through the S.106
agreement, will provide the social infrastructure required to enable Sovereign
Harbour to become a sustainable community.
Therefore the proposed community centre for Site 5 are considered acceptable in
principle and the detailed design, layout and appearance is considered
appropriate for the site and surrounding area.
Relevant Planning Policies:
The Sovereign Harbour Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (adopted
2013) is considered to be relevant to the determination of this application.

Eastbourne Core Strategy Policy
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 2006-2027
B1Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution Sustainable Centre

Page 69

C14 Sovereign Harbour Neighbourhood Policy
Borough Plan Policies
Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001-2011
NE16 Dev within 250m of former landfill site
SH7 District Local and Neighbourhood Centres
UHT8 Protection of Amenity Space
US5 Tidal Flood Risk
Environment Agency Flood Defence
Areas Benefiting from Defences
Site Description:
Site 5 is located in the central area of Sovereign Harbour to the north of the Yacht
Club. The southern part of the site was formally occupied by the Sovereign
Harbour Limited (SHL) site offices, the northern part forms part of the Harbour
car park area that is publicly accessible. The site includes a frontage to Harbour
Quay that looks onto the gable ends and boundary walls of the residential
properties opposite the site. Just to the south of the site on the opposite side of
Harbour Quay is the Yacht Club. To the north of the site is a large shingle mound
that is used for incidental recreation and dog walking.
The site is prominent location in the large scale open space of the car park
against an equally large scale backdrop of the shingle mound.
The existing housing is of traditional design but is arranged with blank gables and
perimeter walls onto Harbour Quay, so there is no active street frontage. The
Yacht Club is a modern style structure which along with the adjacent apartment
block marks the start of the Harbour centre, with the apartment block being of a
larger scale than the residential area. On the western side of Harbour Quay, in
the area that forms the setting for the site, the character is dominated by the car
parks to the west and the shingle mound to the north.
The site is well located and accessible for Harbour residents, by foot and cycle,
and also from the proposed bus link. It will also benefit from the proximity of both
the Harbour and Retail Park car parks. Its location reduces the need to provide
on-site parking.
Relevant Planning History:
There has been significant planning history for Sovereign Harbour with the most
relevant application being:131002Outline planning permission for the development of sites 1, 4, 5, 6,
7and 8 at Sovereign Harbour, Eastbourne:

Page 70

Site 1 - up to 72 dwellings and access s
Site 4 - Commercial and employment uses (A1-A5 3,200sqm)(B1, C1
and D13,600sqm)
Site 5 - Community use (800sqm)
Site 6 - Employment and office uses (B1 up to 15,000sqm)
Site 7 - Mix of employment uses (B1 6,700sqm) (C1 & C2 up to
5,500sqm)(D1 up to 200sqm), up to 70 dwellings and open space
Granted Outline Permission December 2014
Proposed development:
This application relates to the reserved matter details following the Outline Approval (Dec
14) for a number of development sites around Sovereign Harbour and specifically
proposed details in connection with the Community Centre on Site 5.
The community centre will be a two storey building of approximately 900 Sqm, consisting
of a large main hall which is double height space, a smaller hall, storage spaces, a
kitchen, two meeting rooms, a plant room, office and reception.
The building is single and two storey in height under flat roof with exterior materials to
include facing brick and render to main walls incorporating flint feature walls. The
scheme does not have any external plant and machinery and is to be naturally
ventilated.
The external area consists of a secure garden, a small car park for three spaces including
one disabled space, refuse store, and parking for delivery vehicles. The scheme also
proposes 18 cycle storage spaces.
The proposed building and plot has been designed to be fully accessible throughout with
the access to the building on the SW corner rand the vehicular access direct from
Harbour Quay
The application within the D&A state that the proposed hours of operation are to be
07:00 – 22:00 hours every day. Whilst not being too prescriptive the supporting
information outlines the ranges and types of activities that could utilise this
accommodation and these are typical community centre type uses. Of particular note is
the potential for a kitchen to facilitate lunch clubs for up to 80 people and
wedding/receptions for up to 180 guests.
The proposed finished floor layout is to be sited 600mm out of the ground to
overcome/mitigate any flood risk issue.

Page 71

Consultations:
Internal:
Specialist Advisor (Planning Policy) The application site is located within the
Sovereign Harbour neighbourhood, as identified in the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local
Plan 2006-2027 (adopted 2013).
The application is for the approval of reserved matters relating to the development of a
community centre with associated car parking and landscaping. An outline application
was approved as part of application 131002 in December 2014. The application conforms
with the parameter plans approved as part of the outline application.
The proposal is supported by Core Strategy Policy C14: Sovereign Harbour
Neighbourhood Policy states that the vision for Sovereign Harbour will be promoted by a
number of measures, including developing community facilities in order to meet the
needs of local residents.
The Sovereign Harbour Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) (adopted 2013) is a
material planning consideration in the determination of this application. It is considered
that this application conforms with the guidance contained in the SPD. It is understood
that the building has been designed (both internally and externally) in full consultation
with the Sovereign Harbour Community Association and Wave Leisure to ensure the
facility works operationally.
Overall, the proposal is consistent with the outline application and the Sovereign Harbour
SPD, and is fully supported by planning policy.

External:
Bespoke:- Vehicle access would cut across cycle route and thereby creating
conflict with users; cycle way in this location is unsegregated and may cause
conflict between pedestrians and cyclists; Refuse area and boundary walls would
conflict with views of cyclist and thereby creating a hazard; ‘Sheffield Hoop’ cycle
stands shall be used. Officer Response:-The scheme layout has been amended
to overcome/mitigate their concerns over visibility.
Southern Water Services Ltd. No comments to make
Environment Agency:- No comments received
Sovereign Harbour Residents Association :- No comments received
Highways ESCC No comment received
Neighbour Representations:
3 Comments have been received and cover the following points:
-At last the community centre is becoming a reality
-Having a community centre with rooms of varying sizes will enable residents to
have access to a variety of interests/pastimes and create a sense of

Page 72

belonging
-Sussex Flint in the wall detailing is to be welcomed
Appraisal:
Principle:- The principle of this site for/as a community centre has been
established by way of the Outline Approval and as such there are no objections to
the site being suitable and appropriate in principle.
The application proposes a community centre which will be a maximum of 2
storey in height, this is consistent with the requirements of the Sovereign
Harbour SPD.
Access and Parking:- The location of the site between the North and South
Harbours make it an accessible location for all Harbour residents. It is also on the
edge of the central area of the Harbour with its marine uses, cafes and
restaurants at The Waterfront and link to the Retail Park.
The site is also easily accessible from both the Harbour parking area that it sits in
and the Retail Park parking area to the west. Given the availability and extent of
parking in the area the on-site parking is kept to a minimum (3 spaces including
disabled and cycle provision. It is considered that this level of parking is
appropriate as the nature of this development will attract people predominantly
from the local area and therefore it is expected that they will mainly walk/cycle as
the Harbour is all within walking/cycling distance of the site.
Scale and Design:- The proposed building falls within the parameters of the of
the approved SPD and also the outline consent. Notwithstanding this is it
considered that the proposed scale of the building is such that it would create a
sense of civic scale which is considered important for this community building
which will become the focus/centre of community activity for the all within the
Harbour.
The building layout will provide a positive frontage to Harbour Quay providing a
clear and appropriate boundary to the adjacent public car park. The building will
be a maximum height of 2 storeys, with vehicular access by way of an existing
spur off Harbour Quay. The context has no predominant character and is a
combination of a mix of building types and large scale open spaces. There is built
development on the eastern side of Harbour Quay only which includes two and
three storey housing to the north of the site and the Yacht Club and adjacent
apartment block to the south.
The building proposes a building that is two storeys in height under a flat roof
with a brick plinth with render walls above, the scheme also includes feature
panels of flint-work. This pallete of materials is considered to be appropriate for
the site in particular and the wider area in general.

Page 73

It is considered that the form/scale and overall design of the building has taken
key architectural references from the wider harbour vernacular and as such it is
considered that the proposed development would sit well with its location as well
as providing a decent sense of place.
Other Issues:- Members should be aware that the delivery and timing of the
this facility is controlled via the Outline permission and the S106 legal agreement
and as such should not be given significant weight in the assessment of this
application.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact
on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations have been
taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the
proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act 2010.
Recommendation:
Approve the reserved matters
Members should be aware that at the outline planning stage a number of planning
conditions were attached. For ease of reference these are reported below and it is
considered that there are no conditions considered appropriate to attach to this
reserved matter application.
Conditions attached to the outline approval for Site 5
58. No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be
used in the external surfaces of the development on the site have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
59. No development shall take place until a surface water drainage
scheme for the site, based on sustainable drainage principles and an
assessment of the hydrological and hydrogeological context of the
development, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.
60. Landscape maintenance
61. Groundwater Protection -Universal condition for development on land
affected by contamination
62. No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft
landscape proposals have been submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority.
63. Prior to the commencement of development a Traffic Management
Scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority
in consultation with the Highway Authority.
64. Prior to the commencement of development details of the proposed
surface water drainage to prevent the discharge of surface water from the

Page 74

proposed site onto the public highway and, similarly, to prevent the
discharge of surface water from the highway onto the site shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in consultation with
the Highway Authority.
65. Prior to the commencement of development on site, detailed
drawings, including levels, sections and constructional details of the
proposed roads, surface water drainage, outfall disposal and street lighting
to be provided, shall be submitted to the Planning Authority.
66. During any form of earthworks and/or excavations that are carried
out as part of the development, suitable vehicle wheel washing equipment
should be provided within the site, to the approval of the Planning
Authority.
67. The development shall not be occupied until parking areas have been
provided in accordance with details which have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Planning Authority.
68. The development shall not be occupied until cycle parking areas have
been provided in accordance with details which have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Planning Authority
69. Site contamination.
70. Details of all plant and machinery (e.g. air conditioning, refrigeration
units) including predicted noise levels.
71. Details of any temporary structures/hoardings.
72. No burning of waste on site.
73. Restriction on hours of opening of proposed community centre.
74. Restriction on use within Class D1.
75. Submission of details of boundary treatment.
Informatives
Appeal:
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to be
followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is
considered to be written representations.

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

Agenda Item 15
App.No:
150589 (PPP)

Decision Due Date:
28 July 2015

Ward:
Devonshire

Officer:
Jane Sabin

Site visit date:
12 May 2015

Type: Planning
Permission

Site Notice(s) Expiry date: 26 June 2015
Neighbour Con Expiry:

26 June 2015

Press Notice(s):

N/A

Over 8/13 week reason:

N/A

Location:

Water Treatment Works, Waterworks Road

Proposal: Provision of a microfiltration building and ancillary
equipment.
Applicant:

South East Water Limited

Recommendation:

Approve conditionally

Executive summary:
The proposed development would have no adverse impact on visual or residential
amenity, or on highway safety, and would deliver improvements to drinking water
quality. The impacts during the construction phase would be adequately
managed to reduce the impact on residential amenity and highway safety. It
therefore complies with local and national policies.
Relevant Planning Policies:
National Planning Policy Framework
Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan Policies 2013
B1: Spatial Development Strategy and Distribution
B2: Creating Sustainable Neighbourhoods
C6: Roselands & Bridgemere Neighbourhood Policy
D10A: Design
E1: Infrastructure Delivery
Eastbourne Borough Plan Saved Policies 2007
NE14: Source Protection Zone
NE15: Protection of Water Quality
UHT1: Design of New Development
UHT2: Height of Buildings
UHT4: Visual Amenity

Page 77

HO20: Residential Amenity
US2: Water Resource Adequacy
Site Description:
The treatment works is located on the south side of Waterworks Road, almost opposite
the junction with Moy Avenue, and is bounded by the railway line to the rear, Gosdens
Removals to the north west, with the Dairycrest depot and the dwellings in Abbotts Close
to the south east.
The site houses a variety of buildings and pumping/filtration equipment, surrounded by a
high mesh fence.

Relevant Planning History:
None.
Proposed development:
Planning permission is sought to install a new microfiltration system to meet new
standards for drinking water by March 2016. Microfiltration reduces turbidity, a
key test of water quality, and is the cloudiness caused by large numbers of tiny
particles that are generally invisible to the naked eye (similar to smoke in air).
The proposal involves demolishing a row of disused brick built stores along the
south east boundary adjacent to the dairy depot, and the construction of a new
building, two tanks and a re-lift chamber. The building would be 29.5m wide and
8.4m deep under a monopitch roof 5m at its highest point. Both the roof and
walls would be constructed of profiled metal in cream, with brown doors and
louvres.
Adjacent to the microfiltration building would be two tanks, finished in black (to
protect the contents from UV light, and the re-lift chamber would be constructed
from concrete; the overall height would be similar to the new building.
Whilst this development is undertaken, the opportunity is being taken to replace
underground pipes, the borehole pumps and improve the existing filtration plant;
all of this work can be carried out under permitted development rights and does
not need consent.
Consultations:
Specialist Advisor (Policy) supports the application for the improvement to
infrastructure of strategic importance to support existing and proposed levels of
growth for the Local Plan period.
Specialist Advisor (Environmental Health) is concerned that the working hours are
proposed to commence at 7am, as this may mean that there is noise from
vehicles and staff arriving before that time affecting residents in the area. Works
should not commence before 8am.

Page 78

Highways ESCC note that once complete the facility will not alter the impact from
the current situation on the highway, as the number of employees on site and
vehicle movements will remain as they are currently, both of which are very low.
Following pre application discussions with the applicant they have provided details
of the parking and delivery arrangements which will be put in place during the
construction phase. Off street parking will be provided for all staff which is a
positive point as there is very limited on street parking in the area and any
increased demand on street would inconvenience local residents without off street
parking. The proposed route for HGV traffic via part of Moy Avenue & Courtlands
Road will also limit the impact as it avoids the purely residential section of Moy
Avenue which is relatively narrow and heavily parked. This route follows the
signed route for the industrial estate which is more suitable than other local
roads. For large vehicles to make the turn into and out of the site from
Waterworks Road having travelled from Whitley Road would involve at least
suspending parking opposite the access for the duration of the works. This again
would have inconvenienced the local residents for a considerable length of time.
It is also proposed to limit deliveries to between 9am and 4pm which will help as
it avoids peak traffic flow times. The number of HGV and car trips to the site is
quite low and will have little impact.
Neighbour Representations:
Neighbours have been very widely consulted, and the applicant and agent held a
drop-in session locally for nearby residents. Two responses have been received
from residents of Moy Avenue, one supporting the scheme, and another
concerned that drivers of heavy vehicles relying on ‘sat nav’ may be directed
down Moy Avenue, and that the restriction times for deliveries would coincide
with the afternoon school run.
Appraisal:
The main issues to take into account in determining this application are the
impacts on visual and residential amenity and highway safety.
Visual amenity
Although the site lies opposite a terrace of houses and Abbotts Close adjoins it to
the rear, the immediate vicinity is very much industrial in nature (Dairycrest,
Gosdens Removals, Parker Building Supplies). The site serves one the main
boreholes in the town and has done so for many years; it contains an early 20th
century utilitarian building, as well as modern filtration machinery.
A modern metal clad building is located immediately adjacent to the front
entrance, and the proposed filtration building would be constructed of a similar
material to this. The tanks would be similar to those already on the site, but of a
slightly lower height. Given the location of the new building and tanks adjacent
to the adjoining depot and behind the utilitarian building, together with their
height, which would be lower than surrounding development, it is considered that
the impact on the visual amenities of the area would be minimal.

Page 79

Residential amenity
The agent engaged in pre-application discussions, which resulted in the proposal
being relocated to the north east, so that it would be entirely screened from the
dwellings in Abbotts Close by the dairy building.
The tanks and re-lift chamber would make no noise during operations. The
microfiltration building would have suitable cladding to provide noise attenuation
to the internal compressors, and the ventilation louvres have also been selected
to provide maximum noise attenuation. Noise surveys are to be carried out
before and after construction to ensure that there would be no detriment to
current noise levels.
The development would result in more frequent visits to the site, which is
generally unmanned. Currently there are two visits each day by a light goods
vehicle (LGV), and one delivery per week by a heavy goods vehicle (HGV). Post
construction it would be necessary to receive two additional deliveries by heavy
goods vehicles every three months.
On the basis of the above, it is concluded that the development would have no
impact on residential amenity.
The main impact on residential amenity would be from the construction phase,
which is planned to start in July 2015 and be complete by March 2016. This
would have two parts: the noise from on-site works and deliveries to the site.
The applicant wishes to access the site for construction purposes from 7am to
5pm on Mondays to Fridays, and from 7am to 1pm on Saturdays, with no noise
generating activities being permitted until 9am. Any extended working hours
would be agreed with the Council. It is also proposed to continuously wet
materials on site to minimise dust and nuisance, and road sweepers would be
regularly used. In winter it may be necessary to use site lighting, but this would
be localised and not used after 5pm. If works are to commence on site at 7am,
the construction staff and vehicles would access the site some time before that,
and it is not clear how or what activities could be carried out on the site between
7am and 9am which would not generate noise, or how this could be reasonably
controlled. It is considered that a commencement of all activities on the site at
8am, as suggested by the Specialist Advisor for Environmental Health is an
appropriate compromise.
Deliveries to the site would be made by LGV’s and HGV’s and limited (9am to
4pm) to avoid peak traffic periods, via the existing route for commercial vehicles
Courtlands Road/Moy Avenue/Waterworks Road; the numbers of vehicles would
fluctuate during the different construction phases, shown daily as follows:

Page 80

Initial works
Civil construction
Plant installation
Commissioning

2 months
2 months
2.5 months
1 Month

5 HGV’s
9 HGV’s
2 HGV’a
0

4 LGV’s
6 LGV’s
10 LGV’s
4 LGV’s

Clearly this would have an impact on local residents, however it would be for a
finite period and limited to specified hours. The narrowness of Waterworks Road
and the awkward bend into Moy Avenue means that the most direct route from
Whitley Road is not suitable for HGV’s, resulting in the proposed route through
Courtlands Road has been signed for some years. The observation from one
resident regarding the afternoon school run is noted, however, it is considered
that restricting the times for deliveries any further than the applicant has
suggested would be unreasonable, and there is unlikely to be a significant
number of deliveries between 3pm and 4pm in any case. However, it may be
feasible to provide additional highway signage to prevent works traffic using Moy
Avenue, and this will be reported verbally at the meeting.
The applicant and agent have considered the impacts on local residents and have
addressed these as far as possible. These impacts must be balanced against the
requirement to comply with the need to improve water quality. It is considered
that the proposal is acceptable, and would deliver benefits to local residents
through the provision of cleaner water. The impact of the construction works,
taking into account the measures proposed by the agent, is acceptable for the
period proposed.
Impacts on highway network or access:
As the build is for a limited period (approximately 9 months), with deliveries
using the existing signed route via the Courtlands Road industrial estate and
scheduled to avoid peak times, it is considered that the proposed development
would have no adverse impact on highway safety. As stated above, additional
highway signage to prevent works traffic using Moy Avenue may be appropriate
and is being investigated.
Other matters:
An ecological survey was carried out, which concluded there would be no impact
on ecology. There are trees on the railway land to the rear of the site, and no
vehicles or materials would be stored adjacent to them. Checks for nesting birds
in the buddleia bushes to the rear will be carried prior to commencement.
Human Rights Implications:
The impacts of the proposal have been assessed as part of the application
process. Consultation with the community has been undertaken and the impact
on local people is set out above. The human rights considerations have been
taken into account fully in balancing the planning issues; and furthermore the
proposals will not result in any breach of the Equalities Act 2010.

Page 81

Conclusion:
The applicant and agent have engaged with the local planning authority, the
highway authority and local residents to achieve an acceptable scheme. The
proposed development would have no adverse impact on visual or residential
amenity, or on highway safety, and would deliver improvements to drinking water
quality. The impacts during the construction phase would be adequately
managed to reduce the impact on residential amenity and highway safety. It
therefore complies with local and national policies.
Recommendation:

Approve conditionally

Conditions:
1. Commencement within three years
2. Carried out in accordance with the approved plans
3. Hours of operation
4. Deliveries and working practices in accordance with planning statement and
traffic management plan
Appeal:
Should the applicant appeal the decision the appropriate course of action to be
followed, taking into account the criteria set by the Planning Inspectorate, is
considered to be written representations.

Page 82

Agenda Item 16
COMMITTEE:

PLANNING

DATE:

7 JULY 2015

SUBJECT:

Draft Good Practice for the Selection of Local Heritage
Assets (Buildings of Local Interest and Areas of High
Townscape Value).
To advise Members of existing guidance documents that
have been updated in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework.

REPORT OF:

Leigh Palmer, Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning and
Conservation)

Ward(s):

All

Purpose:

To seek authority to go out to public consultation on proposals for
the draft Good Practice for the Selection of Local Heritage Assets
(Buildings of Local Interest and Areas of High Townscape Value).
To advise Members that the Councils documents Guidance for
Designation and Review of Conservation Areas and Conservation
Areas in Eastbourne Companion Document, has been updated to
include The National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] which
superseded Planning Policy Statement 5 (PPS 5) in 2012.

Contact:

Recommendation:

Sarah Leete-Groves, Specialist Advisor (Conservation),
Neighborhood First, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne
Tel no: (01323) 410000
E-mail: sarah.leete-groves@eastbourne.gov.uk
1. Members are asked to authorise public consultation on the
draft Good Practice for the Selection of Local Heritage Assets
(Buildings of Local Interest and Areas of High Townscape
Value)
2. On completion of the public consultation exercise the results
shall be reported to Planning Committee prior to the
referring the document onto Cabinet for adoption.
3. Members are asked to note that Guidance for Designation
and Review of Conservation Areas and Conservation Areas
in Eastbourne Companion Document, have been updated to
include The National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF]
which superseded Planning Policy Statement 5 (PPS 5) in
2012

1
Page 83

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of the draft Guidance Manual is to provide explanatory information
and guidance on the purpose of a local heritage list and identifies the criteria local
communities can use to select; assets such as buildings, areas, spaces and places
that matter to them. The document sets a common framework of criteria that will
be used to objectively determine the level of protection afforded to local heritage
assets.
To further advise the Councils documents Guidance for Designation and Review of
Conservation Areas and Conservation Areas in Eastbourne Companion Document,
has been updated to include The National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] which
superseded Planning Policy Statement 5 (PPS 5) in 2012

2.0

Good Practice Guidance for the Selection of Local Heritage Assets (Buildings of
Local Interest and Areas of High Townscape Value).

2.1

According to Historic England, local heritage lists play an important role in
celebrating heritage that is valued by the community at a local level. Local
heritage assets should be assessed against local criteria in order to ensure that a
consistent, specific and objective approach is used throughout the Borough. There
are currently no express criteria for the selection of local heritage assets, although
there are a number of Historic England guidance documents which provide advice
on undertaking formal assessments of internationally and nationally significant
buildings and areas of special architectural or historic interest. The advice
contained in the guidance document informs the tailored criteria set out in
Appendix A of the Good Practice Guidance Manual.

2.2

It is important that local heritage assets are seen to justify their status and the
concept of local heritage criteria is not devalued by the identification of buildings or
areas that lack special interest. The establishment of consistent local standards is
therefore important in order to justify more rigorously why a particular heritage
asset or feature has been included on the local heritage asset list, which can be
defended on appeal.

3.0

Consultation Plan
Internal consultation of the draft Good Practice for the Selection of Local Heritage
Assets (Buildings of Local Interest and Areas of High Townscape Value) has been
carried out; the Conservation Area Advisory Group has also been consulted and
overall they are supportive of the draft Guidance Manual.

3.3

Subject to approval of the recommendations in this report, it is proposed to carry
out public consultation on the draft Guidance Manual in compliance with the
Council’s adopted Statement of Community Involvement. Consultation will be
carried out with Historic England, Victorian Society, Twentieth Century Society,
Historic Parks and Gardens, local amenity groups and historic societies, residents
and occupiers of the Borough will be notified via a notice published in the local
newspaper.

2
Page 84

3.4

Copies of all documentation and any supporting information will be available to
view and download on the Council’s website at www.eastbourne.gov.uk and at the
Council’s main office at 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne during office hours for the whole
consultation period. Copies of the relevant documentation will be sent to all
statutory consultees and any other targeted groups where appropriate. A notice
will be placed in the local newspaper and on the Council’s website at
www.eastbourne.gov.uk. This will advise where and when the document can be
inspected, how copies can be obtained, what the closing date is, and where to send
representations. The consultation period will last for 12 weeks.

3.5

A further report will then be brought to this committee, outlining the results of the
public consultation and making final recommendations.

4.0

Financial and Staffing Implications:

4.1

The cost of the consultation will be met from within existing budgets and will
largely consist of staff time.

5.0

Other Implications

5.1

There are no youth, sustainability, anti-poverty, equality or community safety
implications as a direct result of the draft documents.

6.0

Conclusion

6.1

The draft Guidance Manual establishes the framework through which identification
of local heritage assets can be assessed objectively in order to ensure that their
inclusion on the local heritage asset list, can be justified and are defensible.

Recommendation

4. Members are asked to authorise public consultation on the draft Good
Practice for the Selection of Local Heritage Assets (Buildings of Local Interest
and Areas of High Townscape Value)
5. On completion of the public consultation exercise the results shall be
reported to Planning Committee prior to the referring the document onto
Cabinet for adoption.
6. Members are asked to note that Guidance for Designation and Review of
Conservation Areas and Conservation Areas in Eastbourne Companion
Document, have been updated to include The National Planning Policy
Framework [NPPF] which superseded Planning Policy Statement 5 (PPS 5) in
2012

3
Page 85

Sarah Leete-Groves
Specialist Advisor (Conservation)
Background Papers:
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows:
Eastbourne Borough Plan (2001 – 2011)
Statement of Community Involvement (June 2009)

4
Page 86

CONSERVATION AREAS
IN EASTBOURNE

Companion Document

Page 87

CONSERVATION AREAS IN
EASTBOURNE
Companion Document
Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne
East Sussex, BN21 4TW

Tel:
Fax:
Minicom:
Email:

(01323) 410000
(01323) 415130
(01323) 415111
customerfirst@eastbourne.gov.uk

Date:

First Published: January 2011
Second Edition: July 2015 (reviewed to include The National
Planning Policy Framework)

Price:

£10.00

Available to view on-line at:
www.eastbourne.gov.uk/ the by following the planning policy link to
conservation

Page 88

Content

1
Introduction

1

Historic
2
Development

2

Later
3
Development

6

Local
4
Criteria for Conservation

10

The
5
History of Designation in Eastbourne

12

Appendix
6

13

6.1

Planning Policy Framework

13

6.2

Bibliography

15

6.3

Criteria for Assessing the Special Interest & Boundaries

16

Page 89

1 Introduction
1.1

This document has been compiled primarily to provide an overview of
the history of Eastbourne and to set out information on the provision
for the protection of the historic environment in the form of
conservation area designation. The Borough has 12 designated
conservation areas, and the Council is currently preparing appraisals
for each. This document provides a historical background for these
more detailed conservation area appraisals.

1.2

For a more detailed guide on the historic character of Eastbourne,
please refer to the Eastbourne Historic Character Assessment Report,
Sussex Extensive Urban Survey, prepared for East Sussex County
Council (ESCC), West Sussex County Council (WSCC), and Brighton
and Hove City Council, 2008.

Picture 1 All Saints

Page 90
1

2 Historic Development
2.1

Eastbourne is located on the lower slopes of the South Downs. To the
south-west the South Downs form chalk cliffs, the highest point of
which is known as Beachy Head. Old Town (originally known as
Bourne) was the principal medieval settlement and is located c.1.8km
from the modern seafront. The historic hamlet of South Bourne was
located c.850m inland, the hamlet of Meads c.500m inland and only
the hamlet of Sea Houses lay directly on the seafront.

Picture 2 Extract from Tithe Map, 1841.

2.2

The name Eastbourne represents an expansion of the earlier form of the
place-name, which was derived from the name of the Bourne stream,
(burna in Old English ), that flows from St Mary’s Church, Old Town, to
the sea. In the Domesday Book (1086) the name Bourne was applied to
the area, and Eastbourne is recorded from the early 14th century: the
prefix was arguably adopted to distinguish the place from Bourne in the
west of Sussex.

2.3

There have been many archaeological surveys in the Eastbourne area,
which have uncovered evidence of prehistoric settlement activity, these
include the Star Brewery site, Old Town (1), which recovered Bronze Age
and Iron Age pottery sherds, most of which dated to the Middle Iron Age.
An excavation in Meads Street(2)uncovered Neolithic (4000 BC to 2351
BC) finds and an excavation on Shinewater Marsh(3) revealed a timber

1
2
3

Excavated in 1980
Excavated in 1846
Excavated in 1995

Page 91
2

occupation platform of national importance, dating from c.900-800 BC.
This was connected to higher land to the south-west by a timber track
or causeway.
2.4

There is significant evidence of Romano-British settlement in
Eastbourne. Excavations close to Cavendish Place and Queens
Gardens, undertaken in 1712 and 1848-53, revealed evidence of a
large early Roman villa with extensive rooms of various sizes. Other
significant finds have included coins, bones and animal horns, roof
tiles, bricks and pottery. In the Seaside Road and Elms Road area
Roman coins of Postumus were found in 1709 and of Constantine in
1710.

2.5

During the Saxon period (c. 400 - 1066) it is believed that a nucleated
settlement developed around the source of the Bourne Stream (now
Motcombe Gardens). At the time of the Domesday survey in 1086 the
Manor of Bourne belonged to William the Conqueror's half-brother, the
Count of Mortain. A water mill, (almost certainly the Goffs upper mill)
church and 16 saltpans were recorded. Domesday Bourne, grew into a
substantial parish, around what is now St. Mary's Parish Church, which
was built between 1165 and 1185.This settlement was the centre of
administration of both the Hundred and Parish until the 1850s.

Picture 3 Motcombe Gardens.

2.6

4

By the sixteenth century there were three small hamlets,(4) South
Bourne (Grove Road), Meads and Sea Houses (Marine Parade), which
were all under the jurisdiction of the parish and village of Bourne.

A hamlet is defined as a small group of houses, usually without a church, under the jurisdiction of
and in the same parish as another village or town

Page 92
3

Picture 4 Historic village and hamlets of Eastbourne.

2.7

A major influence on Eastbourne's subsequent development was the
second Earl of Rutland's decision to sell the manor of Eastbourne in 1555.
It was sold in separate parts to three local men, James Burton, John
Selwyn and Thomas Gildredge.

2.8

Burton took the south west portion, including Meads and what is now the
town centre, setting up his manor house at Bourne Place (now Compton
Place). This was sold on and eventually passed into the hands of the Hon.
Spencer Compton, one of whose female heirs married the third son of
the Duke of Devonshire in 1782.

2.9

Gildredge took Upperton and the eastern part of the parish with his manor
house in The Goffs. The ownership passed through the female line to the
Gilbert family. In 1782 one of the Gilberts moved to the house in Borough
Lane which until recently was the Towner Art Gallery.

Page 93
4

2.10

Selwyn took the northern part. His grand-daughter married Thomas
Parker of Ratton and they moved to Ratton Manor.

2.11

In 1752 Dr Richard Russell of Lewes had published his Dissertation on
the Use of Sea Water, which encouraged people to visit the seaside to
improve their health. This was also to have a bearing on Eastbourne's
subsequent popularity as a resort.

2.12

In the early nineteenth century, when England was threatened by
Napoleon, the Wish Tower was built to protect the western end of
Eastbourne Bay. This was part of a series of Martello Towers (there were
103 in total and another two are located within Sovereign Harbour) which
stretched from Seaford, East Sussex to Slaghden near Aldeburgh in
Norfolk. The Redoubt fort was added in 1806, protecting the eastern end
of the Bay and used as a supply depot for the nearby Martello towers.

2.13

An important event of the mid-nineteenth century was the extension of
the railway to Eastbourne in 1849, a branch of the Brighton to Hastings
Line. This extension was to provide the impetus for much of the later
nineteenth century development in Eastbourne.

Page 94
5

Later Development
3.1

In 1838 Decimus Burton drew up proposals for a new town for the
then Earl of Burlington, but these plans were not implemented apart
from the building of Trinity Chapel (now Holy Trinity Church) in Trinity
Trees. In 1847 a local surveyor, James Berry, was appointed by the
Earl of Burlington to set out and survey the first portion of Eastbourne,
but the scheme was unable to proceed until 1849, when the London,
Brighton and South Coast Railway built the branch line to Eastbourne.

3.2

Eastbourne today is largely the creation of William Cavendish, who
became the 7th Duke of Devonshire following the death of his cousin
in 1858. The Duke had a vision of a seaside resort "built by a
gentleman for gentlemen" and in 1859 he commissioned a
development plan from Henry Currey, which has become a famous
example of inspired town planning, with spacious streets, fine public
buildings and sweeping promenades facing the sea. Currey was the
son of the chief agent to the sixth Duke of Devonshire and was
apprenticed to Decimus Burton, who at that time was working with
Joseph Paxton on the great conservatory at Chatsworth.

Picture 5 Marine Parade, c. 1910.

3.3

Currey was an eminent London architect and was Vice President of the
Royal Institute of British Architects, of which his best known building is
St Thomas' Hospital. In Eastbourne, he designed the Queen's Hotel,
Winter Gardens and Devonshire Park Theatre.

3.4

In the mid-nineteenth century, four-fifths of the land in Eastbourne
was owned by two major landowners - the Cavendish and the Gilbert
families. William Cavendish, who became the seventh Duke of
Devonshire in 1858, had inherited Compton Place and other lands in
Eastbourne in 1834 when he was still the 2nd Earl of Burlington.

3

Page 95
6

3.5

The second major landowner was Carew Davies Gilbert, his grandfather,
Davies (Giddy) Gilbert had come from Cornwall and was a well-known
scientist and one-time President of the Royal Society. The main part of
the Gilbert estate, on the eastern side of Upperton Road, was laid out by
Nicholas Whitley of Truro who produced major plans in 1862, 1870 and
1883.

3.6
3.6

A new greensand wall was built by Berry to protect the central seafront
in 1848 and the foundation stone of the new town was laid in 1851.
Originally three main thoroughfares were built, Cavendish Place, Victoria
Place (now part of Terminus Road) and Cornfield Terrace. Victoria
Place(and possibly Cavendish Place) transpired to be disastrous development
projects for the builders involved, and as a result, the 2nd Earl of Burlington felt
obliged to bail out the builders to a tune of £37,000. Cornfield Terrace is unusual
in that it was not developed by either of the two major landowners but by John
Gosden, during the years 1848-1852. Tenants, however, proved slow to arrive.

3.7

In 1864 George Ambrose Wallis, an engineer who later came to
dominate the late Victorian development of Eastbourne, joined the
seventh Duke and Currey to provide technical expertise and advice,
notably on the town's drainage. Currey produced a second plan for the
area of Meads in 1872, as well as the area now known as Grand
Parade.

3.8

In the five years from 1871 to 1876, the population of the town
doubled to over 21,000. Between 1880 and 1884 the Local Board
spent £50,000 on the construction of Royal Parade whilst,
simultaneously, the Duke funded the creation of the Western Parades
(designed by Ambrose Wallis) in Meads.

Page 96
7

Picture 6 View of Meads, c. 1970.

3.9

In 1883 the Local Board was granted a charter of Incorporation and
George Wallis became the town's first Mayor. His name appears on the
foundation stone of the town hall. With his brother he ran the firm of
Wallis & Wallis, surveyors, engineers, builders and auctioneers, who were
awarded all the major ducal contracts in the town and carried out much
of the speculative housing development. They shared their offices at
No.14 Seaside Road (now part of Trinity Trees) with the Compton Estate
office.

3.10

Rapid expansion continued until a building recession in the late 1880s,
when many local builders went bankrupt. The death of the seventh Duke
in 1891, followed by that of G A Wallis in 1895, temporarily slowed
development. However, the new 8th Duke was a close friend of Edward
VII and this royal connection continued into the reign of George V, who
stayed at Compton Place. The 8th Duke became mayor of Eastbourne in
1897 and under his guidance many improvements were carried out,
including the construction of a new waterworks at Friston. At the same
time the Gilbert family developed new housing in Upperton Road, Prideaux
Road and Green Street.

3.11

Hampden Park was purchased by the Council in 1901 and in 1903 the
first municipal buses were brought into service to link the different parts
of the growing town. The Technical Institute was built in Grove Road in
1904 as a museum, school, art school and library. In 1909 the 9th Duke
also became mayor of Eastbourne and in 1911 the town received County
Borough status. By the beginning of World War I, Eastbourne was
numbered among the largest, most exclusive and successful holiday
resorts in the country.

3.12

Edwardian suburbs surround the town centre, providing a variety of
terraced, semi-detached and much larger detached houses. 20th century
development has stretched up the valleys of the South Downs to the

Page 97
8

west. Large housing estates have been built to the east and north of
central Eastbourne, industrial estates and a new marina have also
been added to the east of the town.

Page 98
9

4 Local Criteria for Conservation
4.1

Much of the centre of Eastbourne is laid out in accordance with
Victorian town planning principles and was developed by wealthy or
aristocratic landowners. A large proportion of this historic townscape is
a valuable representation of our cultural heritage and national identity.

4.2

Eastbourne evolved from the small, dispersed historic settlements of
Bourne, South Bourne, Meads and Sea Houses, to a large seaside
resort with Victorian and Edwardian villas, terraces, and shops. Large
areas of Eastbourne are therefore of archaeological, architectural and
historic interest.

4.3

Part of the character of Eastbourne is created by the use of local
materials. The earliest surviving buildings were made of timber from
the weald, flints from the downs and beaches and later bricks made of
local clay. Materials from further afield, such as Horsham roof slabs,
slate from north Cornwall, floor tiles from the Netherlands and Caen
Stone (imported from France) etc., were often brought in by sea and
were often reserved for the most prestigious buildings such as
churches.

4.4

The heritage significance of historic areas comes not just from their
physical presence, but also from other attributes, such as their relationship
with their surroundings, in particular, their setting. Significance is an
important concept in relation to heritage assets such as conservation
areas.

4.5

National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] defines significance as ‘the
value of a heritage asset to this and future generations because of its
heritage interest. That interest may be archaeological, architectural,
artistic or historic. Significance derives not only from a heritage assets
physical presence, but also from its setting'

4.6

Only the best preserved representation of this rich townscape have been
selected for conservation area status and each boundary has been
carefully assessed and drawn around a set of coherent elements which

Page 99
10

define each area's individual character. These are areas, often with
developments from different periods, the special character and appearance
of which it is desirable to preserve and enhance.
4.7

English Heritage recommends that conservation areas should be
assessed against local criteria in order to ensure that a consistent,
objective approach is used throughout the Borough. The Council has
adopted a set of locally tailored criteria as measures against which
current and future conservation areas in Eastbourne are objectively
selected (or not) and their boundaries defined. These tests (Appendix
6.3) are set out in the Council’s Guidance Manual for the Designation
and Review of Conservation Areas, which is available to download on
the Council's website.

4.8

Many individual buildings within the Conservation Areas are listed. A
schedule of all listed buildings is contained in the Eastbourne
Townscape Guide, which is also available to download on the Council's
website.

Page
11100

The History of Designation in Eastbourne
5.1

Conservation areas were introduced by the Civic Amenities Act 1967
and the principle has continued in a series of Acts ever since.
Eastbourne has 12 designated conservation areas and they cover a
total of 249.06 ha, which is approximately 5.25% of the Borough.

Year of
Designation

Name

Amendments

1969

Old Town

Extended 1984

1969

Meads

Extended 1982, 1988

1969

Willingdon

1969

Town Centre and
Seafront

1974

Ratton

1986

Saffrons

1986

Warrior Square

1986

College

1991

Torfield

1991

South Lynn Drive

1991

1994

Area (ha)
15.7
111.8
2.2

Extended 1975, 1979, 1986,
1992

84.3
0.86
2.2

*Boundary Review 2010. No
boundary changes proposed.

0.4
13.8

Boundary review 2012

1.1
Boundary Review 2014
Introduction of an Article 4
Direction to come into effect
January 2016

The Park Close

Upperton Gardens*

1.5

*Boundary Review 2009/10.
Extended 2010 and the
conservation area renamed
'Upperton' to reflect these
changes.

Conservation Areas in
East
Ea
stbo
bour
urne
ne
Eastbourne

Table 1 Designation of Conservation Areas (correct at date of publication

5
T
Page 101
12

1.3

13.9

6 Appendix
6.1 Planning Policy Framework
6.1

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

The Act provides a definition of a conservation area and sets out local
planning authorities' duties regarding designating and monitoring
them. It also provides statutory control on certain forms of
development within conservation areas.
6.2

National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF].
Under NPPF Chapter 12 contains the core historic environment policies
paragraphs 126 to 141. Under para 127, ‘ when considering
conservation areas, local planning authorities should ensure that an
area justifies such status because of its special architectural or historic
interest, and that the concept of conservation is not devalued through
the designation of areas that lack special interest’ and continues
through para 128, that in ‘determining applications, local planning
authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of
any heritage assets affected, including any contribution made by their
setting. The level of detail should be proportionate to the assets’
importance and no more than is sufficient to understand the potential
impact of the proposal on their significance.’
However the NPPF does not change the existing legal framework for
the designation of scheduled monuments, listed buildings,
conservation areas, registered parks and gardens or protected wrecks.
Existing law also sets out the basis on which scheduled monument
consent, listed building consent, conservation area consent or licences
to deal with protected wrecks may be required. Nothing in the PPS
changes those requirements and the interpretation of the words and
phrases used.

6.3

Article 4 Directions: The Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order (1995) as amended
Article 4 directions increase the powers of local planning authorities to
withdraw "permitted development" rights where it is expedient to do
so. Directions under Article 4 (2) can be used to remove permitted
development rights within all or part of a conservation area, so that an
application for planning permission has to be made. If permission is
refused the applicant may be entitled to compensation.
An Article 4 direction could limit the permitted development rights of
single private dwelling houses by controlling such things as the
painting of buildings and the use of materials.
NPPF para 200 ..’The use of Article 4 directions to remove national
permitted development rights should be limited to situations where
this is necessary to protect local amenity or the wellbeing of an area…’

Page 102
13

6.4 The Eastbourne Borough Plan (2001-2011)
The saved Urban Heritage and Townscape (UHT) policies of the
Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001 - 2011 are now part of the Local
Development Framework and apply to development in conservation areas.
They seek to interpret national policy for local requirements and to protect
the special architectural and historic interest, character and appearance of
Eastbourne's buildings and townscape. They will be replaced in due
course by a core strategy and a portfolio of documents which informs
this, including Supplementary Planning Guidance such as the
Eastbourne Townscape Guide.

6.5 Eastbourne Local Development Framework (LDF)
This portfolio of development documents, currently under preparation, will
supersede the local plan and provide a spatial planning strategy for the
Borough.

6.6 Eastbourne Townscape Guide: Supplementary Planning Guidance
(SPG) 2004
The Townscape Guide has been formally adopted as Supplementary
Planning Guidance. It expands on the Borough Plan's policies and
contains a list of the Borough's listed buildings, locally listed buildings,
plans of the conservation areas and of the Areas of High Townscape
Value.
The individual conservation area appraisals and this companion
document should be read in conjunction with the Townscape Guide,
which links them to the Council's statutory planning policy.

Page 103
14

Brandon, P. (1974) The Sussex Landscape, Hodder and Stoughton.
Crook, R. (1982) A Peep at Victorian Eastbourne, Eastbourne
Antiquities Research Group.
Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001-2011; adopted (September 2007)
Eastbourne Historic Character Assessment Report. Sussex Extensive
Urban Survey (EUS). R. B. Harris. East Sussex County Council, West
Sussex County Council, and Brighton and Hove City Council 2008.
Eastbourne Townscape Guide Supplementary Planning Guidance;
adopted (July 2004)
English Heritage, (1995) Conservation Area Practise, London: English
Heritage.
English Heritage, (2006) Guidance on Conservation Area Appraisals,
London: English Heritage.
English Heritage, (2008) Conservation
Guidance, London: English Heritage.

Principles,

Policies

and

Enser, A.G.S. (ed.) (1976) A Brief History of Eastbourne, Crain
Services.
Green, E. (2005) ‘Article 4 Directions’, The Building Conservation
Directory, pp. 34-35.
HMSO: The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995, Statutory Instrument 1995 No. 418,
London.
HMSO: Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990,
London.
Mynors, C. (2006) Listed Buildings,
Monuments, Sweet and Maxwell, London.

Conservation

Areas

and

Spears, H. and Stevens, J. (1981) Some of the Street Names of
Eastbourne with notes on their historical associations, The Eastbourne
Local History Society.
The National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012, DCLG
Planning Practice Guidance, March 2014, DCLG

Page 104
15

Conservation Areas in
Eastbourne
East
Ea
stbo
bour
urne
ne

6.2 Bibliography

6.3 Criteria for Assessing the Special Interest & Boundaries
Guidance Manual for Designation and Review of Conservation Areas
in Eastbourne.
The following tests will be applied in reviewing the boundary of Eastbourne’s
Conservation Areas:
1 Test 1 Architectural Quality and Historic Relevance
The majority of buildings must have some strong intrinsic architectural or
historic merit by virtue of age, design, materials and/or whether they were
designed by a known architect or by the same developer etc. The following
criteria should be considered;
does the area reflect the architectural style and details present
within substantial parts of the Conservation Area?
does the area represent an important phase in the
historic development of the town/village?
is the development of similar massing, bulk, height and scale to
a significant proportion of the development within the
Conservation Area?
does the area represent a notable piece of town/village
planning? does the area include good examples of the work of
well known architects?
does the development within the area date from a similar period
to substantial parts of the Conservation Area?
is the development the work of the same architect or developer
active elsewhere within significant parts of the Conservation Area?
do the current uses within the area reflect prevailing or former
uses of substantial parts of the Conservation Area?
2 Test 2 Townscape/Public Realm Quality
Consideration is also given to the townscape quality of the area and whether
there is sufficient justification for the introduction of additional controls. In
particular; the proportion of the buildings within the area which would be
defined as positive contributors if located within the Conservation Area.
Issues to consider are;

§
§
§

§
§

does the street/area substantially retain its original
fabric and appearance relating to features including
front gardens/soft landscaping (if relevant);
front boundary walls/railings (if relevant);
do the buildings in the street/area retain original features
(doors, windows, porches, stucco detailing; decorative
panelling, chimney stacks, survival of brickwork or stonework
that has not been rendered or painted etc.), which overall
remain predominantly intact;
is the original roofscape of the street/area
predominantly intact; are there any original shop fronts
(if relevant);
there are a few instances overall of inappropriate

Page 16
105

§

ate dormers; infilling be(introduction of inappropriate
dormers; infill between properties; over prominent rear
extensions)?
It is necessary to take into account the extent of any
uncharacteristic alterations or other damage to the
buildings within the area in order to assess the suitability
of the area for designation.

3 Test 3 Boundaries:
In establishing the boundaries of Conservation Areas a number of factors (as
well as the criteria set out in Tests 1 and 2) must be considered. Many of
the Conservation Areas in Eastbourne are surrounded or bordered by Areas
of High Townscape Value (AHTV); these areas usually form part of the
setting of Conservation Areas but generally have a less defined historic
relevance, townscape/public realm quality or architectural quality.
All areas, including AHTVs surrounding Conservation Areas will be reviewed
as part of the Conservation Area boundary review and their significance
reassessed. The result could be that the boundary of the Conservation Area
remains unchanged, areas are deleted from the designation or part of the
surrounding area may be included in the Conservation Area designation.
When assessing the boundaries of Conservation Areas it is important to
consider the following;
does the area under consideration retain its original boundary
lines, including historic layout of property boundaries and
thoroughfares? when reviewing the boundary of the Conservation
Area and its relationship to neighbouring areas, it is important to
consider the following factors;
1. are there discernible and distinct changes in the character and quality of
the adjoining open spaces and/or landscaping between the two areas?
2. is there a particular 'mix' of uses common to the Conservation Area and
surrounding area?
3. are there topographical townscape and/or landscape features common
to both areas which form an integral part of the setting of the historic

Page
17 106

GUIDANCE MANUAL FOR
DESIGNATION AND REVIEW OF
CONSERVATION AREAS

Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road
Eastbourne
East Sussex BN21 4TW

This information is available in other
formats including larger print and other
languages on request from the
Eastbourne Borough Council
Tel: 01323 410000

Page 107

GUIDANCE MANUAL FOR DESIGNATION
AND REVIEW OF CONSERVATION AREAS
Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne
East Sussex, BN21 4TW

Tel:
Fax:
Minicom:

(01323) 410000
(01323) 415130
(01323) 415111

Email:

customerfirst@eastbourne.gov.uk

Date:

First Published: January 2011
Second Edition: July 2015 (reviewed to include The National
Planning Policy Framework)

Price:

£10.00

Available to view at:
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/ by following the planning policy link to
conservation

Page 108

1 Introduction

2

2 Importance of Conservation Areas

3

3 Legislation

4

4 Designation Guidelines

7

5 Designation

11

6 Planning Policies

15

7 Conservation Area Management

18

8 Appendix A Criteria

19

9 Appendix B Conservation Areas in Eastbourne

21

10 Appendix C Planning Policies

22

11 Appendix E English Heritage Guidance

24

12 Appendix F References

25

Page 109

Cont
Co
Contents
nten
ents
ts

Content

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
id
ance
an
ce Ma
Manual
Manu
nual
nu
al fo
forr De
Designation
Desi
sign
si
gnat
gn
atio
at
ion
io
n & Re
Review
Revi
view
vi
ew of C
Con
Conservation
onse
on
serv
se
rvat
rv
atio
at
ion
io
n Areas
Area
Ar
eas
ea
s

1 Introduction
1.1

This guidance document has been compiled in order to provide explanatory
information and guidance on the designation and boundary review process for
Conservation Areas in Eastbourne.

1.2

Section 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
places a general duty on local authorities from time to time to formulate and
publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of any parts of their
areas which are Conservation Areas.

1.3

English Heritage guidance promotes a locally tailored approach to designating
and reviewing the boundaries of Conservation Areas in order to ensure that a
consistent, objective approach is used throughout the borough. There are
important land use implications upon designation of a Conservation Area for the
Local Authority, the individual properties and landowners. There is no right of
appeal or Public Inquiry procedure (except by judicial review) and this places a
special duty to ensure that all material matters are taken into account at the
time the Conservation Area is designated or reviewed. The existence or absence
of a Conservation Area Appraisal will be a material consideration when considering
a planning appeal.

1.4

The Council is embarking on a complete review of its 12 Conservation Areas. As
part of that review the current designated boundary of each Conservation Area
will be reconsidered to ensure it reflects the special architectural or historic
interest to be given protection. This document sets a common framework of
criteria that will be used to decide objectively on the boundary of all the borough's
Conservation Areas. Therefore it will need to be read in conjunction with the
Conservation Area Appraisal documents.

1.5

English Heritage provides useful guidance on policy, procedure and the
management of Conservation Areas. The following EH guidance notes ‘Guidance
on Conservation Area Appraisals', 'Guidance on the Management of Conservation
Areas', 'Conservation Area Practice’, 'Conservation Principles Policies and Guidance
for the Sustainable Management of the Historic Environment' and ‘Development
in the Historic Environment’ have informed this guidance manual. National
guidance The National Planning Policy Framework, Planning Practice Guidance,
local policies and supplementary planning guidance have also been taken into
account in preparing this document.

1.6

Character Appraisals should include a thorough assessment of each Conservation
Area with specific criteria for designation. The purpose of these appraisals is to
"define the special architectural or historic interest which warranted area
designation in a published and detailed character analysis". It is through the
Character Appraisal process that the Conservation Area boundary will be reviewed.
The review will be based on the criteria set out in Appendix A of this document.

Page 110
1

2 Importance of Conservation Areas
2.1

The conservation and enhancement of historic areas of distinctive quality and
character has widespread public support and at the time of writing, there are
currently over 9,100 Conservation Areas across the country. The English
Heritage document Guidance on the Management of Conservation Areas states
that; "historic areas are now extensively recognised for the contribution they
make to our cultural inheritance, economic well-being and quality of life. Public
support for the conservation and enhancement of areas of architectural and
historic interest is well established. By suggesting continuity and stability such
areas provide points of reference in a rapidly changing world."

2.2

Eastbourne has a rich and varied heritage ranging from the historic Old Town
core to Victorian seaside terraces set against the backdrop of the Downs.
Christoper Hussey stated in Country Life (in the 1930s) that the Victorian
development of Eastbourne 'should be recognised by town planners as a
masterpiece of its genre'. The Borough currently has 12 Conservation Areas
(Appendix B); the character of these areas is extremely delicate and can be
lost as much through incremental change as through larger developments.

2.3

The designation of a Conservation Area is only the first stage in the protection
of the special architectural and historic interest of an area. Designation is
reinforced by the application of development control policies and other
planning policy measures aimed at preserving or enhancing the area's special
architectural or historic interest.

3

Page2111

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
id
ance
an
ce

Manual
Manu
Ma
nual
nu
al fo
forr De
Designation
Desi
sign
si
gnat
gn
atio
at
ion
io
n & Re
Review
Revi
view
vi
ew of Co
Conservation
Cons
nser
ns
erva
er
vati
va
tion
ti
on Areas
Area
Ar
eas
ea
s

3 Legislation
3.1

The approach to designation has changed significantly since the Civic Amenities
Act introduced the concept of Conservation Areas in 1967. Planning controls have
been introduced in Conservation Areas in common with other areas of legislation
aimed at protecting the built and natural environments.

3.2

The Town and Country Amenities Act (1974) placed a duty on Local Authorities
to prepare proposals to preserve and enhance Conservation Areas and introduced
legislation to control demolition of unlisted buildings in Conservation Areas. The
Act also made provision for trees in Conservation Areas and required owners to
give six weeks’ notice to the Local Planning Authority of any proposals involving
tree surgery or the felling of trees. This gave Local Authorities time to make a
Tree Preservation Order if an agreement could not be reached with individual
owners. The introduction of these additional controls superseded earlier
designations since it was now possible to protect both unlisted buildings from
demolition as well as open spaces where trees contributed to a significant part
of the character of the area.

3.3

Regarding the setting of Conservation Areas, control over development outside
Conservation Areas was introduced by the Local Government (Planning and Land
Act) 1980. This put a greater significance on the importance of Conservation
Areas for the control of development in historic areas.

3.4

Conservation Area Best Practice guidance was introduced in the 1987 DoE Circular
8/87 and the following year the Town and Country Planning General Development
Order 1988 introduced control over certain development in Conservation Areas
which would otherwise be permitted, such as roof extensions, the application of
cladding to the exterior of buildings and the erection of satellite dishes on front
elevations. This was amended in 2008 under the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (Amendment) (No.2) (England) Order 2008.

3.5

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 merged all
previous legislation relating to Conservation Areas and in 1994 Planning Policy
Guidance 15: Planning and the Historic Environment (PPG15) was issued jointly
by the Secretaries of State for the Environment and National Heritage and
replaced the policy content of Circular 8/87. PPG 15 set out the Government
policies for the assessment, designation and management of Conservation Areas
and explained the role of the planning system in their protection.

3.6

In March 2010 Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment
(PPS5) replaced PPG 15 and PPG 16 and introduced the concept of 'heritage
assets', defined as 'those parts of the historic environment that have significance
because of their historic, archaeological, architectural or artistic interest'. Heritage
assets may be designated (i.e. listed buildings, scheduled monuments or
Conservation Areas) or non-designated. Subsequently in 2012 The National
Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] and accompanying Planning Practice
Guidance (2014) replaced PPS 5. However nothing in the NPPF changes the

Page 112
3

3.7

The Department of Culture, Media and Sport is responsible for the general
legislative and policy framework relating to Conservation Areas. The Planning
Inspectorate is responsible for deciding appeals against refusal of Listed
Building or Conservation Area Consent.

3.8

The following sections from The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 apply specifically to Conservation Areas: -

3.9

Section 69
1.

2.

3.

4.

Every local planning authority (a) shall from time to time determine which parts of their area are areas
of special architectural or historic interest the character or appearance of
which it is desirable to preserve or enhance, and
(b) shall designate those areas as Conservation Areas.
It shall be the duty of a local planning authority from time to time to
review the past exercise of functions under this section and to determine
whether any parts or any further parts of there are should be designated
as Conservation Areas; and, if they so determine, they shall designate
those parts accordingly.
The Secretary of State may from time to time determine that any part of
a local planning authority's area is an area of special architectural or
historic interest the character or appearance of which it is desirable to
preserve or enhance; and, if he so determines, he may designate that
part as a Conservation Area.
The designation of any area as a Conservation Area shall be a local
land charge.

3.10

Section 71 requires authorities to publish appraisals for the preservation and
enhancement of Conservation Areas. These appraisals shall be submitted to
public consultation.

3.11

Section 72 requires authorities to pay special attention to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of Conservation Areas
when exercising their powers under the Planning Acts.

3.12

Section 73 requires authorities to advertise applications, which they consider
will affect the Conservation Area.

3.13

Section 74 and Section 75 control the demolition of buildings within
Conservation Areas (with the exception of ecclesiastical buildings in use, Listed
Buildings, Ancient Monuments or certain other cases).

3.14

Section 76 gives the Secretary of States powers to direct that a local authority
may carry out urgent works to preserve unoccupied buildings in Conservation
Areas.

1

Page 9 PPS5 Planning for the Historic Environment: Historic Environment Planning Practice Guide.

Page 113
4

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

existing legal framework for the designation of scheduled monuments, listed
buildings, Conservation Areas, registered parks and gardens or protected
(1)
wrecks'.

Section 77 enables loans or grants to be made towards the preservation or
enhancement of Conservation Areas.

3.16

Section 78 enables such grants to be recovered under certain circumstances.

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
ual fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

3.15

Page 114
5

4.1

English Heritage recommends that local authorities only designate areas that
are of ‘special interest’ in the local context and this designation should be
based on tailored and consistent criteria. There are no national criteria for the
designation or review of Conservation Areas; however the English Heritage
Guidance documents 'Conservation Area Practice' and ‘Guidance on
Conservation Area Appraisals’ fill this gap to some extent.

4.2

English Heritage guidance makes it clear that the designation of Conservation
Areas is a matter for local planning authorities guided by specialist advice and it
emphasises the need to establish a consistent and responsible approach to the
review of Conservation Areas, which takes into account locally related criteria.

4.3

English Heritage and the Secretaries of State advise that local planning
authorities must ensure that they have adequate resources to fulfil the duties
commensurate with the designation of Conservation Areas without which the
principle of designation could be devalued.

4.4

NPPF further supports this approach through para 127 namely; ‘when
considering the designation of conservation areas, local planning authorities
should ensure that an area justifies such status because of its special
architectural or historic interest, and that the concept of conservation is not
devalued through the designation of areas that lack special interest.’2…’ A
building, monument, site, place, area or landscape identified as having a
degree of significance meriting consideration in planning decisions, because of
its heritage interest. Heritage asset includes designated heritage assets and
assets identified by the local planning authority (including local listing).’3

4.5

English Heritage guidance note Guidance on Conservation Area Appraisals
gives further advice on the assessment of areas. It advises that the formal
assessment and definition of 'special architectural or historic interest’ ideally
should be based on a detailed analysis of the area. It suggests the following
checklist:The Location and Context;
A factual description of the location of the area and its regional context
should be provided. Brief references to economic profile, general condition
and existing or potential forces for change might usefully be included.
Where the Conservation Area covers only part of a settlement, the
designated area should be set in its geographical and historical context in
relation to the character and appearance of the whole settlement.
General Character and Plan Form;
This should be a brief description of the general character or nature of
the Conservation Area and its existing plan form.
Landscape Setting;

2
3

Para 127 The National Planning Policy Framework.
Annex The National Planning Policy Framework

Page 115
6

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

4 Designation Guidelines

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

The topography of the area, the setting of the Conservation Area and
its relationship with the wider landscape should be described
Historic Development And Archaeology;
The origins and development of the area is most effectively shown on
maps. Supporting text should summarise the settlement’s history.
Spatial Analysis;
The character and interrelationship of spaces within the area, the way
they are enclosed, the visual contribution they make to the character of
the place should be defined and shown on a townscape analysis map.
Key View and Vistas;
Again this is best illustrated in map form with supporting text.
Character Analysis;
Definition of character areas or zones.
Activity and prevailing or former uses and their influence on the
plan form and buildings;
The form, grain and layout of different sub-areas of the Conservation
Area should be examined, for example grand terraces with mews, villas
set in generous gardens, workers back-to-back houses etc.
The quality of buildings and their contribution to the area;Most of
the buildings within a Conservation Area will help to shape its character in
one way or another. The extent to which their contribution is considered
as positive depends not just on their public face but also on their integrity
as historic structures and the impact they have in three dimensions,
perhaps in an interesting roofscape or skyline. Back elevations can be
important, as can side views from alleys and yards. This part of the
appraisal should include a general description of any dominant
architectural styles, the prevalent types and periods of buildings, their
status (i.e. statutorily or locally listed) and essential characteristics, and
their relationship to the topography and/or skyline.
Unlisted buildings;
In addition to Listed Buildings it is important to identify on a map those
unlisted buildings that make an important contribution to the character of
the Conservation Area, as well as those which clearly detract from it and
could suitably be replaced. English Heritage suggest a checklist of criteria
(set out in Appendix E) to assess whether an unlisted building makes a
positive contribution to a Conservation Area. Recommendations for new or
additional ‘buildings of townscape merit’ or locally listed buildings could
form part of the appraisal. Guidance on criteria for selecting Buildings of
Local Interest and Areas of High Townscape Value has been produced and
is available as a companion document
Local Details;
Including local constructional or joinery details, characteristic historic
shopfronts and unusual local features which make a vital contribution
to local distinctiveness.
Prevalent and traditional buildings materials and the public realm;
The range of prevalent and traditional materials in the area for buildings,
walls, ground surfaces particularly those that are characteristic of the local
vernacular should be described. As well as recording the types of materials to
be found, it will be important to note their textures and colours and the ways
in which they have been used. Any surviving historic surfaces should be
recorded and their importance to the special interest of the Conservation Area
explained. Existing historic or unusual street furniture should be noted, as
should any other distinctive elements that contribute to the character or

Page8 116
7

4.6

In Conservation Principles English Heritage published a model for identifying a
place's significance, comprising four categories of values. Evidential value is the
potential of material remains to yield primary evidence about past human activity.

9

Page 117
8

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
ual fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

appearance of the public realm. In some Conservation Areas, where
significant change to public space is proposed, an audit of the public
realm may be appropriate.
An audit of heritage assets;
An audit will only be needed in larger, more complex areas, where there is
a wide range of historic structures, and/or in areas with an industrial
heritage. It should consider only extant features and structures.
The contribution made to the character of the area by green
spaces; and its biodiversity value;
The importance of parks and gardens, both public and private, should be
identified, particularly any sites that are included on the Register of Parks
and Gardens of Special Historic Interest (compiled by English Heritage),
and their contribution described. Domestic gardens, especially planted
front gardens, can make a significant contribution to the character of
many Conservation Areas and should be mentioned. Trees, hedges and
street greenery are a vital element of many Conservation Areas, not only
in public places, but on private land as well. Important single trees and
groups should be identified and described in their locations. Their species,
condition and potential lifespan should be assessed, so that a strategy for
maintenance and replanting can be devised.
The extent of intrusion or damage, (negative factors);
The appraisal should identify elements which detract from the special
character of the area, and which offer potential for beneficial change.
These might include the consequences of harmful pressures on an area ,
such as the loss of front gardens to hard standing for cars, the loss of
traditional architectural features and fenestration, or the existence of
unattractive gap sites.
The existence of any neutral areas;
Those areas which neither enhance nor detract from the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area should be noted, areas where
there might be potential for enhancement should be recognised.
General condition;
The general condition of the area, covering both its economic vitality and
the physical condition of the historic buildings, other heritage assets and
the public realm, should be described. Any buildings at risk, or in a
serious state of disrepair, or related problems (for example, a major
land/property owner or developer pursuing an obvious policy of deliberate
neglect) should be recorded.
Problems, pressures and capacity for change;
Generic issues that underlie obvious problems (such as the effects of
heavy traffic, a low economic base resulting in vacancy and disrepair of
buildings, or pressure for a particular type of change or development)
should be identified, as well as specific examples (such as buildings at
risk, or uncontrolled, inappropriate advertising).The need for additional
controls, particularly Article 4 directions, to prevent further erosion of the
area’s special interest, should be noted as should potential capacity for
beneficial change.

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

Historical value is the capacity of a place to reflect events and personalities
from the past. Aesthetic values are the sensory and intellectual stimulation
which people derive from a place. Communal values are the meanings of a
place for the people who relate to it, for example as a source of identity, or
(4)
focus of commemorative or spiritual values.

4

C. Edwards, 2009. Heritage Values in a Conservation Area. Context, 109, pp. 35

Page 118
9

5.1

Application of English Heritage Guidelines to Eastbourne

5.2

The advice as set out in the English Heritage Guidance notes, the NPPF and its
accompanying Planning Practice Guide is particularly useful in helping to
ensure a greater degree of consistency of approach in the assessment of areas
throughout the country.

5.3

The English Heritage guidance notes inform the approach adopted by this
Council in the assessment, procedure and designation of Conservation Areas.
The importance of public consultation, detailed assessment and the provision
of adequate information to Members are also emphasised as is the need for
the establishment of consistent local criteria for designation. These are set out
in Appendix A ‘Criteria for Measuring Special Interest and for Drawing the
Boundaries of Conservation Areas’.

5.4

Urban Areas;
In terms of listed building, all buildings built before 1700, which survive in
anything like their original condition are listed, as are most buildings built between
1700 to 1840, although some selection is necessary, only buildings of definite
quality and character built between 1840 to 1914 are listed and after 1914 only
selected buildings of outstanding quality and under threat are included on the list.
More recently Conservation Areas have been designated to include much later
periods of urban development where the architectural quality and character of the
area is of sufficient merit. As most of the development in Eastbourne was built in
response to the arrival of the railway in 1849, Conservation Areas are particularly
effective in protecting these (mostly unlisted) late nineteenth century
developments in the Borough. Early maps are particularly useful as part of the
assessment of the historic interest of these areas.

5.5

Historic Parks and Gardens;
The grounds of Compton Place and part of The Hoo in Willingdon have been
included in the Register of Parks and Gardens of Special Historic Interest
compiled by English Heritage, which has graded these landscapes in a similar
way to listed buildings. These landscapes form an essential part of the
Borough’s heritage. Where development is proposed within or adjacent to a
registered historic park or garden English Heritage is consulted. In addition the
Council considers that Manor Gardens, Motcombe Gardens, the Seafront
Gardens, Upperton Gardens, Hartfield Gardens, Hampden Park, The Helen
Gardens, Holywell Retreat and Princes Park are also of special local interest
and development proposals in these areas will not be permitted.

The Borough’s historic parks and gardens are unique either formal or informal
landscaped areas, often with mature planting, sometimes conceived to an overall
scheme and/or to provide a setting to country houses, such as the grounds of
Compton Place. Typical parkland and gardens consist of a perimeter belt of trees,
enclosing open land with isolated clusters of trees and/or single specimen trees. Other
features might include lakes, rivers or canals, classical structures and flower beds
close to the main house. The park and garden boundaries are often (though not
always) enclosed by walls. Historic boundaries of parklands can often be identified
from early maps.

Page 119
10

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
of Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

5 Designation

5.6

1
1

Archaeology
Most settlements contain archaeological evidence which helps to explain their
origins and the early development of their built form, economy, industry and
the life styles of former inhabitants. Archaeological Notification Areas
(formerly Archaeologically Sensitive Areas) have been identified within the
Borough and some of these areas are located within or adjacent to
Conservation Areas. It is highly likely that archaeological remains will be found
in these areas, therefore the impact any proposed development may have on
an Archaeological Notification Area is a material consideration in the planning
process. Archaeological recording is likely to be a requirement when planning
consent is granted for development in such areas.

Designation Implications
5.7

There are inherent consequences in designating Conservation Areas, with
implications for the owners of buildings/land in Conservation Areas and for
local authorities. The major implications are summarised below;

5.8

Local Authorities’ Duties
Local planning authorities have a duty from time to time to review the
extent of designations and if appropriate, to designate further areas
(Section 62(2)2).
The local planning authority is under a general duty to ensure the
preservation and enhancement of Conservation Areas, to prepare
proposals to that end and submit them to public consultation (Section 71).
In exercising their planning powers, local authorities must pay special
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character
or appearance of Conservation Areas (Section 72).

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
ual fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

5.9

Implications for the Local Authority
Planning Permission is needed for the demolition of any unlisted building
in the area, and the local authority or the Secretary of State may take
enforcement action or institute a criminal prosecution if consent is not
obtained.
Notice must be given (six weeks notice) to the local planning authority
before works are carried out to any tree in the area (subject to specific
exceptions). The authority may grant consent or if necessary make a Tree
Preservation Order.
Planning applications for development, which would (in the opinion of the
local planning authority) affect the character or appearance of the
Conservation Area must be publicised and any representations received
must be taken into account when determining the application.
The local planning authority may be authorised by the Secretary of State
to carry out urgent works to preserve unlisted buildings which are
unoccupied. Additional controls apply to roof extensions, cladding, satellite
dishes on front elevations and some extensions.
Local policies relating to Conservation Areas will be a material
consideration when applications for planning permission or Conservation
Area consent are considered.

Page 120
11

5.10

Implications for the Secretary of State

5.11

The Secretary of State must take into account the requirements and policies in
the legislation and Local Plans when considering amongst other things;
Appeals against refusals for planning permission and Conservation
Area consent;
Appeals against refusals for consent to works to trees protected by a
Tree Preservation Order;
Applications for confirmation of Article 4 Directions;
Confirmation for Areas of Special Advertisement Control.

5.12

Implications for Residents and Owners
1.

2.
3.

5.13

When a property is purchased in a Conservation Area purchasers are
informed through their search that the area is of special architectural and
historic interest and this appears as a local land charge.
There is greater restriction and control in regards to certain minor
alterations to buildings and felling of trees.
Building costs may be slightly higher for certain repairs or alterations but
these costs may be offset by the advantages of the control of development
and other positive conservation measures designed to maintain the character
and appearance of the area and the beneficial effect this is liable to have on
property values. The requirement to advertise applications and the need to
take into account local views may also be seen to be a positive benefit in
protecting and enhancing the quality of the area.

Designation
The decision to designate a Conservation Area is comparable to a major
land use policy decision. Due to the responsibilities and implications that
designation confirms it is crucial that only areas which are demonstrably
of special architectural or historic interest should be designated.

5.14

Public Support
The decision to review an area for possible designation or inclusion in an
existing Conservation Area may be motivated by public interest, such as
representations made by a residential group or local amenity society.
Public consultation provides an opportunity to test public support which is
important if policies directed towards the preservation or enhancement of
the character or appearance of the area are to succeed. Public interest
and support also needs to be maintained after designation, through for
example, continuing publicity and consultation on specific proposals for
preservation or enhancement.

Page 121
12

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
ual fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

Additional controls (in the form of Article 4 Directions) may be needed to
protect unlisted buildings from unsympathetic minor alterations which
may damage the character of the Conservation Area.
It will be necessary for different departments of the local planning
authority (and the Highway Authority in so far as street works are
concerned) to understand the significance of designation and to act in a
co-ordinated manner.

5.15

Monitoring Change

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
ual fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

Changes in the appearance of Conservation Areas due to new
development or alterations and the condition of the area’s fabric should be
monitored and their effects reviewed regularly. Policies should be
reviewed as necessary to deal with current issues.

Page 122
13

6 Planning Policies
6.1

Planning decisions are normally made with reference to statutory development
plans and the most important documents to refer to regarding Conservation Area
guidance are the Borough Local Plan and the supplementary planning guidance
Eastbourne Townscape Guide. The main policies of relevance to Conservation
Areas are set out in Appendix C. These policies are subject to revision as part of
the preparation of the Local Development Framework. This list is for guidance only
and reference should be made to the original documents for further detail.

6.2

Other Relevant Designations

6.3

National Parks are areas of relatively undeveloped and scenic landscape
designated under the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949.
There are currently 12 designated national parks across England and Wales
and currently the South Downs National Park is being designated as a national
park and will be established by 2011. Each park is operated by its own
National Park Authority (Countryside Agency), with two statutory aims:
1.
2.

to conserve and enhance the natural beauty, wildlife and cultural
heritage of the area,
to promote opportunities for the understanding and enjoyment of the
park's special qualities by the public.

The South Downs National Park is adjacent to and incorporates parts of the Meads
Conservation Area to the west and is adjacent to Willingdon Conservation Area to the
north.
6.4

Scheduled Ancient Monuments

The national schedule of monuments has its own statutory protection and applications
for scheduled monument consent are determined solely by the Secretary of State.
6.5

Archaeological Notification Areas (formerly Archaeologically Sensitive
Areas)

In addition to scheduled monuments there are a large number of other ancient
monuments that have special interest. The most significant of these have been identified
and collected into Archaeological Notification Areas (ANA) by East Sussex County Council.
The Council recognises the importance of ANA’s and will safeguard their interest by
consultation with the County Council’s archaeological advisor on planning applications
within the designated areas. The existence of an ANA is a local land charge.

6.6

Nature Conservation Designations

There are a number of other designations, referred to below, which aim to protect the
nature conservation interest of an area. Some of these designations carry statutory
protection, others are of countrywide or local significance and this value is recognised
through development plan policies. It should be remembered that however important
these sites may be to nature conservation their inclusion in a Conservation Area can
only be justified if the site contributes to the Special Architectural or Historic Interest
of the area.

Page 123
14

Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI)
These are defined by English Nature as the best examples of our natural
heritage – wildlife habitats, geological features and landforms. They are of
national importance and are designated under the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 or the National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949. The
Eastbourne Downland includes Seaford to Beachy Head (part only); and
Willingdon Down, which are Sites of Special Scientific Interest.
Sites of Nature Conservation Importance (SNCI)
There are 19 such sites in Eastbourne and their importance is set out in
the Designated Sites of Nature Conservation Importance Supplementary
Planning Guidance. Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) may be
taken into account as a material planning consideration when reaching a
decision on a planning application. Policy NE20 in the Borough Plan states
that: ‘Development which has an unacceptable adverse effect, directly or
indirectly, on the nature conservation interest of a site identified as a Site
of Nature Conservation Importance will not be permitted. Where proposals
are permitted the Planning Authority will require the proper conservation
management of Sites of Nature Conservation Importance.’
6.7

Trees in Conservation Areas;
A major constituent of the character and appearance of many Conservation
Areas are the trees and open spaces within them and consequently local
authorities have been given some powers to control works to trees there. All
trees standing within a Conservation Area (with limited exceptions) are legally
protected and the local planning authority must be given six weeks written
notice (subject to specified exemptions) of any works to trees within the area.
It is an offence to cut down, lop, top, uproot or wilfully damage or destroy any
tree in a Conservation Area except with the consent of the Local Planning
Authority. The exemptions to this are:
If the tree is dead, dying or dangerous – for the felling or carrying out on
trees so far as it is necessary to remove the dead, dying or dangerous part.
However five days’ notice should still be given except in an emergency.
The cutting down, uprooting, topping or lopping of a tree with a diameter
of not more than 75mm at 1.5m above ground level; or the cutting or
uprooting or a tree with a diameter of not more than 100mm at that
height solely to improve the growth of other trees.
The pruning of any fruit tree.
Where a tree is felled under the dead, dying or dangerous exemption, the
legislation places a duty on the landowner to plant a replacement. Owners
wishing to carry out works to a tree are required to complete a form
(Notification of Tree Works within a Conservation Area known as a Section
211 Notice). The planning authority may respond in one of three ways:

1.
2.
3.

decide that retention of the tree is justified in the interests of amenity
and make a Tree Preservation Order (TPO),
write to the applicant informing them that the works may proceed
allow six weeks to expire without making a TPO, after which time the
works may proceed,(but works should be completed within two years).

Page15
124

The planning authority is unable to impose conditions or to refuse the works detailed
in a Section 211 Notice, other than by making a TPO.
The intention of the legislation is to stop preemptive felling and to give the local
authority sufficient time to negotiate agreed action or (if this proves unsuccessful) to
make a Tree Preservation Order.
When designating a Conservation Area it is not necessary to provide a detailed survey
of location and species of the trees. However, the more detailed survey information
that can be provided the more effective future monitoring, enforcement and
prosecution action is likely to be.
6.8

Tree Preservation Orders

Tree Preservation Orders give comprehensive protection to trees and provide that no
person may, without consent, cut down, top, lop, uproot, willingly damage or destroy
or cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or
destruction of a tree (this consent is not needed in some exceptional cases). It is an
offence to undertake works in contravention of a Tree Preservation Order.

Page 125
16

Guidance
Gui
Gu
ida
danc
nce
e Ma
Manu
Manual
nual
al ffor
or D
Des
Designation
esig
igna
nati
tion
on & R
Rev
Review
evie
iew
w of C
Con
Conservation
onse
serv
rvat
atio
ion
n Ar
Area
Areas
eas
s

A felling licence is required under the Forestry Acts if more than five cubic metres of
timber is to be cut or more than two cubic metres of the exempt amount is to be sold
in any calendar quarter, this legislation applies mainly to areas of woodland.

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
ual fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

7 Conservation Area Management
7.1

The primary policies concerning Conservation Areas are set out in the Borough
Plan. Chapter 5 Urban Heritage and Townscape contains guidance on issues
including the design of new development in Conservation Areas, the setting of
Conservation Areas and alterations to buildings, buildings at risk,
enhancement, highway works and other subjects relevant to the management
of Conservation Areas.

7.2

Conservation Area Character Appraisals
Local authorities are under a general duty to prepare Conservation Area
Character Appraisals for each of their Conservation Areas. The appraisal
should set out the intrinsic features that give the area its distinct and unique
character and should also justify the designation of the area.

7.3

Design and Development Briefs
Where the character of a Conservation Area could benefit from the redevelopment
of a site it may be useful to prepare specific design briefs that establish how the
general principals for new development set out in the Local Plan and
Supplementary Planning Guidance might be applied to the site concerned.

7.4

Publicity
Under the Planning (Historic Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 an
advert must be placed in at least one local newspaper and in the London
Gazette following designation of a Conservation Area. This must contain
sufficient detail to enable the area to be identified and a note as to the effects
of the designation. There is a requirement under the Act to publicise proposals
to preserve or enhance a Conservation Area by holding a public meeting or
public exhibition. Local Councillors, the Conservation Area Advisory Group and
Amenity Groups area also consulted.

Once the Conservation Area is designated (or amended) a letter is sent to all property
owners affected by the changes including and map and Notice under Section 69 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 which outlines the
principal effects of designation. A map and Schedule of properties is then prepared for
each Conservation Area and official notifications are carried out.

Page
17126

Criteria for Measuring the Special Interest and Drawing the Boundaries
of Conservation Areas
The following criteria are the measures against which current and future Conservation
Areas in Eastbourne will be objectively selected (or not) and their boundaries defined.
The main purpose of a boundary review is to assess whether or not the existing
boundary should be amended or whether a new Conservation Area should be
designated. If areas outside the existing Conservation Area can be seen to have
demonstrably special architectural or historic interest and the same or very similar
character and appearance, then the Conservation Area should be extended to include
the new areas. If areas within the existing Conservation Area have lost the qualities
that originally merited their inclusion (through, for example, inappropriate
incremental alterations) then these should be excluded from the Conservation Area.
The following tests will be applied in designating and reviewing the boundary of
Eastbourne’s Conservation Areas:
1

Test 1 Architectural Quality and Historic Relevance
The majority of buildings must have some strong intrinsic architectural or
historic merit by virtue of age, design, materials and/or whether they were
designed by a known architect or by the same developer etc. The following
criteria should be considered;
does the area reflect the architectural style and details present
within substantial parts of the Conservation Area?
does the area represent an important phase in the historic development
of the town/village?
is the development of similar massing, bulk, height and scale to a
significant proportion of the development within the Conservation Area?
does the area represent a notable piece of town/village planning?
does the area include good examples of the work of well known
architects? does the development within the area date from a similar
period to substantial parts of the Conservation Area?
is the development the work of the same architect or developer
active elsewhere within significant parts of the Conservation Area?
do the current uses within the area reflect prevailing or former uses
of substantial parts of the Conservation Area?

2

Test 2 Townscape/Public Realm Quality
Consideration is also given to the townscape quality of the area and whether
there is sufficient justification for the introduction of additional controls. In
particular; the proportion of the buildings within the area which would be
defined as positive contributors if located within the Conservation Area. Issues
to consider are;
does the street/area substantially retain its original fabric and
appearance relating to features including front gardens/soft landscaping
(if relevant); front boundary walls/railings (if relevant);

Page 127
18

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

8 Appendix A Criteria

do the buildings in the street/area retain original features (doors,
windows, porches, stucco detailing; decorative panelling, chimney stacks,
survival of brickwork or stonework that has not been rendered or painted
etc.), which overall remain predominantly intact;
is the original roofscape of the street/area predominantly
intact; are there any original shop fronts (if relevant);
are there few instances overall of inappropriate alterations and
extensions (introduction of inappropriate dormers; infilling between
properties; over prominent rear extensions)?
It is necessary to take into account the extent of any uncharacteristic alterations or other
damage to buildings within the area in order to assess its suitability for designation.

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew of C
Con
Conservation
onse
serv
rvat
atio
ion
n Ar
Area
Areas
eas
s

3

Test 3 Boundaries:

In establishing the boundaries of Conservation Areas a number of factors (as well as
the criteria set out in Tests 1 and 2) must be considered. Many of the Conservation
Areas in Eastbourne are surrounded or bordered by Areas of High Townscape Value
(AHTV); these areas usually form part of the setting of Conservation Areas but
generally have a less defined historic relevance, townscape/public realm quality or
architectural quality. All areas, including AHTVs surrounding Conservation Areas will
be reviewed as part of the Conservation Area boundary review and their significance
reassessed. The result could be that the boundary of the Conservation Area remains
unchanged, areas are deleted from the designation or part of the surrounding area
may be included in the Conservation Area designation. When assessing the
boundaries of Conservation Areas it is important to consider the following;
does the area under consideration retain its original boundary lines,
including historic layout of property boundaries and thoroughfares?
when reviewing the boundary of the Conservation Area and its relationship to
neighbouring areas, it is important to consider the following factors;
1.

2.
3.

are there discernible and distinct changes in the character and quality of
the adjoining open spaces and/or landscaping between the two areas?
is there a particular 'mix' of uses common to the Conservation Area
and surrounding area?
are there topographical townscape and/or landscape features
common to both areas which form an integral part of the setting of
the historic built environment?

Page 128
19

Existing Conservation Areas in Eastbourne
Year of
Designation

Name

Amendments

1969

Old Town

Extended 1984

1969

Meads

Extended 1982, 1988

1969

Willingdon

1969

Town Centre and
Seafront

1974

Ratton

1986

Saffrons

1986

Warrior Square

1986

College

1991

Torfield

1991

South Lynn Drive

1991

1994

The Park Close

Upperton Gardens*

Area (ha)
15.7
111.8
2.2

Extended 1975, 1979, 1986,
1992

84.3
0.86
2.2

*Boundary Review 2010. No
boundary changes proposed.

0.4
13.8

Boundary review 2012

1.5
1.1

Boundary Review 2014
Introduction of an Article 4
Direction to come into effect
January 2016
*Boundary Review 2009/10.
Extended 2010 and the
conservation area renamed
'Upperton' to reflect these
changes.

Table 1

Page 129
20

1.3

13.9

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
of Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

9 Appendix B Conservation Areas in Eastbourne

10 Appendix C Planning Policies
Borough Local Plan September 2007: Policies of Relevance to
Conservation Areas
The following policies are relevant to conservation areas and are designed to conserve
the character and appearance of the built and natural environment. These polices are
material considerations in the assessment of planning applications.
CHAPTERS

POLICY N0.

Guidance Manual for Designation & Review of Conservation Areas

5 URBAN HERITAGE AND TOWNSCAPE
Design of New Development

UHT1

Height of Buildings

UHT2

Setting of The AONB

UHT3

Visual Amenity

UHT4

Protecting Walls/Landscape Features

UHT5

Tree Planting

UHT6

Landscaping

UHT7

Protection of Amenity Space

UHT8

Protection of Historic Parks and Gardens

UHT9

Design of Public Areas

UHT10

Shopfronts

UHT11

Advertisements

UHT12

External Floodlighting

UHT13

Protection of Conservation Areas

UHT15

Retention of Historic Buildings

UHT19

6 HOUSING
Redevelopment

HO7

Residential Amenity

HO20

10 THE TOWN CENTRE
Town Centre Housing Allocations

TC13

11 TOURISM
Commercial Uses on the Seafront

TO9

Page 130
21

POLICY N0.

12 LEISURE AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES
Extension of Educational Establishments

LCF18

All Saint's Hospital

LCF19

13 UTILITIES AND SERVICES
Telecommunications Development

USD9

Table 2

Page 131
22

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
off Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

CHAPTERS

11 Appendix E English Heritage Guidance
ENGLISH HERITAGE NOTE – Conservation Area PRACTICE
Assessing the Historic Interest or Character of Unlisted Buildings

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
of Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

English Heritage considers that the following questions should be asked when
assessing whether or not unlisted buildings make a positive contribution to the special
architectural or historic interest of as Conservation Area:
Has the building qualities of age, style, materials, or any other
characteristics, which reflect those of at least a substantial number of the
buildings in the Conservation Area?
Does it relate by age, materials or in any other historically significant way
to adjacent listed buildings and contribute positively to their setting? Does
it, individually or as part of a group, serve as a reminder of the gradual
development of the settlement in which it stands, or of an earlier phase of
growth?
Does it have a significant historic association with established features
such as the road layout, burgage plots, a town park, or landscape
feature? Does the building have landmark quality?
Does it reflect the traditional functional character of, or former uses
within, the area?
Has it significant historic associations with local people or past events?
If a building, does its use and internal public space contribute to the
character or appearance of the Conservation Area?
In English Heritage’s view any one of these characteristics could provide the basis for
considering that a building makes a positive contribution to the special interest of a
Conservation Area, provided that its historic form and qualities have not been
seriously eroded by unsympathetic alterations.

Page 132
23
24

Further References
Acts
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
Government Policy Guidance
The National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] 2012
Planning Practice Guidance, 2014.
English Heritage
Conservation Principles Policies and Guidance for the Sustainable
Management of the Historic Environment (2008)
Guidance on the Management of Conservation Areas (2006)
Guidance on Conservation Area Character Appraisals (2006)
Development in the Historic Environment (1995)
PPS5 Planning for the Historic Environment: Historic Environment
Planning Practice Guide.
Eastbourne Borough Council
Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001 - 2011
Statement of Community Involvement. Adopted 22 July 2009
Eastbourne Townscape Guide Supplementary Planning Guide 2004
Sussex Extensive Urban Survey
Eastbourne Historic Character Assessment Report 2008
Books
Mynors Charles : Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas and Monuments
4th edition London Sweet & Maxwell (2006)
Journals
C. Edwards, 2009. Heritage Values in a Conservation Area. Context,
109, pp. 35-37

Page 133
24

Guidance
Guid
Gu
idan
ance
ce M
Man
Manual
anua
uall fo
forr De
Desi
Designation
sign
gnat
atio
ion
n & Re
Revi
Review
view
ew o
of Co
Cons
Conservation
nser
erva
vati
tion
on A
Are
Areas
reas
as

12 Appendix F References

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134

GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE FOR THE SELECTION
OF LOCAL HERITAGE ASSETS (BUILDINGS OF
LOCAL INTEREST AND AREAS OF HIGH
TOWNSCAPE VALUE)

Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road
Eastbourne
East Sussex
BN21 4TW

Page 135

This information is available in
other formats including large
print and other languages on
request from Eastbourne Borough
Council

GOOD PRACTICE GUIDANCE FOR THE SELECTION
OF LOCAL HERITAGE ASSETS (BUILDINGS OF
LOCAL INTEREST AND AREAS OF HIGH
TOWNSCAPE VALUE)

Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne
East Sussex, BN21 4TW

Tel:
Fax:
Minicom:
Email:

(01323) 410000
(01323) 415130
(01323) 415111
customerfirst@eastbourne.gov.uk

Date:

First Published: May 2015

Price:

£10.00

Available to view on-line at:
www.eastbourne.gov.uk/ the by following the planning policy
link to conservation

Page 136

Prologue
This document aims to set out the level of protection afforded to
local heritage assets, the purpose of the Local Heritage List and
identifies the criteria local communities can use to select; local
heritage assets such as buildings, areas, spaces and places that
matter to them. Assets that build a sense of identity and
distinctiveness, values that are taken into account when changes to
them are considered

Page 137

Content

1. Background ………………………………………………………………………..1
2. Introduction…………………………………………………………………………2
3. Protection of Local Heritage Assets…………………………………...3
4. Local Heritage Assets and Conservation Areas……………......6
5. Purpose of the Local Heritage Register………………………………7
6. Development of the Selection Criteria………………………………..8
7. Selection Criteria ……………………………………………………………...11
7.3 Special Interest……………………………………………………….12
7.3.1 Age and Rarity
7.3.2 Integrity
7.3.3 Group Value
7.3.4 Representative
Historic Association
7.3.5 Aesthetic Merit
Artistic Innovative or Virtuosity
7.3.6 Association
Technological Innovative or Technique
Social Importance
7.4 Heritage Values……………………………………………………..18
7.4.1 Aesthetic Value
7.4.2 Historic Value
7.4.3 Evidential Value
7.4.4 Communal Value
8. Archaeological Sites…………………………………………………………..20
9. Recommendations for Local Heritage Assets …………………...20
10 Nominate a Local Heritage Asset (Identification Sheet) …21
11 Bibliography ……………………………………………………………………….22

Page 138

1.

Background

1.1

Local Authorities have been identifying heritage assets of local interest
since the 1970’s; however despite the lists of identified heritage assets
produced by those individual authorities the selection criteria adopted
by each, lacked national continuity. In that the majority of historic
lists of local assets, have been prepared with limited community
involvement and the absence of formal criteria. This document does
not intent to change Eastbourne’s current list of buildings of local
interest or areas of high townscape value, but sets out good practice
guidance and criteria for the selection and management of heritage
assets of local interest.

1.2

For clarification a local heritage asset, for the purpose of this
document, is defined as a Building of Local Interest and Area of High
Townscape Value.
“Heritage assets not designated under statutory regimes, but
recognised by the Local Planning Authority [LPA] as having
heritage significance, do merit consideration in planning
matters; with the LPA taking a balanced judgement having
regard to the scale of any harm or loss to the significance of
the heritage asset.” 1

National Westminster Bank addressing Terminus Roads and Cornfield Road
1.

Good Practice Guide for Local Heritage Listing, English Heritage, Pg.7

Page 139
1

2. Introduction
2.1

The historic environment is central to England’s cultural, social,
economic and environmental values. Which provide a sense of
identity through history, place and quality of life, an invaluable
asset that should be sustained for present and future generations.
The National Planning Policy Framework [NPPF] provides protection
through the planning system for heritage assets of national
importance in England. At local level the planning authority should
consider the ‘effect of an application on the significance of a nondesignated heritage asset in determining the application. In
weighing applications that affect directly or indirectly non
designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required
having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance
of the heritage asset.” 2

2.3

In this respect, the identification of local assets through set criteria,
allows the local community and local planning authority to work in
partnership to decide what in their area they would like recognised as
local heritage assets, worthy of some protection through the planning
system.

2.4

Set criteria also provides, clarity about the assets identified
significance and location for future developers. Therefore allowing
considered decisions to be made about those parts of the historic
environment the community genuinely values.

2.4

This document aims to set out the level of protection afforded to
local heritage assets, the purpose of the list and identifies the
criteria local communities can use to select; assets such as
buildings, areas, spaces and places that matter to them. Assets
that build a sense of identity and distinctiveness, values that are
taken into account when changes to them are proposed.

2.

National Planning Policy Framework NPPF para.135

Page 140
2

3. Protection of Local Heritage Assets
3.1

Heritage assets identified as being of local interest are not subject to
further protection through the planning system. Therefore additional
consents over and above those required for planning permission will
not be a requirement. However the conservation and contribution of
local heritage assets will be a material consideration in planning
decisions, which directly affect the significance of the identified asset
or its setting.

3.2

To safeguard those heritage assets identified as being of local interest
the Council, will take into account Policy UHT 18 of the Borough Plan,
when considering planning applications for the alteration and extension
of buildings of local interest. In addition Policy UHT 16 of the Borough
Plan, when considering development within Areas of High Townscape
Value.

3.3

Policy UHT 18: Buildings of Local Interest in the Borough Plan
recognises this and states:
“Proposals which would adversely affect the character or appearance of
buildings of local interest will not be permitted. Should planning
permission be granted for a major alteration, the consent will be
subject to a condition to provide and opportunity for the building to be
inspected and recorded” 3

3.4

Policy UHT 16: Protection of Areas of High Townscape Value is the
primary policy contained in the Borough Plan and states:
“Proposals within Areas of High Townscape Value will be required to
generally preserve the character and appearance of the area.
Development shall:
a) Use materials which respect and compliment the predominant
traditional materials of the location;
b) Not allow the loss of traditional materials and features;
c) Retain amenity spaces where they form part of an established
character of the area; and
d) Retain, wherever possible, the existing trees and other
important landscape features. In exceptional cases where any
such loss is allowed, compensatory provision will be required in
terms of quality and quantity. 3

3. Eastbourne Borough Plan - Chapter 5 Urban Heritage and Townscape

Page 141
3

3.5

In addition the Eastbourne Townscape Guide provides an expansion
of the policies found in the Urban Heritage and Townscape Chapter
of the Eastbourne Borough Plan. As Supplementary Planning
Guidance [SPG], Eastbourne Townscape Guide expands the primary
policies, when considering planning applications for the alteration
and extension of local heritage assets, namely;.
Extensions
Guideline E4: Extensions to buildings of local interest and buildings i
in areas of high townscape value will be expected to be appropriate
scale, harmony and rhythm with the host building.
Roofs
Guideline R8: In areas of high townscape value and on buildings of
local interest, the Council will normally:
(a) expect changes to the roof covering to be in a material that
reflects the colour, texture and unit size of the original
covering or predominant covering in the street/ terrace;
(b) expect the retention of prominent chimney stacks with their
pots and;
(c) allow the use of alternative materials for fascias, soffits, gutters
and pipework.
Windows and Doors
Guideline WD3: In areas of high townscape value and buildings of
local interest, the Council will normally:a) expect the retention of the original doors and windows where
these are in the majority on visible elevations of the
individual building or the terrace if the premises forms part of
a terrace;
b) allow in cases other than a) above and on hidden elevations, or
those not generally seen from public areas, the use of
alternative materials for windows and doors in a matching
style to the originals.
Front Boundary Walls and Car Parking
Guideline FWCP3: Council will normally expect applications for
creating a vehicular access to the front of a property that is on the
local list or in an area of high townscape value, to take into account
the quality of the building and area.
Satellite Dishes
Guideline SD3: On buildings of local interest and buildings within
areas of high townscape value, the Council expects satellite dishes
to be sited on hidden elevations or within the rear garden area.

Page 142
4

Refuge Storage
Guideline RS2: In all historic areas including buildings of local
interest and buildings within areas of high townscape value the
Council expects permanent refuse storage areas to be normally
located to the rear of the property.
3.6

The level of consideration a local heritage asset receives through
the planning process is however reliant on a sound basis for its
selection. Therefore the use of nationally recognised selection
criteria, adapted to reflect local character, will go towards
conserving and enhancing the identified significance of the asset.
However this does not imply; that a heritage asset that has not
been included on the local heritage list is of no heritage value,
simply that the building or area has not yet been identified or does
not currently meet the selection criteria.

3.7

If a local heritage asset is of such merit that its significance,
through the normal planning process, will inevitably be undermined.
The Council may consider the removal of permitted development
rights through an Article 4 Direction (in conjunction with the
selection process).

Willingdon Village Pump House (An existing locally listed building)

Built in 1880, the walls are decorated with sheep's knuckle bones

Page 143
5

4.

Local Heritage Assets and Conservation
Areas

4.1

Assets of local interest (local heritage assets) do not have to be in a
Conservation Area to be considered of merit. The assessment,
however, of existing conservation areas, does provide a useful
starting point, through the identification of unlisted buildings and
areas, which make a positive contribution to the historic and
architectural character and appearance of the identified area.
Although those identified unlisted buildings and areas, would
need to meet the selection criteria before being considered to be
local heritage assets.4

The Park Close – Subject to an Article 4 Direction and a designated Conservation Area

4. Understanding Place: Conservation Area Designation, Appraisal and Management, English Heritage, 2011.

Page6144

5.

Purpose of the Local Heritage Register

5.1

The purpose of the Local Heritage Register is to set out the
Boroughs objectives and criteria for the management of our local
heritage assets. While these buildings may not meet national
criteria for listing they undoubtedly add to the richness of the
Boroughs built environment which encapsulates the special identity
and social history of Eastbourne.
The objective of Eastbourne’s Local Heritage Register is as follows:

·

To raise awareness of the Borough’s buildings and areas that make
a positive contribution to local distinctiveness and quality of life.

·

To promote further research and recording of the Boroughs historic
environment including; important buildings, areas, associated
architects, occupiers and local events which have contributed to our
culture.

·

To inform residents, customers, developers, owners, Council
officers and Members about buildings and areas within the Borough
that are desirable to retain and protect.

·

To provide guidance and specialist advice to owners to help protect
the character and setting of the buildings and areas.

·

To aid the Council in its decision making when discussing proposals
and determining planning applications.

General view looking west of the houses on York Road, at the junction with Cannon Road
an identified Area of High Townscape Value

7

Page 145
7

6. Development of the Selection Criteria
6.1

There is increasing recognition that locally many areas and
buildings, both individually and collectively, add a rich diversity to a
local sense of identity as;
“People may value a place (building or area) for many reasons
beyond utility or personal association; for its distinctive architecture
(Aesthetic Value) or landscape, the story it can tell about its past
(Evidential Value), its connection with notable people or events
(Historic Value), its landform, flora and fauna, because they find it
beautiful or inspiring (Artistic Value), or for its role as a focus of a
community (Communal Value). These are examples of cultural and
natural heritage values in the historic environment that people want
to enjoy and sustain for the benefit of present and future
generations….”6

6.2

The criteria for the assessment of the significance of a local
heritage, has therefore taken into account all the inter-related
values, identified above, that contribute to its Architectural and
Historic interest. In addition, criteria for the assessment of interest,
has also taken into account the general principles used for national
designations namely; Age and Rarity, Integrity, Group Value
(Aesthetic Merits), Representativeness (Selectivity). 4

View along Enys Road, at the junction of Selwyn Road
No’s 1 – 45 are identified as Buildings of Local Interest

5.Conservation Principles, Policy and Guidance For The Sustainable Management of the Historic Environment, English
Heritage, 2008 : Page 27
6. Good Practice Guide for Local Heritage Listing, English Heritage

Page8 146

6.3

The table below briefly defines heritage values and special interest
at national level, the principles of which will form the adopted
criteria for the selection of heritage assets at a local level.
Heritage Value and Special
Interest
Aesthetic Value
‘derives from the ways in
which people draw sensory
and intellectual stimulation
from a place’
Historic Value
‘derives from the ways in
which past people, events
and aspects of life can be
connected through a place
to the present. It tends to
be illustrative or associative’

Evidential Value
‘derives from the potential a
building or area to yield
evidence about past human
activity.’ This would
probably but not exclusively
apply to areas of
archaeological importance.
Communal Value
‘derives from the meaning
of a place for the people
who relate to it, or for
whom it figures in their
collective experience and
memory.’
Age and Rarity

Integrity

Group Value

Representativeness

Description
A building, structure, site and setting
Architectural styles, date(s) of construction, materials,
key notable characteristics. What is its particular
townscape value; aesthetic value can be fortuitous or
designed. Unusual or rare features will give a building,
or area, a higher level of significance.
Illustrative: how the development, form and
appearance of a building or area illustrates or tells the
story of its history.
Associative: with a notable family, persons, event or
movement gives historical value a particular
resonance. Many buildings and landscape area
associated with the development of other aspects of
cultural heritage, such as literature, art, music or film.
Usually associated with older assets, however all
buildings and areas encapsulate information about
their historic development and chronology. The value
of which is proportionate to their age and
interpretation of the past and rarity.

The importance of an area for society or a particular
group in society, such as a war memorial, church,
school and or public buildings.

The older a building or area is, and the fewer the
surviving examples of its kind, the more likely it is to
have special interest. The relevance of age and rarity
will vary according to the particular type of building
and area.
To have a degree of integrity a building or area should
retain a sense of completeness, either as an individual
or as part of a larger group.
Where buildings are part of an important architectural
or historic group or are a fine example of planning
(squares, terraces etc.)
Represents a particular historical type, regional type,
style, architect or innovative technology.

Page 147
9

6.4

To assist with identifying what constitutes Eastbourne’s local
distinctiveness; an overarching statement of Eastbourne’s local
historic character, can be found in the accompanying Conservation
Areas In Eastbourne, Companion Document, which succinctly
identifies local characteristics, comparable to defining the heritage
‘values’ and ‘special interest’ when preparing the local heritage
asset criteria.

Page 148
10

7.
7.1

Selection Criteria
The diagram below demonstrates the relationship between Heritage
Values and Special Interest. In order for a local heritage asset to be
considered for inclusion on the Local Heritage Register, it must have
at least one element of special interest and one element of heritage
value.

Special Interest

Heritage Value

Age and Rarity

Integrity

Aesthetic Value

Historic Value
Group Value
Illustrative / Associative

Representativeness

Evidential Value

Historic Association

Archaeological Interest

Aesthetic Merit

Communal Value

Artistic Innovation and
Virtuosity

Association
Technology Innovation
or Technique
Social Importance

Page 149
11

7.2

If a building or area is identified to have some form of special
interest, it will then be judged against its historic value.
Sections 7.3 and 7.4 set out the selection criteria used to
identify heritage assets of local interest

7.3 Special Interest
7.3.1

Age, Rarity
The age of an asset is an important criterion as the
age range can take into account distinctive local
characteristics. The older a building or area the fewer
examples of its kind are likely to have survived and so
the more likely it is to have historic importance.
For a building to be considered to be included on the
register it must meet one or more of the following
criteria in the Age and Rarity categories;
·

Pre-1840: all buildings where the style, form and
construction of the building are easily identifiable
and potentially restorable.

·

1840 - 1880: all buildings that are largely complete
and of good architectural or historic interest.

·

1880 – 1940: only buildings that are substantially
complete and unaltered and of very good
architectural or historic interest that are largely
unaffected by alterations and extensions.

·

Post 1940: only buildings that are wholly complete
and of the highest level of architectural or historic
interest that is unaffected by inappropriate
alterations and extensions.

·

Is the area particularly old, does it allow for the
interpretation about the history of the area which is
distinctive to Eastbourne.

·

Does the area contribute to a date significant to
Eastbourne’s urban development.

Page 150
12

·

Is the urban development of the area significant to
an important person or event in Eastbourne’s
history.

·

Is the area a rare surviving example of evolved or
conscious urban design that contributes to the
history of Eastbourne and its urban development.

·

Is the area an early example of town planning

·

Does the area open up significance views of
Eastbourne

·

Does the area consist of urban landscape features
which are distinct to Eastbourne’s urban
development

Brick local to Eastbourne

Besides the age and rarity there are other criteria
for selection; a building may have architectural
interest, for example it may display particularly
impressive craftsmanship or distinctive
architectural style. It might demonstrate
technological innovation or excellence. It may have
a close documented historic association with
significant people or events in history or it might
have scenic, artistic or group value. An historic
building may have limited architectural interest but
remain structurally sound and be adaptable for new
uses.

Page 151
13

7.3.2

Integrity
To have a degree of integrity, the building or area
should retain a sense of completeness, either as an
individual building, plan form or landscape feature as
part of a larger group. The building or area may also
represent a single phase of development, or
encompass several phases, as can be found with most
residential or institutional buildings or associated
areas.

7.3.3

Group Value
·

Terraces, enclosing buildings (surrounding
squares), uniformed rows etc

·

Early local examples of deliberate town planning

·

Groups which as a whole have a unified
architectural and historic value to the local area.

1 – 45 Enys Road, Buildings of Local Interest representing Group Value

7.3.4

Representative
A local heritage asset may not necessarily be rare; it
could be representative of a particular historical or
architectural trend. It may also be part of a legacy of a
particular individual, architect, and architectural
movement, programme of works, company or group in
the past. The special interest found in
representativeness is closely linked to a building or
areas historic association;

Henry Curreys 1872 Development
Plan of Eastbourne (west)
Representative of a particular
period of development some
of is identified as Areas of
High Townscape Value

Page 152
14

Historic Association

7.3.5

·

Well authenticated historical association with a
notable person(s) or event

·

Figures or events of national interest with direct
association

·

Figures or events of local interest with a prolonged
and direct association

·

The contribution made by the individual or event to
the local scene

·

The importance of the building in relation to the
work / influence of the person or event in question

·

A key association with a notable figure or event,
particularly if the figure or event influenced local or
national events during the association with the
building in question

Aesthetic Merit
A local heritage asset may evoke positive feelings of
worth by reason of its architectural, design or artistic
quality for in its form and layout. This may be through
a conscious design or evolved through incremental
growth over time, features that make a positive
contribution to the streetscene and wider area.

10 Bolton Road a Building of Local Interest

Page 153
15

The aesthetic merit of a building or group of buildings
is judged according to the following criteria:
Artistic Innovation or Virtuosity
· Early local examples of a particular architectural
style

7.3.6

·

Use of quality materials and workmanship

·

The work of a notable local architect (same
determination factors as for Historic Association).

·

Architectural merit as recognised by local or
national awards or publications

Association
Evidence may suggest a local heritage asset is
associated with a particular person or historic event.
This could include a landowner, royal event, charity,
religious group or other group in the past. Examples
may include sites previously inhabited, designed or
constructed by a well-known or locally important
individual or group. If an association cannot be proved
some sites may be valued for associations based on
local tradition rather than historic fact.

Technological Innovation or Technique
·

Early local examples of a particular type of building
or early local use of a new material or building
technique (eg C19th concrete)

·

Use of quality materials and workmanship

Use of local materials

Page 154
16

Social Importance
The development of an area is often influenced by an
individual building, which may play an integral part in
the shape of the area, or in the local social scene.
Such buildings may include churches, schools, village
and town halls, chapels, public houses, memorials,
places of employment and workhouses, which formed
a focal point or key social role in the history of the
area.
·

Pubs, churches, factories, cinemas, banks etc

·

Buildings that are a focal point or social and visual
interest.

·

Form a landmark, from within or from outside an
area.

·

Of good general architectural or historic interest

·

Townscape value; a building which adds to a group,
street or space

·

Groups which as a whole have a unified
architectural and historic value which the local
area.

Willingdon Village Pump House a building of local interest of social importance

7.3.7 If a building or area is identified as having special interest
this would then be measured against its heritage values.

Page 155
17

7.4 Heritage Values
Sections 7.4.1 to 7.4.4 explore the different types of heritage
values at local level. In order for an asset to be of significance it
must have heritage value.

7.4.1
Aesthetic Value
‘The ability to provide sensory and intellectual stimulation
from a place’,
as a result of its composition (form, proportion, massing,
silhouette, views, vista and circulation), use of materials or
craftsmanship. It may be consciously designed or have
evolved over time to give an overall attractive appearance
and make a positive contribution to the character and
appearance of the streetscene or wider area.
A heritage asset with aesthetic value will usually be in a good
state of repair or in a state that could be easily restored.

7.4.2
Historic Value
‘The way in which the present can be connected by a place
[building or area] to people, events and aspects of life in the
past, it tends to be illustrative or associative.’
Illustrative value assists with the interpretation of a building
or areas past, through making connections with, and
providing insight into, past communities and their activities
through a shared experience of a place.x
Often described in relation to design, technology, structural
system, planform, veteran trees, street furniture etc.
Associative value with a notable person, event or movement
gives historic value a particular meaning. Associative value
also identifies places closely connected with the works of
people who have made important discoveries.
A heritage asset with historic value will usually depend on
sound identification and direct experience of fabric or
landscape that has survived from the past.

7.4.3
Evidential Value
‘The potential for a place [building or area] to yield significant
evidence, usually from physical remains about past human
activity.’
Usually associated with archaeology and older assets, all
buildings and areas encapsulate information about their

Page 156
18

historic development and chronology, the value of which is
proportionate to their interpretation of the past against
existing evidence available of that period.
A heritage asset with evidential value will usually depend on
the age of the asset and its ability to provide evidence of the
past through interpretation.

7.4.4
Communal Value
‘The meaning of a place [building or area] for people
who’relate to it – a collective experience or memory’.
Communal value tends to be closely linked to aesthetic and
historic values, which reflect the meaning of a place for those
who have a emotional link. The most obvious examples are
commemorative memorials or places of worship (spiritual
value).
A heritage asset with communal value will usually depend on
the perceived survival of the fabric or character of place

Page 157
19

8

Archaeological Sites
A large number of areas of archaeological interest are already identified
on East Sussex Historic Environment Record (HER). In addition any new
sites that may come forward through development works, local studies,
metal detecting etc, should be reported to the HER as being of
archaeological interest for further investigation and notification.

9. Recommendations for Local Heritage Assets
Recommendations of local heritage assets are welcomed from Councillors,
local amenity societies, residents and other interested parties. To
nominate a local heritage asset, complete the selection criteria against the
identified asset and submit to the council for full consideration. Remember
the more information provided in relation to the identified special interest
and heritage value, the more an informed decision can be made on its
validity.
When a building or area is identified and meets the selection criteria the
owners of the selected building, will be notified and comments sought
from the owner of the building.
Following which the identified building or area will be presented to The
Conservation Area Advisory Group for ratification and Planning Committee
for final approval.

Page 158
20

10. Nominate a Local Heritage Asset
Name
Location

Please provide a photograph and a map showing its location

Identification of the Local Heritage Asset [please tick]
A building or group of buildings
A monument or site (an area of archaeological remains or a structure other
than a building i.e. statue, bridge etc)
An area or place (area, street, park, garden or natural space)
A landscape (an area defined by visual features or character i.e. open
space, field system, suburb, village etc)

What are the assets ‘special interest’ [please tick]
Age .... Is it particularly old or of a date significant to Eastbourne’s urban
development
Rarity …Is it unusual in the area or a rare survival of a once common
feature
Integrity…Is it largely complete or in original condition
Group Value…Is it part of a group that has close historic, aesthetic or
communal association
Historic Association [Representative]…does it have well documented
association with a persons, event, episode of local history
Aesthetic Merit…is it a good example of architectural style, a particular use
or work of a local architect
Associative …is it a good example of an innovative technique or use of
materials
Eastbourne’s identity…Is it important to the identity or character of
Eastbourne or a particular part of the Borough
Other…Is there another way you think it has special interest or historic
value that contributes to the unique character and appearance of
Eastbourne
Why is it locally valued [please tick]
Aesthetic : Does it make an important contribution to the positive look
of the area either by conscious design or has it evolved over time
providing a sense of identity
Historic:
Illustrative:- Does it illustrate an aspect of the area’s past that makes
and important contribution to its identity or character
Associative:- Does the building or area connect us to people and
events that shaped the character or identity of the area
Evidential: It the building or area an important resource for
understanding and learning about the area’s history
Communal: Is the building or area important to the identity, cohesion,
spiritual life or memory of all or part of the community

Page 159
21

Page 160

10. Bibliography
Crook, R. (1982) A Peep at Victorian Eastbourne, Eastbourne Antiquities
Research Group.
Eastbourne Borough Plan 2001-2011; adopted (September 2007)
Eastbourne Townscape Guide Supplementary Planning Guidance; adopted
(July 2004)
English Heritage, (1995) Conservation Area Practise, London: English
Heritage.
English Heritage, (2006) Guidance on Conservation Area Appraisals,
London: English Heritage.
English Heritage, (2008) Conservation Principles, Policies and Guidance,
London: English Heritage.
English Heritage, (2010) Understanding Place Historic Area Assessments:
Principles and Practice, London: Historic England.
English Heritage, (2011) Good Practice Guide for Local Heritage Listing,
London: Historic England.
HMSO: The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 1995, Statutory Instrument 1995 No. 418, London.
HMSO: Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990,
London.
Mynors, C. (2006) Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas and Monuments,
Sweet and Maxwell, London.
The National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012, DCLG
Planning Practice Guidance, March 2014, DCLG

Page 161
22

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 162

Agenda Item 17
COMMITTEE

PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE

7th July 2015

SUBJECT

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

REPORT OF

Leigh Palmer Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning)

WARDS

All

PURPOSE

To seek Members’ approval to the Updated
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

CONTACT

Leigh Palmer
leigh.palmer@eastbourne.gov.uk
01323 415 215

RECOMMENDATION

Members endorse the revised/updated Enforcement
Policy Statement 2015 and resolve that it be
continued to be used as Council Policy.

Background
The current Planning Enforcement Policy Statement was adopted by the Council in
April 2010. In the past four years there have been changes in legislation and in the
Councils organisational structure and these were captured within the October 2014
version.
The National Planning Policy Framework (at paragraph 207) recommended that
Councils adopt a Local Enforcement Plan that outlines how planning enforcement
will be conducted/concluded within a local area.
The Enforcement Policy Statement 2015 acknowledges the NPPF requirement and
builds upon/updates the Councils’ adopted document.
Revised Enforcement Policy Statement 2015
The proposed changes to the previously adopted enforcement policy are modest
with the significant changes from the October 2014 version being:• Revised title
• Section 6 ii) page 11, outlines how the Council will work proactively to
mitigate the potential breaches of planning control
• Section 9 Direct Action page 20, outlines the parameters and criteria against
which the Council will pursue Direct Action.
• Section 9 Monitoring of Conditions page 22, outlines that informative that will
be attached to all approval notices.

Page 163

Purpose of this report:The purpose of this report is to bring to your attention the proposed changes to the
Councils Enforcement Policy Statement 2015 and seek the support of planning
committee .prior to referring the document onto Cabinet for formal adoption.
Members will note that the Policy statement continues to:•

Promote the joined up enforcement approach, recognising that working
closely with others from outside the planning service is essential to maximise
outcomes

•

Reflect and reinforce the more proactive work already undertaken by the by
the planning enforcement processes and also by the Difficult Properties Group
in taking positive action to improve the environment of the Borough and the
amenities of its residents.

•

Planning Committee will receive a quarterly report detailing the actions and
outcomes relating to enforcement matters.

Financial and Staffing Implications:The planning enforcement function for Eastbourne Borough Council falls under
Customer First with the Case Workers assisted by the Specialist Advisors
administering the relevant processes.
It is considered that the current establishment is sufficient to continue to implement
this enforcement policy.
Human Rights Implications
When deciding to take enforcement action, including prosecution, the rights of
individuals un the Human Right Act will be carefully considered. Particular account
will be taken of Article 6, the right to a fair trial and Article 8, the right to respect for
private and family life, home and correspondence.
Conclusion
Since the Enforcement Policy Statement was adopted in April 2010 it has be
successfully implemented bringing about significant changes in the Council’s
approach to enforcement issues in general.
Planning enforcement now enjoys a significantly higher profile than in the past.
Public expectation is also higher and therefore a more robust policy document which
more clearly identifies when and how action can be undertaken is required to ensure
that these expectations can be met.
It is considered that given the profile now afforded by the National Planning Policy
Framework it is recommended that this updated document be referred to Cabinet
for formal adoption.

Page 164

Recommendation:1. Members support/endorse the revised/updated Enforcement Policy Statement
2015
2. The Enforcement Policy Statement 2015 (as the local approach for
conducting/undertaking the planning enforcement function within the Borough of
Eastbourne ) be referred to Cabinet for formal adoption.

Page 165

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166

ENFORCEMENT
POLICY
STATEMENT
2015

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 1

Page 167

Enforcement
Policy
Statement 2015
Adopted April 2010
REVISED JUL 2015

1 GROVE ROAD
EASTBOURNE
EAST SUSSEX
BN21 4TW
Tel: (01323) 410000
e-mail: customerfirst@eastbourne.gov.uk

This document is available free from
the Council’s website or for the cost
of £15 including p&p.
Date: Oct 2014

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 2

Page 168

CONTENTS
1. INTRODUCTION

.......... 4

2. CONTEXT

....... 5-6

3. COUNCIL'S VISION FOR ENFORCEMENT

.......... 7

4. OPENNESS

.......... 8

5. GENERAL APPROACH TO ENFORCEMENT ........................................ 9-10
6. TYPE AND INCIDENCE OF ENFORCEMENT PROBLEMS ......................... 11
7. INVESTIGATION OF SUSPECTED BREACHES OF PLANNING CONTROL12-14
8. CONSIDERATION OF ENFORCEMENT ACTION

........ 15

9. POWERS AVAILABLE TO THE LOCAL PLANNING AUTHORITY

... 16-23

10. THE COUNCIL'S POLICIES FOR ENFORCING PLANING CONTROL ... 24-29
11. COMPLAINTS ABOUT THE SERVICE

........ 30

Appendix 1: LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK AND GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE .... 29
Appendix 2: ENFORCEMENT COMPLAINTS PROCESS - FLOWCHART

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

... 32-35

Page 3

Page 169

1. Introduction
The planning system operates to regulate the development and use of
land in the public interest. The effective and proper enforcement of
planning controls is essential to protect the local environment and
interests of residents, visitors and businesses of the Borough from the
harmful effects of unauthorised development.
This document sets out Eastbourne Borough Council’s policy for the
enforcement of planning control within the Borough.
Effective operation of this policy will support the Sustainable Community
Strategy for East Sussex (Pride of Place) and the Council’s Priorities in
the Corporate Plan and reinforce the saved policies in the Adopted
Borough Plan (2007) and the policies contained in the Eastbourne Local
Plan 2027.
The National Planning Policy Framework at paragraph 207 states
‘…effective enforcement is important as a means of maintaining public
confidence in the planning system…’
The need for effective enforcement is very important as it assists in·

Tackling breaches in planning control which would otherwise have an
unacceptable impact on the amenity of the area;

·

Maintaining the integrity of the decision-making process;

·

Helping to ensure that the public acceptance of the decision making
process is maintained.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 4

Page 170

2. Context
The National Planning Policy Framework
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) at paragraph 207
states:“Effective enforcement is important as a means of maintaining public
confidence in the planning system. Enforcement action is discretionary,
and local planning authorities should act proportionately in responding to
suspected breaches of planning control. Local Planning Authorities
should consider publishing a Local Enforcement Plan to manage
enforcement proactively, in a way that is appropriate to their area. This
should set out how they will monitor the implementation of planning
permissions, investigate alleged cases of unauthorised development and
take action where it is appropriate to do so”.
Following the advice contained within this paragraph of the NPPF this
document has been adapted from the adopted version (April 2010) as
the enforcement policy approach for Eastbourne Borough Council.
Pride of Place’ is the sustainable community strategy for East Sussex,
setting out the key tasks needed to improve the quality of life in East
Sussex by 2026.
Sustainable Community Strategy
The Council’s approach to planning enforcement should be consistent
with the objectives of the Sustainable Community Strategy (East Sussex
Pride of Place), the relevant themes of which are:By 2026 Eastbourne will have:
Regeneration and Economy
· Well paid jobs for local people with a workforce skilled to match
employment opportunities
· A modern sophisticated town that people want to live in, work in
and visit with space for businesses to grow
· A broad economic base with diverse employment opportunities
available
Environment
· Enjoy a higher quality of life through having a clean, safe and
accessible natural, urban and marine environment
· Value and protect the environment, conserving and enhancing it
for future generations
See all new developments being planned and designed with
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 5

Page 171

·

minimal adverse impact on either the historic or the natural
environment
Be aware of the local implications of climate change and are
actively seeking to reduce their carbon footprint

Housing
· A housing market that provides greater housing choices for all
· Successful, well run safe neighbourhoods supported by appropriate
infrastructure and amenities
Crime and Disorder
· The main thrust of which is to ensure that, by 2026, Eastbourne
will be a safe and secure place to live
Culture and Sport
· Cultural, sports and leisure facilities for everyone that will
encourage community participation
· Historical, archaeological and built environments that celebrate
and contribute to civic understanding
Planning enforcement has an important part to play in securing these
objectives. In respect of the environment the planning enforcement
service will play a vital role in tackling the issue of unsightly buildings
thereby improving the visual amenities of the Borough.
In addition, the promotion of a culture of positive and proactive planning
enforcement will assist in meeting the Council’s objectives relating to
crime and disorder.
Council Priorities
The Council’s key priorities include crime prevention and enforcement,
with particular emphasis on “joined up enforcement”. Co-operation with
other Council service areas and external agencies (for example the East
Sussex Building Control Partnership, Fire and Police Services,
Environment Agency, etc.), is an integral part of the approach to
enforcement and these working relationships will continue to be
developed in the future in order to make the most effective use of
available resources throughout the Council.
This ‘joined up’ approach has been used with great success in the
Difficult Properties Group (DPG), a corporate group of officers from
various departments of the Council, working together to maximize the
impact of enforcement powers across all service areas (Housing,
Environmental Health and Planning).

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 6

Page 172

3. Council’s Vision for Enforcement
The Council has a duty to investigate alleged breaches of planning
control and has powers to remedy proven breaches by statutory and
other means. Breaches of planning control are viewed very seriously and
it is our policy to exercise these powers appropriately, proportionately
and rigorously so that development takes place in accordance with the
appropriate legislation or conditions and limitations imposed on any
planning permission.
The integrity of the development management process depends on the
Council’s readiness to take effective enforcement action when it is
justifiable.
Public acceptance of the development management process is quickly
undermined if unauthorised development, which is deemed unacceptable
on planning merits, is allowed to proceed without any apparent attempt
by the Council to intervene before serious harm to amenity results from
it. The Council will therefore act positively and swiftly in tackling
breaches of planning control in accordance with the considerations and
processes described in Sections 5 and 7 of this Policy statement.
The purpose of this policy document is to ensure that councillors and
officers, external agencies and the general public are aware of the
Council’s proactive approach to its planning enforcement responsibilities.
We are always trying to improve the service that we provide.
All relevant comments that we receive will be taken seriously and used
to help us improve services. Please contact us if you would like to make
any comments or suggestions about our planning enforcement service.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 7

Page 173

4. Openness
In discharging their planning services responsibility Eastbourne Borough
Council will:
·

Review performance regularly and publish results.

·

Planning Committee will be provided with a quarterly report
detailing the actions and outcomes relating to enforcement
matters.

·

The Enforcement Policy will be subject to review at least every
three years, but the Policy will be reviewed on a more regular
basis if circumstances dictate;

·

Provide information (subject to it not being covered by
privacy/protection policies) and advice to individuals and
organisations so as to remain transparent at all times;

·

Keep all interested parties informed as to the progress with any
investigation;

·

Where formal action is necessary, make it clear as to why the
Local Planning Authority intends to take, or has taken,
enforcement action.

·

Where it is decided that it is not expedient to take enforcement
action any complainants will be informed of the reasons for this
decision.

Each individual matter will be considered on its merits. There will be a
consistent approach to enforcement action against breaches of similar
nature and circumstance.
Where immediate action is considered necessary, an explanation of the
reasons will be given at the time and confirmed in writing together with
a timescale for implementation.
Where formal action is taken by the Council issuing a statutory
enforcement notice, all parties served with a copy of the notice will be
informed of the appeal procedure and advised in writing of the
consequences of non-compliance with such a notice.
The Council will generally prosecute individuals or organisations who do
not comply with any formal notice served on them, and when
appropriate will take direct action, having regard to degree of harm and
public safety.
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 8

Page 174

5. General Approach to Enforcement
The integrity of the development management process depends on the
Council’s readiness to take enforcement action when it is considered
expedient to do so. Parliament has given Local Planning Authorities the
primary responsibility for taking whatever planning enforcement action is
necessary within their area and the Council will always exercise its
enforcement powers rigorously when it is considered expedient to do so.
It is important to note that the decision to take enforcement action is
discretionary and that the Local Planning Authority should always act in
a proportionate manner.
In considering the issue of expediency, the Council will have regard to:
·

whether the breach of planning control unacceptably harms
public amenity, or the authorised use of land and buildings
merits protection in the public interest

·

ensuring any enforcement action is commensurate with the
breach of planning control to which it relates. Enforcement
action will not normally be taken to remedy trivial or technical
breaches of control which are considered to cause no harm to
amenity

·

ensuring that, if initial attempts to persuade an owner or
occupier of a site to voluntarily remedy the harmful effects of
unauthorised development fail, negotiations should not be
allowed to hamper or delay whatever formal enforcement action
may be required to make the development acceptable on
planning grounds, or to compel it to cease, but bearing in mind
that action cannot be progressed whilst an application or appeal
are live.

·

statutory time limits for taking enforcement action

·

relevant planning policies and other material considerations

The identity of persons reporting suspected breaches of planning control
will be treated as confidential unless the complainant authorises
otherwise, or the complainant is required to give evidence at a public
hearing, inquiry or court case.
The right to privacy under the Human Rights Act 1998 enhances and
strengthens the Councils Policy on the protection of complainants. The
Freedom of Information Act 2000 does not override this right to privacy
and therefore the identity of complainants will not be revealed to third
parties, unless any of the circumstances above apply.
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 9

Page 175

Where the success of an appeal or prosecution is dependent on evidence
being provided by the person who reported the breach of planning
control, the Council will discuss with the complainant whether they are
willing to relinquish their confidentiality and provide the required
evidence before proceeding with formal enforcement action or a
prosecution.
When the breach of planning control has become 'established' i.e.
immune from enforcement action by virtue of elapsed time the Council
should make known the provisions for the application of a Certificate of
Lawfulness which regularises and clarifies the situation. (Section 192 the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 10 the
Planning and Compensation Act 1991).

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 10

Page 176

6. Type and Incidence of Enforcement
Problems
i)

Responding to complaints (Reactive)
The Council receives on average 300-400 planning enforcement related
complaints/enquiries a year.
The majority of complaints are dealt with within a relatively short period
of time as following investigation it is determined that either there was
no breach of planning control, or the breach was of a minor technical
nature that did not warrant formal action. The remainder are either
resolved through negotiation or lead to formal enforcement action being
taken to resolve the breach.
A variety of breaches occur throughout the Borough from:·
·
·
·
·
·

ii)

unauthorised development,
non-compliance with planning conditions
unauthorised changes of use,
unauthorised advertisements,
works to listed buildings and
works to protected trees.

Taking the initiative (Proactive)
There are a number of areas where the Council instigates positive action
to remedy breaches of planning control or to remedy harm to the
environment. These include:
o Action under Section 215 to remedy the environmental harm
caused by unsightly land and buildings
o Monitoring of planning conditions to ensure that
development is carried out in accordance with the approval
issued (All Major Applications and a random sample of
significant cases will be proactively monitored)
o The active monitoring of tourist uses within the Tourist
Accommodation Area (as defined in the Eastbourne Local
Plan 2027) to ensure that relevant policies are upheld. The
boundary of the Tourist Accommodation Area is being
reviewed as part of the Seafront Local Plan. The monitoring
of the uses within this area will commence after the adoption
of the Seafront Local Plan.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 11

Page 177

7. Investigation of Suspected Breaches of
Planning Control
i)

Service Standards
Reports of suspected breaches of planning control if submitted via the
web will be acknowledged instantly. Where a breach is reported via any
other means there will be an acknowledgement issued within 5 days of
receipt.
When reports are received by telephone or in person, the
acknowledgement will be provided verbally at that time.
All other acknowledgements will be provided in writing via ‘preferred
method of contact’ and or by letter or e-mail.
The acknowledgement will provide the name of the Officer investigating
the matter and details of how they can be contacted.
To avoid the unnecessary use of resources anonymous reports of
suspected breaches of planning control will not normally be pursued
unless other evidence suggests that the breach is causing serious harm
to the environment or the amenities of residents.

ii)

Priorities
To make the most effective use of resources, all reports of suspected
breaches of planning control will be investigated and progressed in
accordance with a priority rating of ‘High’, ‘Medium’ or ‘Low’ depending
on the nature of the breach and the degree of harm caused. Individual
cases may be re-prioritised as the investigation progresses.
Typically cases will fall into following categories, although this is not an
exhaustive list:
High priority:
·
·
·
·

Demolition or alterations to a Listed Building
Demolition in a Conservation Area that is causing immediate and
irreparable harm
Works to trees subject to a Tree Preservation Order or within a
Conservation Area
Development that is causing serious danger to public safety

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 12

Page 178

Medium priority:
·
·

·

·

Unsightly buildings or untidy land that is causing serious harm to
the amenity of neighbours
Development that causes serious harm to the amenities of
neighbours or are contrary to significant policies in the
Development Plan
Unauthorised development that has gone undetected and the
statutory time limit for taking enforcement action will expire within
the next six months
Disrepair of a Listed Building

Low priority:
·
·
·
·

Advertisements causing serious harm to amenity
Businesses being operated from home
Minor works i.e. gates, walls, fences, domestic outbuildings and
satellite dishes
Untidy land, except where it causes serious harm to the amenity of
neighbours

In most cases, a site visit will be required to establish whether or not a
breach of planning control has occurred. The initial site visit will normally
be undertaken by officers within the Neighbourhood First Team and be
conducted within the following timescales:
·

High priority cases – within one working day

·

Medium priority cases – within ten working days

·

Low priority cases – within fifteen working days

On completion of the initial site visit, the findings will be assessed and a
view taken as to how the investigation will proceed.
Where no further action is proposed:
When it is proposed to take no further action, either because no breach
has occurred, a minor or insignificant breach has occurred, or there is
insufficient evidence to pursue the matter, the person reporting the
suspected breach of control will be notified either verbally or in writing
within 15 working days of the initial site visit that no further action will
be taken and an explanation provided of the Council’s reason(s).
Where further investigation is required:
Where it is not possible to determine from the initial site visit whether or
not a breach of planning control has occurred, the person reporting the
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 13

Page 179

suspected breach of control will be notified either verbally or in writing
within 15 working days of the initial site visit that further investigation is
required. Further investigation may involve additional site visits,
documentary research, seeking advice from other Services or Agencies,
seeking information from the person reporting the suspected breach of
control, or the owner or other person responsible for the land or
building.
In some cases, the Council may request the person reporting the
suspected breach of planning control to assist with the investigation by
providing a written log detailing the dates, times, duration and nature of
the suspected breach. If the person reporting the suspected breach of
planning control is unwilling to assist, they will be advised that this may
result in the Council not being able to pursue the investigation due to
insufficient evidence being available.
Where it appears to the Council that a breach of planning control may
have occurred, it will consider serving a Planning Contravention Notice to
obtain information relating to the suspected breach.
In cases where further investigation is required, the person reporting the
suspected breach of planning control will be notified either verbally or in
writing within 15 working days of the Council determining whether or not
a breach of planning control has occurred, and if so, what course of
action the Council intends to take.
Where a breach of planning control is established:
Where a significant breach of planning control is established, the person
reporting the suspected breach will be notified which course of action the
Council intends to take to secure regularization of the breach of planning
control. In most instances this will involve one of the three following
options:
·

Attempt to negotiate a solution

·

Invite the submission of retrospective application for planning
permission

·

Consider formal enforcement action

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 14

Page 180

8. Consideration of Enforcement Action
Where it is established that a significant breach of planning control has
occurred, the Council will determine whether or not to take formal
enforcement action and the nature of such action. In determining this,
the Council will have regard to the level of harm resulting from the
breach. In assessing the level of harm, the Council will have regard to
the saved policies in the Eastbourne Borough Plan, the Eastbourne Plan
2027, the National Planning Policy Framework and other material
considerations.
Negotiating a solution:
The Council will normally try to negotiate a solution to regularize the
breach of planning control without recourse to formal enforcement
action. Such negotiations may involve the reduction or cessation of an
unauthorised use or activity, or the modification or removal of
unauthorised operational development.
Any negotiations will not be allowed to hamper or delay the
consideration of enforcement action where the breach of control causes
serious harm to amenity. It needs to be borne in mind however that
formal action cannot be pursued whilst a planning application or appeal
is under consideration. Where the Council is unable to negotiate an
acceptable solution within a reasonable timescale, or it is clear at the
outset that the breach is not capable of being remedied through
negotiation, the Council will proceed with formal enforcement action
where it is expedient and proportionate to do so.
Retrospective application for planning permission:
Where a significant breach of planning control has occurred, but no harm
is being caused, or any harm caused might be removed or alleviated by
the imposition of conditions on a planning permission, the person(s)
responsible will be invited to submit a retrospective planning application
within a specified time scale. In such circumstances it will be made clear
that the invitation to submit a retrospective application is made without
prejudice to any final decision the Council may take in the matter. If
such an application is not submitted, the Council will consider whether or
not it is expedient to take formal enforcement action. Generally this will
be dependent on whether or not it is considered likely that had a
planning application been submitted, permission would have been
granted.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 15

Page 181

9. Powers available to the Local Planning
Authority
Where it has been established that a significant breach of planning
control has occurred, the Council will consider using its statutory powers
to take action to remedy the breach. The use of these powers is
discretionary but they will always be used when it is considered
expedient to do so.
The Decision to take enforcement action or commence a prosecution will
be taken in accordance with the delegation arrangements detailed in the
Council’s Constitution.
Requisition for Information Notices:
Under section 16 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act
1976 the Council can require the recipient of a requisition for information
notice to supply in writing details of their interest in a property and
provide details of anyone else having an interest in the property. A reply
must be supplied within 14 days. A person who fails to comply with the
requirements of a notice or makes a false statement in a reply is guilty
of an offence punishable by a fine of up to £5,000.
Under section 330 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 the
Council can require the recipient to state in writing the nature of their
interest in a property and to state in writing the name and address of
any other person known to them as having an interest in the property,
as a freeholder, mortgagee, lessee or otherwise. Failure to return the
form or to provide a misstatement is an offence punishable of up to
£1,000.
Planning Contravention Notice (PCN): (S171C of the T&CP Act
1990)
A PCN can be served on the owner or occupier of the land in question or
a person who is carrying out operations in, on, over or under the land or
is using it for any purpose and where a suspected breach of planning is
believed to exist. This notice may be issued under S171C of the T&CP
Act 1990 The PCN will require the recipient to provide the information
requested within 21 days relating to the breach of planning control
alleged. Failure to comply with any aspect of the PCN is an offence for
which the recipient can be prosecuted with the maximum fine being
£1,000. To knowingly provide false information on a PCN can result in a
fine of up to £5,000.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 16

Page 182

Breach of Condition Notice (BCN): (S187A of the T&CP Act
1990).
In cases of a significant breach of planning conditions it may be
appropriate to serve a Breach of Condition Notice (BCN) (S187A of the
T&CP Act 1990). Consideration should be given to the type of condition
and the steps required to remedy the breach. Once issued and served
the Notice does not take effect for 28 days although there is no appeal
against a BCN. The failure to comply with the notice is dealt with by a
prosecution in the Magistrates Court. The maximum fine is £1000. This
may not be a sufficient deterrent in the more serious cases. The BCN is
ideal for matters where the steps to be taken are relatively simple and
can be readily achieved.
Where the breach of planning control relates to non-compliance with a
condition on a planning permission or a limitation on a deemed planning
permission has been exceeded, the Council will consider the expediency
of serving a BCN.
The Breach of Condition Notice will specify the steps required to comply
with the condition(s) or limitation(s), the date that it takes effect and
the time period for compliance.
Enforcement Notice: (S172 of the T&CP Act 1990)
The Council will consider the service of an Enforcement Notice (S172 of
the T&CP Act 1990) where unauthorized operational development or
change of use has taken place and it is considered expedient to do so.
Where a breach of planning control exists and any harm caused would
be removed or alleviated by the impositions of conditions on a planning
permission, but the invitation to submit a retrospective planning
application or rectify the breach voluntarily has been declined, the
Council will consider the expediency of serving an Enforcement Notice.
The Enforcement Notice will specify the reason(s) for its service, the
steps required to remedy the breach, the date that it takes effect and
the time period for compliance.
The Notice shall be issued by the Council after authority has been given
by the Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning). Service of an Enforcement
Notice shall be made on any person with an interest in the land. The
Notice will come into effect after a minimum period of 28 days. There is
a mechanism for an appeal against the Notice. Once the Planning
Inspectorate holds an appeal valid, the Enforcement Notice has no effect
until the appeal has been heard and a decision published.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 17

Page 183

Failure to comply with the Enforcement Notice is a maximum fine on
summary conviction of £20,000
Listed Building Enforcement Notice and Conservation Area
Enforcement Notice: (S38-46 of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
If the breach of planning control relates to a Listed Building or the
demolition of an unlisted building in a Conservation Area the Council will
consider the expediency of serving a Listed Building Enforcement Notice
and where appropriate, commencing a prosecution in the Courts.
Stop Notice: (S183 of the T&CP Act 1990)
Where a breach of planning control is causing very serious harm to
public amenity and the environment, and this harm could not be
removed or alleviated by the imposition of conditions on a planning
permission, the Council will consider the expediency of serving a Stop
Notice (at the same time or after the service of an Enforcement Notice).
In cases where urgent action is necessary to bring about a cessation of a
relevant activity before the expiry of the period of compliance of the
related Enforcement Notice.
The Stop Notice will refer to the Enforcement Notice to which it relates,
specify the activity or activities that are required to cease and the date
that it takes effect. Failure to comply with the notice is an offence. The
maximum fine on summary conviction is £20,000.
Temporary Stop Notice (S171E of the T&CP Act 1990)
A temporary Stop Notice can be served without the service of and
Enforcement Notice. Failure to comply with the temporary stop notice is
an offence. The maximum fine on summary conviction is £20,000.
Section 215 Notice: (S215 of the T&CP Act 1990)
In cases where the amenity of an area is adversely affected by the
condition of land or buildings, the Council will consider serving a Notice
under s.215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
The Notice will specify the steps required to be taken to remedy the
condition of the land or buildings, the time period within which the steps
must be taken and the date that it takes effect. The Council will firstly
write to the owner of the land or building requesting improvements to be
made before considering the service of a formal notice.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 18

Page 184

As S215 Notice takes effect after 28 days service during which time an
appeal can be made in the Magistrates Court. Failure to comply with the
S215 notice is an offence. The maximum fine on summary conviction is
£1,000 for initial non-compliance and £100 for each day following the
first conviction
Prosecution:
The Council will consider commencing a prosecution in the Courts
against any person who has failed to comply with the requirement(s) of
any of the following Notices where the date for compliance has passed
and the requirements have not been complied with.
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)

Enforcement Notice
Listed Building Enforcement Notice
Conservation Area Enforcement Notice
Breach of Condition Notice
Section 215 Notice
Stop Notice (including temporary stop notice)

The Council will also consider commencing a prosecution in the Courts
where:
a) unauthorised works have been carried out to trees subject to a
Tree Preservation Order, or in a designated Conservation Area
b) an advertisement is being displayed without the necessary
consent and the Council’s request to remove it within a specified
timescale has been declined or ignored
c) unauthorised works have been carried out to a Listed Building.
d) unauthorised demolition has been carried out in a Conservation
Area
e) the recipient of a Planning Contravention Notice has failed to
provide a response within the prescribed time period or has
supplied false or misleading information
Before commencing any legal proceedings the Council will be satisfied
that there is sufficient evidence to offer a realistic prospect of conviction
and that the legal proceedings are in the public interest.
Injunction:
''Where an Enforcement Notice has not been complied with and, because
of the special circumstances of the case, neither direct action or
prosecution would be an effective remedy, the Council will consider
applying to the Court for an Injunction under s.187B of the 1990 Act. An
injunction can also be applied for where there is clear evidence that a
breach of planning control is apprehended but has not actually occurred.
Such action will only be considered if the breach, actual or apprehended,
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 19

Page 185

is particularly serious and is causing or likely to cause exceptional
harm''.
Direct Action:
In order to ensure that the Council is able to resolve breaches of
planning consent as a result of non-consented works in a timely manner
there are a range of methods which the Council can secure compliance
with the requirements of an enforcement notice (inc S215 notices).
This includes direct action which offers the opportunity for the Council to
take action to resolve a breach of planning control through remedial
action.
Where any steps required by an Enforcement Notice or s215 Notice have
not been taken within the compliance period (other than the
discontinuance of the use of land), the Council will consider whether it is
expedient to exercise its power under s.178 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to:(a) enter the land and take the steps to remedy the harm; and
(b) recover from the person who is then the owner of the land any
expenses reasonably incurred by them in doing so.
Direct action may either be in isolation of or in conjunction with
Prosecution/injunction action. The Council may choose to take action as
follows:
·

Where the requirements of an Enforcement Notice have not been
complied with by the compliance date and:

·

Where the Council considers that direct action is necessary in the
light of significant amenity considerations caused by a Planning
Breach

Assessment Criteria for Direct Action:The Council will consider the following impacts when assessing whether
it is expedient and proportionate to take direct action:
·

Whether the harm or impact amenity of the development is
significant to occupiers of neighboring properties or the wider
locality and community; in accordance with adopted planning
policy.

·

Whether personal circumstances of the occupier or
owner/responsible party(s) would be adversely affected by the

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 20

Page 186

Council taking Direct action.
·

Whether taking Direct action would prejudice the statutory duties
of the Council

·

Assessment of the cost of taking Direct Action and the likelihood of
recovering these costs.

·

Health and safety of the Council employees, contractors or other
individuals in taking Direct action.

·

Whether taking Direct action would prejudice the Councils
reputation or other priorities.

·

Whether the costs of taking direct action would outweigh the
benefits.

Relevant Direct Action Procedure:Once the date to comply with the requirement of an Enforcement Notice
expires the Council will visit the site to check compliance. If following the
site visit it is confirmed that the noticed has not been complied with in
full, the Council will undertake an assessment as to whether it is
expedient to take action , including prosecution, an injunction and or
direct action.
If officers consider the use of direct action to be expedient, the
Assessment Criteria for Direct Action (above) will be used to justify the
case for Direct action in each instance. This decision will be agreed with
the Senior Specialist Advisor (Planning).
The Council will write to the owner/responsible parties to advise of the
intention to take Direct action, at least 28 days before works are due to
take place.
In order to access the property the Council may need to liaise with other
services including the police, bailiffs and/or a locksmith or other internal
departments.
In taking Direct action the Case Worker will project manage the works
on site (in connection with other Council colleagues and contractors) to
ensure that the steps in the notice are complied with.
It should be noted that any materials, debris or other items that are
removed from the premises throughout the course of undertaking Direct
action will be stored securely for a minimum of three days. The Council
will take steps to advise the owner (s) of these items and how to recover
such possessions. After this time the Council may choose to dispose of
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 21

Page 187

this material or sell these on to recover the expenses in Taking Direct
action.
Costs Recovery:
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) the Council will undertake all
reasonable endeavours to recover expenses incurred in undertaking
Direct action
A charge will be applied to the land and an invoice sent to
owners/responsible party (s) this charge is binding on successive owners
of the land to which the original Notice relates. This charge will take
effect on the date that the Council undertakes Direct action to comply
with the Notice.
The expenses recoverable will include such sums as the Council
considers being reasonable in respect of its establishment charges. An
establishment charge is the reasonable charge that the Council incurs
from administering the Direct action procedure.
The Council will take all reasonable steps to recover the expenses as a
debt and will raise an invoice in accordance with its existing practice and
procedures.
As a matter of priority, the Council’s Land Charge department will be
notified of the recoverable sums that will be entered as a record against
the property in the Register of Local Land Charges. If the debt remains
unpaid, the Council will take steps to register the charge at HM Land
Registry.
High Hedges:
From the 1 June 2005 Local Authorities have had the power, under Part
8 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003, to adjudicate on disputes over
high hedges. In cases where the Council finds in favour of the
complainant the Council will ensure, through enforcement action if
necessary, that any specified schedule of remedial works is carried out.
Monitoring of Conditions:
The following informative will be imposed on all approval decision notices
where there are condition:The Council actively monitors conditions to ensure that development is
carried out in accordance with a planning permission. Failure to comply
with a planning condition will be viewed seriously and appropriate

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 22

Page 188

action taken in accordance with the powers outlined with the Councils
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 23

Page 189

10. The Council’s Policies for Enforcing
Planning Control
POLICY EN1:

General Enforcement Policy 1

The Council recognises the importance of establishing effective controls
over unauthorised development, to assist in the preservation and
enhancement of the qualities of both the built and natural environment,
and to protect public amenities and will vigorously exercise its
enforcement powers to ensure that development takes place in
accordance with the appropriate legislation or conditions and limitations
imposed on any planning permission.
POLICY EN2:

General Enforcement Policy 2

The Council will exercise all reasonable powers granted under the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, including all
other subordinate legislation, to control unauthorised development
effectively having regard to the significance and seriousness of the
breach, the policies in Development Plan and all other material
considerations.
POLICY EN3:

General Enforcement Policy 3

In considering enforcement action, the Council will assess whether the
breach of planning control unacceptably affects public amenity or causes
harm to land or buildings.
POLICY EN4:

Serious Breaches of Planning Control

The Council will immediately commence planning enforcement action
against any unauthorised development which has a seriously adverse
impact on public amenity or causes unacceptable harm to land or
buildings.
POLICY EN5:

General Approach for Other Breaches of
Planning Control

The Council will attempt to persuade an owner or occupier of land to
remedy voluntarily any harmful effects of unauthorised development.
The Council will not, however, allow discussions to delay any necessary
formal enforcement action to make the development more acceptable on
planning grounds, or to make it cease.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 24

Page 190

POLICY EN6:

Derelict or Unsightly Land or Buildings

Where a building or land is in a condition which seriously detracts from,
or affects the visual amenity of an area, the Council will take the
following measures:
(a)
(b)

(c)

the owner will be requested in writing to improve the appearance
of the land or building(s);
where no improvement works are carried out within a reasonable
time (as specified in writing), the Council will serve a Notice under
Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990;
where the Notice has not been complied with prosecution
proceedings will be commenced and consideration will be given to
entering the land and carrying out the works in default.

POLICY EN7:

Protection of Tourist Accommodation

Within the Tourist Accommodation Area, designated in the Eastbourne
Borough Plan and the Eastbourne Plan 2027, enforcement action will be
taken against the unauthorised change of use of Tourist Accommodation
to any other use unless it can be proven that the change of use meets
the viability criteria in the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance:
“Assessment of Financial Viability of Tourist Accommodation”.

POLICY EN8:

Development Without Planning Permission

Where development has been, or is in the process of being, carried out
without planning permission and where immediate action under Policy
EN2 would not be justified, the following steps will be taken:
(a) an assessment will be made to establish if it is likely that
unconditional planning permission could be granted;
(b) If planning permission is likely to be granted, the submission
of a retrospective planning application will be invited;
(c)
where a retrospective planning application has been requested
but not submitted within a reasonable time, a planning
contravention notice will be served;
(d) where there is no specific planning objection to the
development, further enforcement action will not normally be
considered appropriate;
(e) where the development is considered to cause demonstrable
harm then formal enforcement action will be taken.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 25

Page 191

POLICY EN9:

(a)

(b)

Development Not in Accordance With Approved
Plans

Where development is carried out with planning permission, but it
does not strictly accord with the approved plans, an assessment
will be made to establish whether the changes from the approved
plans are sufficiently material to constitute new development,
requiring a separate planning permission or whether they can be
dealt with under a non-material change application. Where the
changes are of a very minor nature they may sometimes be
considered as being "de-minimus" (i.e. so small that they are of no
consequence) and no action will be taken;
where development is being carried out which is considered to be
significantly different from the approved plans and the changes
cause serious harm to public amenity, immediate enforcement
action may be taken, including the issue of a Stop Notice or
Enforcement Injunction to stop the unauthorised development.

POLICY EN10:

Imposition Of Conditions To Make Development
More Acceptable

Where development has been carried out without planning permission
and the development could only be made acceptable by imposing
conditions to overcome planning objections, the Council will request the
submission of a retrospective application for planning permission. If after
a reasonable period no application has been submitted, an Enforcement
Notice will be issued. The notice will have the effect of granting planning
permission subject to full compliance with those steps specified in the
notice which will address any harm caused by the development.

POLICY EN11:

Non-compliance With Conditions

Where conditional planning permission has been granted for
development but conditions have not been complied with, a Breach of
Condition Notice or Enforcement Notice will be served where
demonstrable harm is caused by the development.
POLICY EN12:

Minor Variations To Works Carried Out Under
'Permitted Development' Rights

Where development carried out under permitted development rights
exceeds the limitations specified in the relevant Order the Council will
not necessarily take enforcement action solely to counteract a slight
variation over what would be permitted, unless the excess causes
unacceptable harm to public amenity.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 26

Page 192

POLICY EN13:

Retrospective Applications

Where unauthorised development has been carried out which causes
serious harm to amenity, the submission of a retrospective application
will not be encouraged and will not stop enforcement action being taken.
When a retrospective application has been refused and enforcement
action has not already been taken in accordance with the Council’s
enforcement policies, the applicant will be advised that an enforcement
notice is to be issued.
POLICY EN14:

Refusal of Retrospective Applications

Where retrospective planning permission has been refused, enforcement
action will be taken and the appropriate Notices served even if an appeal
has been lodged against the refusal of planning permission.
POLICY EN15:
Control

Trivial or Technical Breaches of Planning

Formal enforcement action will not normally be taken against trivial or
technical breaches of planning control that cause no material harm to
amenity.
POLICY EN16:

Unauthorised Works to Listed Buildings

Where works without consent have been carried out to a listed building
and they materially affect its character and appearance either internally
or externally, consideration will be given to issuing a Listed Building
Enforcement Notice and/or starting criminal proceedings.
POLICY EN17:

Unauthorised Development in Conservation
Areas

Where development has been carried out in a conservation area without
planning permission or conservation area consent, and the development
does not preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the area,
enforcement action will be considered in accordance with the general
enforcement policies EN1 to EN5.
POLICY EN18:

Unauthorised Business Development where ReLocation is feasible

Where business development has been carried out without planning
permission and it is unacceptable on the site, alternative acceptable
sites, if available, will be investigated, with a timetable to allow for relocation. If the timetable is ignored, an Enforcement Notice may be
issued giving a reasonable time to allow re-location to take place.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 27

Page 193

POLICY EN19:

Acceptable Unauthorised Development by Small
Businesses

Where development has been carried out by a small business without
planning permission, consideration will be given to allowing the business
to continue operating acceptably from the site or operate less
intensively.
POLICY EN20:

Unauthorised Development by Small Businesses

If unauthorised activity by a small business cannot be allowed to
continue, an Enforcement Notice may be issued giving a realistic time to
stop the activity and allow for re-location if necessary. Where it is clear
to us that serious attempts are being made to comply with the
requirements of the Enforcement Notice, consideration may be given to
extending the time for compliance.
POLICY EN21:

Display of Illegal Advertisements

Where an advertisement which has been displayed without express
consent causes serious harm to amenity or public safety the Council will
ask for it to be removed. Where the advertisement continues to be
displayed, prosecution proceedings will be commenced.
POLICY EN22:

Fly Posting

Where resources permit, all posters illegally displayed will be removed.
Where fly-posting has been carried out on sensitive sites and it causes
serious harm to the character or amenity of the area, prosecution
proceedings will be commenced against all those responsible for its
display.
POLICY EN23:

Advertisements on Listed Buildings

Where an advertisement has been displayed on a listed building without
consent, and that advertisement adversely affects the character and
appearance of the building or compromises its setting, the Council will
ask for it to be removed. Where the advertisement continues to be
displayed, action will be taken to secure its removal.
POLICY EN24:

Retrospective Applications for Advertisement
Consent

Where a retrospective application for express consent has been refused,
the applicant will be asked to remove the advertisement within a
specified time. If the advertisement continues to be displayed,
proceedings will be commenced even if an appeal has been lodged
against the decision to refuse consent.
Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 28

Page 194

POLICY EN25:

Lawful Uses or Activities

Where unauthorised development has taken place but it is claimed that
the use or activity is lawful, the submission of an application for a lawful
development certificate will be invited. A lawful use or activity will not be
conclusively accepted unless a certificate has been granted. Where a
certificate has not been granted, enforcement action will be considered
in accordance with the general enforcement policies EN1 to EN5.
POLICY EN26:

High Hedges Applications

In cases where the Council finds in favour of the complainant the Council
will pursue the necessary enforcement action to ensure that that the
specified schedule of remedial works is carried out within a specified
timescale.
POLICY EN27:

Resources for Effective Planning Enforcement

The Council will commit reasonable resources to ensure effective
implementation and maintenance of planning enforcement control.

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 29

Page 195

11. Complaints About the Service
If you are unhappy about the advice given, action taken or the level of
service you have received from the Planning Service in relation to how it
carries out its enforcement functions you can submit a complaint online
using our online complaints form which is available on the Council’s
website at:
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/about-the-council/complaints/make-acomplaint/

Alternatively you may complain in person, on the telephone, by letter,
by email or using the complaints form available in Council receptions.
Complaints will normally be handled by the Senior Specialist Advisor
(Planning).
We will reply to you within ten working days of receiving your complaint.
Most complaints will receive a full response within this time although
some may take longer to investigate. If this is the case we will inform
you within ten working days and explain the reasons for the delay.
If you are not satisfied by the manager's response you can lodge a
formal complaint by writing to:
Customer First
Eastbourne Borough Council
1 Grove Road
Eastbourne
BN21 4TW
Again you will receive a response within working ten days. If you are still
not satisfied you then have the option of taking your complaint to the
Local Government Ombudsman.
Local Government Ombudsman
PO BOX 4771
Coventry
CV4 0EH
Tel: 0300 061 0614
The Local Government Ombudsman’s website has all the information and
forms you will need to submit a complaint. The website address is:
http://www.lgo.org.uk/

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 30

Page 196

APPENDIX 1
Legislative Framework and Government Guidance
The Council’s powers in relation to planning enforcement are set out in
the following Acts of Parliament, Orders and Regulations:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)
The Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
Regulations 1992 (as amended)
Town and Country Planning (Trees) Regulations 1999
The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended)
The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as
amended)
Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 (as amended)
Data Protection Act 1988.
Freedom of Information Act 2000.
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000.
Criminal Procedure and Investigations Act 1996.
Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 (High Hedges legislation).

Advice from Central Government on planning enforcement is set out
primarily in the following documents:
·

·

The National Planning Policy Framework 2012
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planningpolicy-framework--2
Planning Practice Guidance 2012
http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 31

Page 197

APPENDIX 2- ENFORCEMENT COMPLAINTS PROCESS FLOWCHART

INVESTIGATION
STAGE A
1 – 15 DAYS

Inform complainant “No
further action”
Permitted Development
Planning Consent
Not a Planning Issue

If retrospective Planning
g
Application submitted
inform complainant

COMPLAINT
RECEIVED

Has
s Planning
Plan
Permission been
granted or is
complaint already
being dealt with?

Inform
complainant

Visit Site & Discuss with Specialist Advisors
Measurements, Photographs, Case Report

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 32

Page 198

NEGOTIATION
STAGE B
29 – 39 DAYS
Breach Found

Negotiation

Not Expedient
Breach Minor or
De-Minimus
Not within
Council or
Public interest
to take action

Amendment
Amend Scheme
to accord with
permitted
development ?
Comply with
Planning
Conditions

Close Ca
Case

Submit
Planning
Application
Retrospective
Application
(Only if
development
accords with
Policy)

Stop Use
Less serious
breaches offer
the perpetrator
opportunity to
voluntarily stop

Negotiatiion Compliance
pliance Pe
Period 28 Days.
Check compliance and Close
Cl
Ca
Case (Breach Ceased)
inform complainant

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 33

Page 199

ACTION
STAGE C
30 – 40 DAYS
Breach Found &
Continues

Serve Appropriate Notice
Immediate notice serious breach (significant Impacts

Potential
Appeal

Appeal Dismissed or no Appeal Submitted

Appeal Allowed

Compliance

Close Case

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 34

Page 200

COMPLIANCE &
PROSECTUTION

Notice Compliance
Date

STAGE D
TIMEFRAME SUBJECT TO NOTICE

Breach Continues

Close Case
Compliance Visit

(Breach Ceased)

Prosecution
ut
Direct Action

Inform Complainant of Outcome

Enforcement Policy Statement 2015

Page 35

Page 201

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 202

Agenda Item 18
COMMITTEE:

PLANNING

DATE:

7 July 2015

SUBJECT:

Seafront Local Plan – Issues and Options Report

REPORT OF:

Senior Head of Regeneration, Planning and
Assets

Ward(s):

Meads, Devonshire, Sovereign

Purpose:

To seek Members’ views on the report before being
considered by Cabinet on 8 July 2015

Contact:

Matt Hitchen, Strategy & Commissioning
(Planning Policy)
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne
Tel no: (01323) 415253
E-mail: matt.hitchen@eastbourne.gov.uk

Recommendations:

Members are asked for their views on the attached
report which will be reported to Cabinet at their
meeting on 8 July 2015

Officer

1.0

Introduction

1.1

This is a covering report to introduce the Cabinet report attached. The
Cabinet Report is self explanatory and includes a discussion under the
usual implication headings so will not be repeated here.

1.2

The Cabinet Report recommends that the Seafront Local Plan Issues and
Options Report be published for consultation with the community and key
stakeholders for a 12 week period between 17 July and 9 October 2015.
Planning Committee Members are asked to consider the attached report
and any comments will be considered and reported orally to Cabinet when
they meet on 8 July.

Background Papers:
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were:
•

Cabinet Report – 8 July 2015

•

Seafront Local Plan Issues and Options Report (July 2015)

•

Seafront Local Plan Initial Sustainability Appraisal Report (July 2015)

Page 203

COMMITTEE

CABINET

DATE

8 July 2015

SUBJECT

Seafront Local Plan – Issues and Options Report

REPORT OF

Senior Head of Planning, Regeneration and Assets

Ward(s)

Meads, Devonshire, Sovereign

Purpose

For Members to approve the Seafront Local Plan Issues
and Options Report for consultation with the community
and stakeholders.

Contact

Matt Hitchen, Specialist Advisor (Planning),
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne
Tel no: (01323) 415253
E-mail: matt.hitchen@eastbourne.gov.uk

Recommendations

1. That Cabinet approve the Seafront Local Plan Issues
and Options Report for consultation with the community
and key stakeholders between July and October 2015.
2. To delegate authority to the Senior Head of Planning,
Regeneration and Assets in consultation with the Lead
Cabinet Member to make minor amendments before the
commencement of the 12 week consultation period.

1.0

Introduction

1.1

The Local Development Scheme (LDS), which outlines the work
programme for the production of planning policy documents, identifies
the preparation of a Seafront Local Plan to maximise the seafront’s
contribution to the town as a defining asset and significant contributor to
the local economy. The LDS schedules consultation on an Issues and
Options Report to take place over the summer of 2015.

1.2

The Seafront Local Plan will be a Development Plan Document that will
form part of the Local Plan for Eastbourne. It will set a framework for
future development on the seafront with the aim of enhancing the
positive contribution that the Seafront makes to the town and the local
economy. The Seafront Local Plan will have to be in conformity with the
Core Strategy and the Town Centre Local Plan, as well as national policy.

Page 204

2.0

Issues and Option Report

2.1

An Issues and Options Report is a consultation document that sets out
what are considered to be the main issues relating to the future of the
seafront, and a range of different options for how these issues can be
addressed. It is the first formal consultation phase in developing the
Seafront Local Plan, and the local community and other stakeholders will
be asked to provide their input into whether the right issues have been
identified and which options they would prefer to take forward into the
Seafront Local Plan.

2.2

The Issues and Options were developed through evidence gathering and
engagement with stakeholders. This includes evidence studies such as
the Tourist Accommodation Study, which was produced by consultants in
2015, a survey of seafront users that took place in summer 2014, and a
stakeholder event held in February that was attended by over 60
stakeholders.

2.3

The Issues and Options Report provides context and background to the
seafront, identifies a vision for the future of the seafront up to 2035,
identifies the key issues that the Seafront Local Plan ought to address,
and presents a range of strategic options based around different themes
for the future direction of the Seafront Local Plan.

2.4

For the purposes of the Seafront Local Plan, the seafront has been
divided into seven character areas. The Issues and Options Report
provides a profile of each character area and also presents options for
how much change there should be in the character area.

3.0

Key Issues

3.1

The Issues and Options Report sets out the key issues that the Seafront
Local Plan ought to address in order to improve the seafront and
maximise the contribution that it makes to the local economy. The
consultation asks the community and other stakeholders whether they
agree with the issues, or if there are any additional issues that should be
considered.

3.2

The issues for the seafront identified in the Issues and Options Report
are:
•

Accessibility to and along the Seafront – links between the
seafront and other ‘trip-generators’ could be improved, as could
physical access to certain areas of the seafront.

Page 205

•

Managing the supply of Tourist Accommodation – an adequate
supply of visitor accommodation needs to be maintained in order to
cater for the people who want to visit. It is crucial that the
accommodation stock remains fit for purpose and meets the
requirements of current and future visitors to the area in terms of
quality, type and quantity.

•

Under-utilisation of sites along the seafront - There are a
number of sites along the seafront that could make a more significant
contribution to the seafront. These areas have potential for either
some minor change or comprehensive redevelopment to enhance the
offer and attraction on the seafront.

•

Limited provision of leisure and community facilities - the
provision of leisure and community facilities is limited, and many
consider that the leisure offer is dated, fragmented and too far
removed from the areas where there are the highest levels of activity.

•

Widening the appeal of the Seafront - In order to broaden the
range of visitors to the town, the seafront should provide activities
and facilities that appeal to a wide range of people, whilst also
strengthening the appeal to existing markets.

•

Protection of the Natural and Built Environment - The high
quality of the built and natural environment is what makes Eastbourne
unique and is part of its charm that appeals to visitors, and it is
important that this is maintained.

•

Lack of opportunities for seafront activities - The seafront is
Eastbourne’s main attraction as a tourist destination, and it is
important that seaside type activities are provided to meet the
expectations of visitors.

•

Effects of working beaches - The working beaches are a traditional
feature of the seafront and an important part of the seafront
economy, but they can be relatively unattractive and adversely affect
the feel and setting of a particular area.

•

Quality of Public Realm - The quality of the public realm is an
important factor in the look and feel of the seafront, and it is
important that the seafront is an attractive place where people want
to spend their time.

•

Future infrastructure requirements – the seafront is part of the
town’s primary defence against coastal flooding and this should not be
compromised. In addition, there are other infrastructure provisions on
the seafront, such as the Waste Water Treatment Works, that may
impact upon seafront activity.

Page 206

4.0

Policy Options

4.1

The Issues and Options Report presents a series of options for how the
seafront could change in the future, based around a number of themes.

4.2

The Policy Themes and a summary of the strategic options for each
theme are as follows:
•

Tourist Accommodation – presents options relating to the approach
for the retention of existing tourist accommodation and the provision
of new tourist accommodation.

•

Leisure and Recreation Facilities – presents options relating to
how new sports and recreation facilities and children’s play areas
should be provided.

•

Accessibility – presents options for how to provide improved
linkages between the seafront and the Town Centre, Devonshire Park
and the South Downs National Park, and to make underused areas of
the seafront more accessible.

•

Commercial uses – presents options for how additional food and
drink facilities could be provided, whether there should be more
activity in the evenings, and how to address the issue of ‘working
beaches’.

•

Seafront Activities – presents options for how seafront activities,
such as use of the beach and water based activities, could be better
structured and how they could be improved.

•

Natural Environment – presents options for how best to balance the
protection of landscapes and nature conservation with improvements
to the seafront.

•

Built Environment – presents options for how best to balance the
protection of historic buildings and conservation areas with
improvements to the seafront.

•

Community Use – presents options for how community facilities and
open spaces should be provided in the seafront area.

•

Tourist Attractions and Facilities – presents options relating to
how and in what format additional tourist attractions should be
provided on the seafront.

4.3

The Issues and Options Report asks consultees to comment upon which
of the options they would prefer to be taken forward into the Seafront
Local Plan.

5.0

Consultation

Page 207

5.1

The Seafront Issues and Options Report will, if approved by Cabinet, be
subject to a 12 week formal consultation between 17 July and 9 October
2015. This will coincide with the peak tourist season during which the
seafront will be used heavily.

5.2

As consultation will take place during the time when the seafront is
heavily used, this presents an ideal opportunity to engage people in the
consultation. It is anticipated that exhibitions will be held at the events
taking place at this time such as Airbourne, and the Eastbourne
Hospitality Association have agreed to promote the consultation via their
member’s hotel establishments. Consultation will also be undertaken with
stakeholders on the Local Plan mailing list. The consultation will be made
available on-line, allowing representation to be made electronically via
the Council’s on-line consultation portal. The consultation procedure will
be in compliance with the Statement of Community Involvement.

6.0

Resource Implications

6.1

Legal Implications

6.1.1

The Seafront Local Plan Issues and Options Report has been prepared in
compliance with Regulation 18 of the Town & Country Planning (Local
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 and with regard to the
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework which requires
‘early and meaningful engagement and collaboration with
neighbourhoods, local organisations and businesses’. Even at this early
stage, the Council must also comply with Section 33A, Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) which imposes a duty to
cooperate with other local planning authorities on issues which are likely
to have a significant effect on more than one planning area.

6.2

Financial Implications

6.2.1

There are no financial implications to the Council as a direct result of this
report. The cost of the publication and publicity for the Seafront Local
Plan will be met from within the existing service budget.

6.3

Human Resource Implications

6.3.1

Officers in the Regeneration and Planning Policy team will manage the
consultation arrangements for the Seafront Local Plan, and the collection
and processing of representations received.

6.4

Equalities and Fairness Implications

Page 208

6.4.1

An Equalities and Fairness Impact Assessment was undertaken during the
scoping stage in the production of the Seafront Local Plan, and the
assessment demonstrates that the Seafront Local Plan is unlikely to have
any significant impacts on equalities and fairness.

7.0

Conclusion

7.1

The Local Development Scheme identifies the production of a Seafront
Local Plan to maximise the seafront’s contribution to the town as a
defining asset and significant contributor to the local economy. The first
formal consultation stage in this process is the publication of an Issues
and Options Report.

7.2

Cabinet is requested to approve the Seafront Local Plan Issues and
Options Report for consultation with the community and stakeholders
between 17 July and 9 October 2015.

7.3

It is anticipated that a further report will be submitted to Cabinet in
2016, outlining the representations received and considered in the
production of the draft Seafront Local Plan.

Background Papers:
•

Seafront Local Plan Issues and Options Report (June 2015)

•

Seafront Local Plan Initial Sustainability Appraisal Report (June 2015)

To inspect or obtain copies of the background paper, please refer to the contact
officer listed above.

Page 209

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 210

